
 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE 

 
800 HARRISON AVE. 

LEADVILLE, CO 80461 
  

 REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

  

Tuesday,  
September 6, 2022 

 6:00 P.M. Council Chambers & Zoom 

 

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council 
meeting. 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09 

Meeting ID: 835 2694 4548 
Passcode: 80461 

Dial by your location 
+1 719 359 4580 US 

 
6:00 pm 1. Call to order of Regular Meeting of City Council 
 2. Roll Call 
 3. Approval of Agenda 
 4. Housekeeping Matters 
 5. Public comments about items not on the agenda 
  Citizens wishing to speak to Council on issues, not on the agenda are requested to send a 

message in the chat section or raise their hand in the participants’ section of Zoom or in 
person. Staff will call on the public in order. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes 
(not including council questions). Action, if required, will be assigned to city staff. For 
matters on the agenda, public input will be heard prior to a vote being taken on the 
matter. 

6:20 pm 6. Presentations and Discussions 
A. City Administrator Report – Laurie Simonson 

6:30 pm 7. Consent Agenda: 
A. Approval of the August 16, 2022 minutes  
B. Resolution No. 37, Series 2022:  A Resolution Designating the Planning 

Official for the City of Leadville 
6:40 pm 8. Certificates of Appropriateness/Conditional Use Permits/Temporary Use 

Permits/Licenses  
A. 930 Hemlock Resubmitted COA – Continued from 8/16/22 
B. Practice St Patrick’s Day change TUP 
C. Zero Day Coffee application for a new liquor license  
D. Floyd’s Fine Cannabis Retail Recreational Renewal License Application 

7:45 pm 9. Resolutions and Ordinances 
A.  Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 

1.20 of the Leadville Municipal Code Concerning Maximum Penalties 
for Municipal Code Violations, Imprisonment for Nonpayment of Fines, 
and Payment of Municipal Court Fines with Insufficient Funds Checks 
(First Reading)  

 
 

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09


 
 
 

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council 
meeting. 

2 | P a g e  
 

B.  Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Repealing and 
Reenacting Chapters 15.04, 15.08, 15.12, and 15.16 of the City of 
Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by Reference the 2018 International 
Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 
International Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, 
the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, the 2018 International Existing 
Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code, and the 2018 International 
Fire Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; and Providing 
Penalties for Violations Thereof (Second Reading and Public Hearing)  

C. Resolution No. 29, Series of 2022: A Resolution Opting Out of the Paid 
Family and Medical Leave Insurance (“FAMLI”) Program 

8:45 p.m. 10. Public Meetings Planner  
 11. Mayor’s Report 
 12. Council Reports 
9:00 p.m. 13. Adjournment 

 



 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE 

 
800 HARRISON AVE. 

LEADVILLE, CO 80461 
 REGULAR COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

 

Tuesday,  
August 16, 2022 

 6:00 PM Council Chambers & Zoom 

 

Regular Meeting 08/02/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 08/16/22                                     Page | 1 
 

1. Call to order of regular council meeting at 6:01 pm. 
 

2. Roll call:  
a. Present: 7- Mayor Labbe, MPT Greene, CM Hill, CM Lauritzen, CM Luna-Leal, and CM 

Grant. CM Forgensi appeared via Zoom. 
b. Absent: 0 

 
Staff Members Present: City Administrator Laurie Simonson, Deputy City Clerk Mayda Silver, 
Financial Director Dawna Schneiter, and Fire Chief Dan Dailey. Police Chief Hal Edwards and Animal 
Shelter Manager Caitlin Kuczko arrived at 7:04 pm and departed at 7:18 pm. Administrative Assistant 
Lori Tye appeared via Zoom at 7:03 pm and departed at 8:30 pm. 

 
3. Approval of the agenda:  CM Lauritzen moved to approve the amended agenda, and CM Grant 

seconded. All present were in favor. 
a. Agenda Revisions: The swearing-in of Officer Brenda Caraveo will be added to today’s 

agenda. 
 

4. Housekeeping Matters:      
a. CM Lauritzen said that she was almost “t-boned” on 12th Street due since there is no Stop sign 

there. 
b. CM Forgensi inquired as to when the construction on Pine Street would be completed as it has 

been about 2 months since it has been worked on.  Mayor Labbe responded that the Sanitation 
Department has been behind on completing the manholes in that area and that he is unsure when 
the Sanitation Department will complete that task.  Discussion ensued regarding the paving of 
different streets throughout the city. 

c. CM Grant has heard concerns regarding the closure of E. 6th Street.  She mentioned that it was 
closed on Wednesday.  Several Councilmembers concurred.  Mayor Labbe stated that he would 
check the TUP because, in the past, it was usually closed Thursday evening. 

d. Mayor Labbe stated that the Liam O’Sullivan Irish Memorial Statue was placed today.  The 
statue was crafted in Ireland but forged in Loveland, Colorado. 

e. Mayor Labbe would like to offset expenses for the performers on August 27th at the Tabor 
Opera House in the amount not to exceed $1000 using Contingency Funds. Discussion 
regarding the Contingency Funds amount ensued.  All present agreed. 

f. CM Hill commented on how well the detour from Harrison to Poplar worked during Boom 
Days.  Mayor Labbe concurred. 

g. CM Hill mentioned that the EV Station is up and running again.  City Administrator Simonson 
would like to thank Deputy City Clerk Silver for contacting Charge Point regarding this issue. 
Mayor Labbe noted that he received a call from Phoenix from the technician who was able to 
reset the station remotely. 

 



          
City Council Minutes August 16, 2022 

 
 

2 
Regular Meeting 08/16/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 09/06/22 

5. Public comments for items not on the agenda:   
a. Through Zoom, Andy Hofer spoke about the base camp sign on 601 W. 6th Street.  He said that 

the sign blew down and that it is being rebuilt.  He spoke with Lori Tye and wanted to find out 
if the sign had been legally built, to begin with, or if it went against code. He said that she was 
able to tell him that the sign has been there for a while and that it has been approved.  He would 
like to contest the sign going back up if it wasn’t erected according to code.  CM Lauritzen said 
that Mr. Hofer contacted her, and she had done some research regarding the sign.  She found 
that the sign was considered a legal nonconforming sign because it went up before the sign code 
was adopted. The code states that a legal nonconforming sign can be “replaced.”  She feels that 
the sign is not being replaced but that it is being upgraded which would not be allowed and that 
a variance should be requested through City Council.  City Administrator Simonson spoke about 
the difference between the difference in code for public and private property.  She will speak 
further with City Attorney McCormick to check on the status of the new sign. The city will 
follow up with Mr. Hofer. 

b. Mr. Hofer also wanted to discuss the sporadic Yield signs that he feels should be Stop signs.  
Mayor Labbe has spoken to the Streets Department about the Yield sign on 8th and will speak 
with them about the signs again. 

c. Lake County Manager Tim Bergmann wanted to thank the city for their participation in the 
County’s OHV Town Hall meeting. 

d. Kristi Galarza from Lake County Build a Generation wanted to inform City Council regarding 
the subcommittee’s work to apply to HUD for homelessness projects. In January, the strategic 
planning for homelessness will be a robust process, and she would like to see participation in 
this planning from any departments that deal with homelessness.  Mayor Labbe asked about the 
homelessness survey.  Ms. Galarza informed Council regarding the survey. 

 
6. Approval of Minutes:  

a. Mayor Labbe noticed a typo and stated that the word “staggering” to “staggered” be changed on 
page 3, Item B, subsection d 
CM Luna-Leal moved to approve the amended minutes of 08/02/2022; CM Hill seconded. All 
present were in favor.  

 
7. Oath of Office for New Police Office Brenda Caraveo:  

a. Municipal Judge Floyd swore in Officer Caraveo. 
 

8. Auditors’ Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
a. Paul Backes Certified Public Accountant of McMahan and Associates, LLC provided an 

overview of the audit and the departments included in the audit. He proceeded to explain who 
the audit goes to such as the federal government, the state of Colorado, and other entities such as 
creditors. He stated that the City of Leadville had a “clean audit.” 

b. Mayor Labbe asked about FDIC insurance.  Mr. Backes responded to Mayor Labbe’s question 
and explained the Public Deposit Protection Act. 

c. Mayor Labbe asked about what the proper amount would be for the City’s reserves.  Mr. Backes 
stated that it would be up to the City and that different governmental entities have different 
expectations. Discussion continued regarding revenue and expenditures. 

d. Recommendations were given as well.   
e. Discussion was held regarding Cyber Security Insurance Coverage. 



          
City Council Minutes August 16, 2022 

 
 

3 
Regular Meeting 08/16/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 09/06/22 

CM Hill moved to accept the 2021 Audit by McMahan and Associates, and MPT Greene seconded. All 
present were in favor. 
 
9. Department Reports 

a. Departments gave their monthly reports 
b. Bills- CM Hill moved to pay the bills; CM Forgensi seconded. All present were in favor.  

 
10. Proclamations and Requests 

A. Schedule Budget Work Sessions 
a. The dates for the 2023 Budget Work Sessions are 

9/27/2022             
6:00pm – 7:00pm   Revenues 
7:00pm – 8:00pm   Capital Request Prioritization         
  
10/11/2022     
6:00pm – 7:00pm   Leadville City Hall Budget               
7:00pm – 8:00pm   Leadville Police Dept Budget 
       
10/25/2022     
6:00pm – 7:00pm   Leadville Street Dept Budget        
7:00pm – 8:00pm         LLCFR Budget 
 
11/09/2022 
6:00pm – 7:00pm   Animal Shelter                
7:00pm – 7:30pm   Municipal Court      
7:30pm – 8:00pm   CTF Parks                    
8:00pm – 9:00pm    Final considerations/directions to staff to formalize a prepared budget 
for adoption 12/06/2022 
 
11. Presentations & Requests: 

A. Tabor Opera House Quarterly Update 
a. Sarah Dae, Executive Director, with board members, Amy Tait and Carl Schafer, gave an 

update on the events and tours happening at the Tabor Opera House along with the updating 
of the Tabor Ghost Sign. 

b. They also presented information regarding the Theater Projects Team, the Historic Scenery 
Collection, and Phase II of the restoration. 

c. Ms. Dae invited any city employees to a tour of the Tabor Opera House. 
 

B. City Administrator’s Report – Laurie Simonson updated the City Council regarding the 
following: 

a. City Administrator Simonson wanted to share the positive feedback she received regarding 
Boom Days and the Lifetime Fitness Mountain Bike Race. 

b. Lake County had a Town Hall OHV meeting.  The turnout was wonderful.  Everyone was 
respectful.  She wanted to thank the county for including the City, even though the county 
had different issues than the City with respect to OHVs.  Ms. Simonson would like the City 
to consider having an expert come in to help with a noise ordinance and to decide whether 



          
City Council Minutes August 16, 2022 

 
 

4 
Regular Meeting 08/16/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 09/06/22 

there should be a moratorium on OHV/ATV businesses in the City of Leadville. CM 
Lauritzen asked about a speed limit sign on East 7th Street.  She also felt that there should be 
a moratorium on rentals that do not tour and have unaccompanied drivers.  Mayor Labbe 
would like a moratorium on the current ATVs/OHVs. 

c. Accommodation Taxes are being worked on by Financial Director Schneiter and Deputy 
City Clerk Silver. 

d. Deputy City Clerk Silver is also working on Business Licenses. 
e. On Monday, 8/22, Chapin LaChance, our new Planning Director, will begin.  He comes to 

us from Breckenridge. 
f. City Attorney McCormick is working on the 809 Spruce Street house’s Temporary Use 

Permit. 
g. Discussion regarding the sandwich signs was held and more information will be 

forthcoming. 
 

At 8:05 pm City Council adjourns for a 5-minute break. 
At 8:12 pm City Council reconvenes. 
 
12. Certificates of Appropriateness/Conditional Use Permits/Temporary Use Permits/Licenses  

A. 930 Hemlock COA Resubmittal 
a. The applicants did not appear at today’s meeting. 
b. Administrative Assistant Lori Tye gave her staff report regarding the COA. 
c. Nancy Bailey spoke regarding the Historic Preservation Committee’s viewpoint regarding 

the COA. 
d. Lori Tye requested that the two letters provided to her opposing the COA be added to the 

record.   

Mayor Labbe opened the public hearing at 8:17 pm. There were no public comments. 

CM Lauritzen moved to continue the consideration of the resubmitted Certificate of 
Appropriateness for 930 Hemlock to the September 6, 2022 meeting; MPT Greene seconded. The 
vote was 7-0-0-0. 
 

13. Resolutions & Ordinances: 
B. Resolution No. 36, Series 2022: A Resolution Appointing Members to the Leadville Lake 

County Regional Housing Authority Board of Directors 
a. Discussion was held regarding the members chosen by the Lake County Board of County 

Commissioners and requested a Joint Work Session between Lake County and the City of 
Leadville to discuss the selection of the At Large Members. 

b. CM Lauritzen commented that the four chosen board members would need to choose the At 
Large members. 

c. Discussion about the possible Joint Work Session will be tabled until a later time. 
d. Discussion regarding the City Council applicants transpired. 

 
 

  



          
City Council Minutes August 16, 2022 

 
 

5 
Regular Meeting 08/16/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 09/06/22 

City Council Votes for CM Grant Votes For CM Hill Votes for CM 
Luna-Leal 

CM Forgensi  x x 

CM Hill  x x 

Mayor Labbe  x x 

CM Greene   x 

CM Luna-Leal x  x 

CM Lauritzen  x  x 

CM Grant  x x 

 
MPT Greene moved to adopt Resolution No. 36, Series of 2022, A Resolution Appointing 
Members to the Leadville Lake County Regional Housing Authority Board of Directors and appoint 
Christian Luna-Leal and Tim Hill to the Authority’s Board. I further move to direct City staff to 
update the Resolution prior to signing it to reflect the names of these appointees. 

 
CM Luna-Leal seconded. Vote was 7-0-0-0. 
 

14. Public Meetings Planner:  
a. Deputy City Clerk Silver stated that she would add the Work Sessions for the budget meetings. 

 
15. Mayor’s Report: 

a. The mayor spoke about Area Median Income (AMI).  He received AMI and passed out the 
information that he received to City Council. 

b. The mayor met with City Administrator regarding the six-month review.  He is very happy with 
her work initiative and ethic. 

 
16. Council Reports:   

a. CM Grant attended the music in the park at Zaitz Park. 
b. CM Grant also wanted to ask about whether there can be a request to entertain parallel parking 

spots instead of angled parking.CM Luna-Leal agreed with CM Grant regarding the parallel 
parking on East 7th Street. 

c. CM Lauritzen would like to know why The Delaware Hotel has half a block of free parking. 
d. CM Hill expressed that the diagonal parking on 11th Street is great. 
e. CM Luna-Leal spoke regarding Full Circle’s program assisting the underprivileged population 

with housing assistance. That funding has ended. 
f. CM Forgensi wanted to commend CM Luna-Leal and Full Circle for their work with the 

underserved population in Leadville. He is currently in Santa Fe helping as a disaster recovery 
coordinator.  He spoke about the effect the fire had on the underserved community in Santa Fe 



City Council Minutes August 16, 2022 

6 
Regular Meeting 08/16/22 Minutes Presented to CC on 09/06/22 

relocating people, and how it has impacted the environment, thereby impacting basic 
necessities. 

Adjournment:  9:06 pm. 

APPROVED this 6th day of September by a vote of ___ in favor, ___ against, ___ abstaining, and ___ 
absent. 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 

ATTEST: 
By 

 ___________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 



Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA ITEM # 7B 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 37, Series of 2022: A Resolution Designating Mr. Chapin LaChance as 
the Planning Official for the City of Leadville  

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator 

_____ORDINANCE 
__X__RESOLUTION 
_____MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 37, Series of 2022 (“Resolution”), which
designates Mr. Chapin LaChance as the city’s Planning Official.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The City Council recently authorized the creation of a new full-time position of Planning Director,
and the city has since hired Mr. LaChance as the Planning Director with his employment beginning
August 22, 2022. Upon the City Council’s designation, Mr. LaChance as the city’s Planning Director
will serve as the Planning Official for the various functions required throughout the Leadville
Municipal Code’s Title 16 (Subdivision Regulations) and Title 17 (Zoning).

For example, the Planning Official is responsible for review and decision-making regarding
administrative site plan applications and other administrative permits under Title 17 and Title 16,
can issue written administrative interpretations and decisions of the City’s subdivision
regulations to assist the city in the consistent application of Title 16, and determines whether
subdivision applications and certain land use applications are complete and ready for processing.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

N/A

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A

Cityclerk
Highlight



Page 2 of 2 

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 37, Series of 2022.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

Council may take one of the following actions:

1. Adopt the Resolution.

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.

3. Table for further discussion and consideration.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

A motion to approve the consent agenda will approve this Resolution.

If, however, City Council removes this item from the consent agenda for discussion or questions,
staff recommends the following motion:

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 37, Series of 2022, A Resolution Designating Mr. Chapin LaChance
as the Planning Official for the City of Leadville.”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 37, Series of 2022



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 37 

SERIES OF 2022 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE PLANNING OFFICIAL FOR THE 
CITY OF LEADVILLE 

WHEREAS, Title 16 (Subdivision Regulations) and Title 17 (Zoning) of the Leadville 
Municipal Code assign various responsibilities to the Planning Official, an individual designated by 
City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the position of Planning Director was recently authorized by the City Council, 
and the City has hired Mr. Chapin LaChance as Planning Director effective August 22, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, it is appropriate for the Planning Director to be appointed as the Planning Official 
for the purposes of administering Title 16 (Subdivision Regulations) and Title 17 (Zoning) of the 
Leadville Municipal Code; and  

WHEREAS, Mr. LaChance possesses the experience, capability, and professional 
qualifications to serve as the Planning Official; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to designate Mr. LaChance as the Planning Official, 
which designation shall commence on September 6, 2022 and shall expire upon any future termination 
of his employment with the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Designation.  The City Council hereby designates Mr. Chapin LaChance as 
Planning Official for the City effective September 6, 2022. This designation shall expire upon any 
future termination of his employment with the City.   

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its approval by the City 
Council. 

ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2022 by a vote of ___ in favor,  ___ against, 
___  abstaining, and ___ absent. 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

________________________________ 
  Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM # 8A 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: 
SUBJECT:   

PRESENTED BY: 

September 6th, 2022 - Continued from August 16th, 2022 
John R. Slate and Gina C. Vigletti Resubmitted Certificate of 
Appropriateness for Residential Infill at 930 Hemlock Street 
 Lori Tye 

_____ORDINANCE 
_____RESOLUTION 
__X__MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  Consideration of a Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness
for the purposes of Residential Infill at 930 Hemlock Street, of a Container Home in the
National Historic Landmark District.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The Historic Preservation Commission met on Tuesday,
August 9th, 2022 for consideration of Resubmitted COA for Residential Infill at 930 Hemlock
St in the National Historic Landmark District.  930 Hemlock is a parcel that was part of the
original St. Vincent’s Hospital.  The proposed build is a container home constructed of 4
used shipping containers, 2 on bottom, 2 on top.  The commission heard from Dean
McAllister and Melissa Shelly, Colorado Container Homes and staff.  The HPC reviewed the 
COA criteria regarding residential infill, and any impacts that would have on the
neighboring structures. The HPC also reviewed the Compatible Residential Infill Design
Guidelines and Standards, and what criteria were met or not met.

The HPC originally denied the COA application on June 14th, the applicant withdrew the
COA from the City Council agenda on June 21st, as the applicant submitted a new design
the HPC had not seen.  Applicant then resubmitted to the HPC, and on July 26th the HPC
continued the Resubmitted COA so the applicant could incorporate the HPC’s
recommendations.  The HPC heard the Continued, Resubmitted COA on August 9th, 2022.
A motion was made to Approve the Resubmitted COA for Residential Infill at 930 Hemlock
Street, it was seconded and unanimously voted to Approve and recommend to City Council 
for Approval.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

N/A



IV. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Consider the Historic Preservation Commission’s
recommendation on this proposed Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness.  The
applicant has revised the design to better incorporate the HPC Infill Guidelines, and to make 
the infill structure fit in more with the historic district. Applicant did take all of the HPC’s
recommendations and incorporate them into the new design.  Staff recommends that the
Council Approve the Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness for the residential infill
of 930 Hemlock St.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:   Approve, Approve with Conditions, Deny or request a Continuance
for more information. 

PROPOSED MOTION:   Motion to Approve COA for 930 Hemlock Street: 

I move to approve the Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness for Residential Infill at 
930 Hemlock Street, Leadville CO 80461 based on the criteria set forth in the related COA 
application materials and staff report dated August 9th, 2022, the City of Leadville’s 
municipal code, Sections 17.44, the 2015 Leadville Comprehensive Plan and Leadville 
Historic Preservation Commission Compatible Residential Infill Design Guidelines and 
Standards for the Leadville National Historic Landmark District. 

OR 

Motion to DENY COA for 930 Hemlock Street: 

I move to deny the Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness for Residential Infill at 930 
Hemlock Street, Leadville CO 80461 based on the criteria set forth in the related COA 
application materials and staff report dated August 9th, 2022, the City of Leadville’s 
municipal code, Sections 17.44, the 2015 Leadville Comprehensive Plan and Leadville 
Historic Preservation Commission Compatible Residential Infill Design Guidelines and 
Standards for the Leadville National Historic Landmark District. 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS:  Complete 930 Hemlock St Certificate of Appropriateness application,
staff report dated August 9th, 2022 and this cover sheet.



1 

STAFF REPORT 

Date: August 9th, 2022 
To: Historic Preservation Commission  
From: Lori Tye, Administrative Assistant 
Subject: 930 Hemlock Street Residential Infill in National Historic Landmark District 

Resubmitted COA – Continued from 7/26/2022 (updates in red) 
Leaseholder: John Slate and Gina Viglietti 
Property Owner: John R. Slate and Gina C Viglietti (JT) 

Project Summary: 
Applicant, Dean McAllister and Melissa Shelly of Colorado Container Homes, is seeking a Residential 
Infill of a Container Home, on a vacant lot.  Proposed structure is a 3 bedroom, 3 bath 1,280 sq ft home.  
Applicant’s Resubmitted COA application was heard by the Historic Preservation Commission on July 
26th.  The HPC voted to CONTINUE the COA until August 9th, giving the applicant time to redesign the 
structure per HPC recommendations.  Applicant has new design drawings for the HPC to consider.  

Historical Background: 
There currently is no structure where the proposed 
Residential Infill is to be placed.  Assessor’s Office has the 
legal description as PARCEL OF LAND CONT A PT OF 
LOT 1000, BLK 13 COOPER’S, 0.127 acres.  This is a 
parcel of the Old St. Vincent’s Hospital, very southern 
portion (left, 1886 Sanborn map), and is in a very historic 
part of Leadville.  1012 Hemlock, St. Vincent’s Hospital, is 
listed on the Leadville Historical Building Inventory. 

Project Description: 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 
residential infill.  Single family home to be constructed from 4 containers, 2 on bottom, 2 on top.   
Applicant’s Design Philosophy: Colorado Container Homes is about building home with aesthetic 
charm, as well as an architectural design with strong structural integrity.  Our homes are built to reflect 
the individual personality of the homeowner, all while having the ability to weather extreme climates, 
ideal for our beautiful state of Colorado. 
In addition to being environmentally friendly, by reusing high quality shipping containers, our builds 
completely transform something that was once seen as obsolete, into a warm and inviting home. 
Craftsmanship is at the forefront of each of our designs, because it is craftsmanship that ultimately 
stands the test of time. 

Criteria for Reviewing Entity Decision: 
Per the City Municipal Code, there are 17 criteria that must be met for a project to receive an approved 
Certificate of Appropriateness. The historic preservation commission and city council should consider 
if the proposed residential infill satisfies each of the 17 criteria, as referenced below: 
1) Fits with Leadville Comprehensive Plan

- Developed Residential – This designation includes partially or completely built-out platted
subdivisions that are unlikely to change significantly in coming decades.  This designation
encourages the maintenance and replacement of existing residential uses, but does not point
towards a desired future that is in any way different than what is in place today.
 - Future Land Use Plan - The following approach guided the development of the Future
 Land Use Plan:

a) Balancing housing and commercial development so that people can live and work in
Leadville.

mainstreet
Highlight



2 

b) Encouraging infill and redevelopment in the residential neighborhoods in the historic
town site and creating a diversity in housing types.
c) Re-establishing the vitality of the historic commercial and mixed-use blocks east and
west of Harrison.

2) Character, interest and value of structure as part of the development, heritage, history and culture of
the city and state

- National Historic Landmark District – YES, parcel is in NHL district
- Listed in the Leadville Historical Building Inventory – NO, NO STRUCTURE, but parcel is

adjacent to 1012 Hemlock, St. Vincent’s Hospital which IS listed.
3) Location of structure and relationship to historic events

- Original site of St. Vincent’s Hospital

The original 1879 St. Vincent’s Hospital 
is the building to the right, with the 1901 
hospital to the left.  The 1901 building is 
currently condominiums. 
(Photo courtesy of St. Vincent Hospital archives 
and Sisters of Charity) 

4) Identification of structure with historically significant persons
- Sisters of Charity

5) Importance to cultural, historical, social and economic heritage
- Parcel was a part of the original St. Vincent Hospital built in 1879

6) Visual features typical of or unique to historic period of relevance
- Current structure proposal will not have features typical of or unique to historic period of
significance.

7) Relationship to surrounding structures or other features of importance
- Current structure proposal is adjacent to the Old St. Vincent’s Hospital & on the same block as
the old S&L Lumber (Freight & S.Lumber Yard)

8) Minimal alteration and redesign to fit use
- Redesign is residential use

9) Original characteristics shall not be destroyed, nor shall historic material or architectural features be
removed or altered when possible

- No Current Structure
10) The significance of architectural changes sign original construction shall also be recognized and
respected

- No Current Structure
11) Distinctive stylistic features or skilled craftsmanship shall be treated with sensitivity and preserved
whenever possible

- No Current Structure
12) Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced whenever possible and,
if they must be replaced, new materials shall match replaced materials in composition, color, texture
and shape

- No Current Structure



3 

13) Cleaning and restoring surfaces should be done with least disruptive methods; sandblasting and
other techniques that damage surfaces is highly discouraged

- No Current Structure
14) Additions and alterations should be done in such a way as to ensure the essential form and integrity
of the original structure would be undamaged

- No Original Structure
15) Structures shall be recognized as products of their own time and place; alterations with no historical
basis that seek to artificially create an earlier appearance are discouraged

- No Current Structure
16) Contemporary style structures, alterations and additions shall not be discouraged so long as they
are compatible with the size, scale, texture and color of the existing structure and/or existing structures
in the area

- HPC is tasked with determining if the proposed new structure is compatible in size, scale,
texture and color of existing structures in the area. 
17) The unique historical and visual appearance of Leadville, as it exists in the present, shall be honored
and protected in so far as possible

- HPC is tasked with determining if the proposed new structure honors and protects the unique
historical & visual appearance of Leadville. 

Leadville Historic Preservation Commission Compatible Residential Infill Design Guidelines and 
Standards for the Leadville National Historic Landmark District 

Section 2: NHL District Design Guidelines and Standards 
These design guidelines apply to new residential construction in the NHL District.  New residential 
construction is defined as construction requiring a foundation plan as part of the building permit process. 

The purposes of the Leadville Historic Preservation Commission Compatible Residential Infill 
Guidelines and Standards for the Leadville National Historic Landmark District are to make clear the 
goals and objectives of the City of Leadville for enhancing its natural and historic sense of place.  Below 
are four precepts to consider on any potential project.  

• Keep it simple.
• Keep it in scale.
• Respect the historic resources.
• Make all new design compatible to the existing context.

In order to protect the district, new construction should reinforce the basic characteristics that were 
established early in the city’s development.  Projects should also enhance the residential qualities of 
the neighborhoods. 

The NHL District should develop in a coordinated manner so that an overall sense of continuity is 
achieved.  Natural assets, including views, should be protected and enhanced.  The scale of projects 
in the area should be compatible with the overall scale of the city, as well as with the scale of buildings 
on adjacent properties.  Emphasis should be placed on developing new buildings that respect their 
neighbors.  Where properties abut a historical building, special care should be taken in relating to these 
precious resources. 

The NHL District is of great importance to the community, both in terms of preserving its integrity as a 
historic resource and of protecting the value and character of the property owners and residents.  These 



4 

standards and guidelines seek to reinforce social objectives of retaining the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood.  For purposes of this document: 

• The use of “shall” indicates the standard is mandatory
• The use of “should” indicates the guideline is advisory, but strongly recommended.

Section 3: Policies 
1. Policy: Relationship to Site Context

The sloping topography and open pattern of development in the treatment area provides most
buildings with solar exposure and views of the mountains.  Smaller, lower buildings located
on the alleys traditionally allowed views and solar exposure of the nearby primary residences.
These assets shall be preserved for as many sites as feasible.

A. CAREFULLY relate new construction to buildings that contribute to the historic
neighborhood context.

a. New projects shall be compatible with the historic character of the Leadville
NHL District as well as those buildings adjacent to the project.

b. Historic proportions of height, width and depth are very important to be
compatible with the historic mass and scale of the NHL district and the city.
Compatibility with the traditional mass, scale and building materials of the area
is especially important.

2. Policy: Views
Views to natural and historic features abound in Leadville and should be preserved.  Of
special importance are the views of the mountains and historic landmarks that contribute to
the city’s unique setting.

A. Position a new building so that view corridors are preserved.
3. Policy: Site Planning

A new project can significantly affect neighboring properties.  Such impacts include views,
solar access and snow shedding.

A. Coordinate the site plan of individual building lots with those adjacent properties.
1. Unusual setbacks may be appropriate when they help protect views to significant

features. 
a. Consideration for the views shall come from within, through and outside the site.
b. Consider seasonal factors, such as snow accumulations or dense foliage.
c. Maintain views along alleys be keeping buildings small in scale.

2. Minimize the number of driveways, parking and service areas through cooperative
planning with adjoining properties. This helps reduce the visual impacts of these elements 
on the neighborhood. 

4. Policy: Building Orientation
Traditionally, a building was oriented with its primary wall planes in line with the parcel’s
property lines.  Since most buildings were rectangular in form, this siting pattern helped
reinforce the image of the city grid.

A. Maintain traditional patterns of building orientation by respecting a property’s lot lines.
This applies to both primary and alley structures.

B. Orient the primary entrance of a building toward the street.
a. Clearly define the primary entrance using such things as porches on residential

structures.
b. Rear or side entrances should be secondary to the front.

5. Policy: Building Setbacks
Most front facades align at a relatively uniform setback from the street in each block.  The
rhythm created by the placement of buildings and side yards are an especially important



5 
 

feature.  The historic development pattern contributes to the visual continuity of the NHL 
district. 

C. Decks, balconies and porches shall not significantly encroach into front and side yard 
setbacks. 

6. Policy: Parking Design 
For the majority of the period of significance the primary transportation vehicle was the horse 
and carriage.  The associated site and building features were the barn, stable carriage house 
and drives.  The accommodations doe automobiles of driveways, garages and parking areas 
require sensitivity to the visual impacts and the historic transportation mode. 
Care should be taken to provide pedestrian circulation that does not conflict with vehicular 
circulation. 

A. Screen parking areas from street view with site features. 
B. Design parking areas should be accessed from alleys or rear drives rather than from 

the primary street.  Parking facilities such that they are subordinate to other site 
features. 

a. In a residential context, the use of a detached garage, located along the alley, 
is especially encouraged. 

b. If parking is located within a garage, minimize the size of the driveway. 
c. An on-site parking area should be located inside or behind a building, where its 

visual impacts will be minimized, unless site conditions (such as steep slopes) 
prevent this arrangement. 

d. Minimize the surface area of paving and consider using materials that blend 
with the natural colors and textures of the region.  Options include: modular 
pavers, gravel and grasscrete or concrete. 

e. Curb cuts and driveways should be minimal in width and shared when feasible. 
f. Design the parking layout so that all spaces are accessible and usable year-

round. 
7. Policy: Mass and Scale 

A variety of building styles occur in this area but a similarity of forms, materials and scale still 
prevails.  Projects that include a primary building with subordinate secondary structures 
reinforce the city’s historic character. 
Traditionally, exterior wall materials were horizontal siding, with the exception of a few brick 
homes.  Stone was used occasionally for foundations and fireplaces. Decorative shingles 
were sometimes applied to eaves and dormers. 

A. Maintain the traditional perceived scale of buildings. 
1. The tradition of one- and two-story street facades shall be continued. 

B. New construction shall appear similar in mass and scale to historic structures found 
traditionally in the NHL district. 

C. Break up the massing of larger buildings into components.  A larger building may be 
divided into modules that reflect the traditional scale of construction. 

1. Modules should be expressed three dimensionally by having 
significant architectural changes. 

2. Step down the mass of larger buildings to minimize the perceived scale 
at the street. 

3. Historic proportions of height, width and depth are important features 
to be compatible with historic mass and scale. 

4. Building elements shall be in scale with the overall mass of the building. 
D. Roofs shall be similar in scale to those used historically on comparable buildings. 

1. The length of the roof shall not exceed those seen historically on 
comparable buildings. 



6 

8. Policy: Building Form
The traditional residential building form consists of a simple rectangular mass with a gabled
or hipped roof.  Additions are usually located to the rear of the main building and step down
in scale from the central mass.  It’s the combinations of these shapes that establish a
neighborhood’s scale.  These forms shall be preserved, in their height, width and depth,
throughout the NHL district.  New construction that does not respect these forms could
dimmish the integrity of the NHL district.

9. Policy: Roof Form
Roofs of similar shapes reoccur in the NHL district.  Gabled roofs, generally oriented with the
ridge perpendicular to the street, and hip roofs are typical.
The size, shape and type of roof shall be similar to those found traditionally in the city.
Consideration of environmental and climate determinants such as snow and ice shedding,
drainage and solar exposure shall also be integral to the roof design.

1. Sloping roof forms, such as gable, hip and shed, shall be the dominant roof
shapes.  These forms shall be symmetrically designed. Avoid flat roofs and
barreled roofs.

10. Policy: Architectural Character
Traditionally, buildings in Leadville were simple in character.  This is a fundamental
characteristic that is vital to the preservation of the historical integrity of the city.  Regardless
of stylistic treatment, a new building shall appear simple in form and detail.  Buildings also
shall be visually compatible with older structures in the NHL district without being direct
copies of historic buildings.

A. Respect the sense of time and place in all projects.
B. New interpretations of traditional building styles are encouraged, such that they are

seen as products of their own rime, yet compatible with their historic neighbors.
1. New designs shall draw upon the fundamental traits of historic buildings without

copying them.  This will allow them to be seen as products of their own time yet
compatible with their historic neighbors.

11. Policy: Building Components
Projecting elements, such as dormers, bays, stairs, chimneys and cornices, help to provide
visual interest to a building and can influence its perceived scale.  These features shall be
compatible in size, shape and type with those found in historic buildings and should be treated
as an integral part of the building design.

12. Policy: Pattern of Building Materials
The pattern created by the unit size of the materials (bricks, siding, shingles, etc.)  Application
shall be similar to those materials used traditionally in the city and in the treatments area.
These shall be configured in combinations that express human scale.

A. Materials shall appear similar in scale, texture and finish to those used traditionally.
1. A hierarchy of building materials shall be used, with heavier coarser materials

used as foundations and more refined materials used above.
2. The dimensions of brick units, clapboard siding and other building materials

should be similar to those used historically.
3. Exterior wood finishes shall be painted in colors designated on any Historic

Color Palette or in rustic natural wood stains and finishes.
B. Maintain the existing range of exterior wall materials found in the NHL District.  Reuse

of existing materials is encouraged.  A mix of wood frame, stone and brick construction
is typical.

1. Foundation finish materials may include stone, concrete, board formed
concrete, wood lattice and vertical boards.  A clear distinction between



7 
 

foundation and wall material should be present.  Clapboard siding should not 
extend to the ground. 

2. Appropriate materials for primary structures included horizontal and vertical 
siding, shingles (in limited applications) and brick. 

3. The lap dimensions of siding should be similar to those found traditionally.  
Masonry unit sizes should also be similar to those found traditionally. 

4. Siding materials that are not allowed include stucco, reflective materials such 
as mirrored glass or polished metals and rustic shakes. 

5. Corrugated metal and other acceptable metal siding may also be considered 
on structures and foundation skirting. 

C. Roof material shall appear similar to those used traditionally. 
13. Policy: Windows 

Windows are some of the most important character-defining features of most structures. They 
give scale to buildings and provide visual interest to the façade’s or elevation’s composition. 
Distinct window designs often define many historic building styles. They were commonly inset 
into relatively deep openings or they have surrounding casings and sash components with 
substantial dimensions. These cast shadows that significantly contribute to the character of 
the building. 

A. Windows should be of a traditional size and relate to a pedestrian scale. 
1. Windows should be simple in shape, arrangement and detail. 
2. Unusually shaped windows, such as triangles and trapezoids shall be 

considered as accents only and limited to one per building façade or elevation. 
3. The number of different window styles should be limited. 

B. The window-to-wall ratio should be similar to that seen on comparable historic 
buildings in the treatment area. 

1. Large surfaces of glass are inappropriate on residential structures and shall 
not be allowed. 

2. If necessary, divide large glass surfaces into smaller windows that are in scale 
with those seen traditionally. 

C. Windows with vertical emphasis are encouraged. 
1. A general rule is that the height should be twice the dimension of the width. 
2. Windows with traditional depth and trim are preferred. 

D. The placement and grouping of windows shall be similar to that seen historically. 
14. Policy: Doors 

A door, which is often an important character-defining feature, gives scale to a building and 
provides visual interest to the composition of a building’s primary façade. 

A. Maintain the traditional pattern of doors along streets and alleys 
1. All buildings that face the street should have a well-defined front entrance. 
2. Openings should be similar in location, size and type to those seen traditionally. 

The entrance should be at, or near, grade level. 
3. A garage door should be designed to minimize the apparent width of the 

opening. 
4. The material and detailing of garage doors should be utilitarian, to be 

compatible with nearby sheds when located on an alley, or detailed as part of 
the building if located on the front. 

B. Doors should be designed and finished with trim elements similar to those used 
traditionally. 

15. Policy: Utilities 
Minimize the visual impacts of utilities and service equipment. 

16. Policy: Energy Conservation Design 



8 

Using energy conserving designs that are also compatible with historic character of the 
community is encouraged. 

Summary: 
The applicant is requesting the approval of a Resubmitted COA for Residential Infill, a 3 bedroom, 3 
bath 1,280 sq ft home constructed of shipping containers. Applicant has made designs changes from 
the previously (originally) submitted COA, to incorporate the HPC suggestions were - 
6" max reveal lap siding 
6/12 roof pitch min 
Closed Front dormer over porch instead of timber frame, with gingerbread or shingle trim 
Street facing front door 

Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the HPC review the Continued Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness 
for New Residential Infill at 930 Hemlock St thoroughly. This is a very historic area of Leadville; 
proposed build is on a parcel of land that was originally the old St. Vincent’s hospital.  Staff advises 
commissioners to note what criteria is met and what has not, such as materials, compatibility with 
current structures in the area, impact on historic structures adjacent to the proposed build.  While the 
applicant has made some design changes to better fit in with surrounding structures, and the new 
design does look better than previous designs, staff is concerned this build is not compatible within 
NHL District.  Applicant has changed the roof pitch to a 6/12; made all windows taller than they are 
wide; took out timber brackets, put in an enclosed gable with gingerbread siding; added a front street 
facing entrance; changed the lap siding to 6".  

A sample motion for APPROVAL for the Certificate of Appropriateness application is: 
I move to approve the Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness for the New Infill at 930 
Hemlock Street based on the criteria set forth in the related COA application materials and staff 
report dated August 9th, 2022, the City of Leadville's municipal code, Section 17. 44.070 and 
Leadville Historic Preservation Commission Compatible Residential Infill Guidelines and 
Standards for the Leadville National Historic Landmark District. 

A sample motion for DENIAL for the Certificate of Appropriateness application is: 
I move to deny the Resubmitted Certificate of Appropriateness for the New Infill at 930 Hemlock 
Street based on the criteria set forth in the related COA application materials and staff report dated 
August 9th, 2022, the City of Leadville's municipal code, Section 17. 44.070 and Leadville Historic 
Preservation Commission Compatible Residential Infill Guidelines and Standards for the Leadville 
National Historic Landmark District. 

























EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

S:
  

H
EI

G
H

T:
  

2
6’

 –
 6
” 

Fr
o

m
 G

ra
d

e 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

ea
k 

o
f 

th
e 

ro
o

f 
W

ID
TH

: 

1
6
’ –

 0
” 

Fr
o

m
 S

id
e 

to
 S

id
e 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES LD Horton LLC 

720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

JOHN SLATE
930 Hemlock St.
Leadville, CO 80461

1280 SQFT – 3BR 3BA

(2) 40’ Containers on Bottom

(2) 40’ Containers on Top

18” Pier Foundation - Skirted to match siding

ROOF: 
Shingles 
6/12 Pitched Roof  

Enclosed Gables with Gingerbread Siding  

WINDOWS: 

1st Floor
(2) 3'x5' Standard
(4) 2'x4' Standard
(2) 3'x5' Standard
(1) 4'x6' Standard
2nd Floor
(2) 5'x5' Standard
(2) 2'x4' Standard
(2)4'x6' Standard
(2) 3'x5' Standard

EXTERIOR DOORS: 
1st Floor
(4) 36" Entry Doors

2nd Floor
(1) 6' Double French or Sliding Glass



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

EXT VIEW 2: 

EXT VIEW 1: 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

EXT VIEW 3: 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

EXT VIEW 4: 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

EXT VIEW 5: 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

BOTTOM LEVEL 2D LAYOUT:



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

TOP LEVEL 2D LAYOUT: 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

Design Philosophy 

Colorado Container Homes is about building homes with aesthetic 
charm, as well as an architectural design with strong structural integrity. 
Our homes are built to reflect the individual personality of the 
homeowner, all while having the ability to weather extreme climates, 
ideal for our beautiful state of Colorado.   

In addition to being environmentally friendly, by reusing high quality 
shipping containers, our builds completely transform something that 
was once seen as obsolete, into a warm and inviting home.  

Craftsmanship is at the forefront of each of our designs, because it is 
craftsmanship that ultimately stands the test of time. 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

Building Materials 
Structural: 

40’ High Cube/One Trip Shipping Containers: Containers are general purpose containers 
Interior to be stick framed and drywall finished with no exposed corrugation.  

Steel C-Channel Beams 

2x2 Steel Window Framing 

4x2 Steel Window Framing 

Foundation: 

Concrete Caissons with Steel Stilts - Skirting added around stilts to match siding of the house 

6/12 Pitched Gable Roof: 

6/12 Wood Truss Roof with Shingles 

Will meet snow load requirements 

Will meet wind load requirements 

Decking: 

Redwood planks with wood railings 

Insulation: 

Closed cell spray foam 

R49 in the ceiling 

R21 in the walls 

Siding: 

Wood Lap Siding - 6" 

Enclosed gables with gingerbread siding



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

Massing 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 



COLORADO CONTAINER HOMES 
LD Horton LLC 
720.381.1714 
sales@cochomes.com 

PARKING 









AGENDA ITEM #_8B_ 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE:  September 6th, 2022 

SUBJECT: UPDATED TUP for Leadville Shack Club’s Annual September St. 
Patrick’s Day Parade – Change in Route & Time 

PRESENTED BY:  Lori Tye 
_____ORDINANCE 
_____RESOLUTION 
__X__MOTION (2) 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  Updated Temporary Use Permit for Leadville Shack Club’s Annual
Leadville’s September St. Patrick’s Day Parade on Saturday September 17th, 2022 from
2:00 pm until 3:00 pm along Harrison Ave from 3rd St parking lot travelling north to 9th St.
This is a change in time, originally scheduled at noon, requesting a start time of 2:00 pm
AND the route is the same, only reversed (3rd to 9th instead of 9th to 3rd).

The applicant requests a full traffic delay, as well as a Police and Fire department escort
for the parade. Applicant was approved for a multi-year (3yr) permit, but has changes to
this year’s parade.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  A Leadville classic, affectionately known as Practice
Parade, this parade is usually held on the third Saturday of September.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A

V. LEGAL ISSUES:  N/A

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Consider and Review a Temporary Use Permit for Leadville
Shack Club’s Annual Leadville’s September St. Patrick’s Day Parade on Saturday
September 17th, 2022 from 2:00 pm until 3:00 pm along Harrison Ave from 3rd St parking
lot travelling north to 9th St.  Staff see no issues with the changes.

PLEASE NOTE: Applicant was approved for a multi-year (3yr) permit in 2021, but has
changes to this year’s parade.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:  Approve, Approve with Condition or Deny



VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  Motion to approve Updated Temporary Use Permit for Leadville
Shack Club’s Annual September St. Patrick’s Day Parade on Saturday September 17th,
2022 from 2:00 pm until 3:00 pm along Harrison Ave from 3rd St parking lot travelling
north to 9th St.

IX. ATTACHMENTS:  Updated Temporary Use Permit Application, with parade route, as well
as this cover sheet.





















AGENDA ITEM # 8C 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE:  September 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Application of Anthony Earl and Avery Williamson dba Zero Day 
Coffee LLC for a New Beer and Wine (City) License 122 E. 7th Street, Leadville, CO 
80461. 

PRESENTED BY:  Mayda Silver, Deputy City Clerk 

_____ORDINANCE 
_____RESOLUTION 
__X__MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before the Local Licensing Authority for consideration and decision is a new application for a New Beer 
and Wine (City)  license (the “License”) submitted by Anthony Earl and Avery Williamson dba Zero Day 
Coffee LLC (the “Applicant”) for the premises located at 122 E. 7th Street, Leadville, CO 80461.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The applicants submitted a complete application to the City for the License on 02/08/2022 and paid the
local application and liquor license fees.

The Applicant requests that the front patio seating, the entire interior (excluding the inventory room,
basement, and storage), the walkways, the side seating, and the backyard seating be licensed.  The
intent is that alcohol will be served on the property (on-premises) and will not be permitted to be
taken off the property.

III. FINDINGS OF DEPUTY CITY CLERK:

The following information has been submitted and is deemed complete:

 Applicant has submitted a complete application. (C.R.S. § 44-3-309)

☒ Applicant’s application was submitted on 02/20/22.

☒ The Oath of Applicant section was signed and dated, and all applicable sections were
completed as required by C.R.S. § 44-3-309(2).

☒ The Applicant submitted plans/drawings of the premises as required by C.R.S. § 44-3-309(3).



 Applicant has paid all applicable fees. (“No local licensing authority shall issue a license
provided for in this article 3 or article 4 or 5 of this title 44 until that share of the license fee
due the state has been received by the department of revenue.” C.R.S. § 44-3-301(1))

☒ The Applicant paid the applicable state and local fees. Payment was received by the City on
08/08/2022.

 Notice of the public hearing was posted in a conspicuous place on the Applicant’s premises at
least 10 days prior to the hearing. (C.R.S. § 44-3-311)

Notice of the hearing was posted on the front right window on 8/10/22 and was posted for a
minimum of 10 days before the public hearing.

 Notice of the public hearing was published in a newspaper of general circulation at least 10
days before the hearing. (C.R.S. § 44-3-311)

Notice of the hearing was published in The Herald Democrat on Thursday, August 25, 2022,
which is at least 10 days before the date of the public hearing.

 Verification that no application has been denied in the same location or within 500 feet for a
retail license on the basis that the requirements of the neighborhood and the desires of the
adult inhabitants are already satisfied by existing outlets. (C.R.S. §44-3-313)

A liquor license    ☒ has not    ☐ has    been denied for the same premises within the past two
years.

 The use of the premises for a retail liquor licensed establishment is permissible under the
zoning classification of the City. (C.R.S. § 44-3-313)

The premises is within the Transitional Commercial Zoning District (“District”). In this District,
retail store use is a:

☒Use by Right

☐Conditional Use

☐Prohibited Use

In this District, the bar/lounge use is a:

☐Use by Right

☒Conditional Use

☐Prohibited Use

Therefore, the City’s zoning regulations  ☒ permit    ☐ do not permit the License within the 
District.  

However, the Applicant must obtain a conditional use permit prior to serving beer and wine 
within the licensed premises due to the bar/lounge use being a conditional use for the TC zoning 
district. Staff recommends making this a condition of approval for this license. 



 The proposed business is not located within 500 feet of a school as measured by the most direct
route of pedestrian access. (C.R.S. § 44-3-313)

The Deputy City Clerk confirmed that the premises   ☒ is not   ☐ is located within 500 feet of a
school as measured by the most direct route of pedestrian access.

 The Applicant has lawful possession of the premises. (C.R.S. §§ 44-3-301, 44-3-313)

The Applicant submitted the following for the premises proposed to be licensed:

☒ Lease Agreement

☐ Deed

☐ Other: _____________________________

Complete the following information if a lease agreement was submitted:

The lease term ends on October 1, 2022.

The lease    ☐ does    ☒ does not allow for renewal of the lease.

 The premises is not within 500 feet of a Retail Liquor Store licensed under C.R.S. § 44-3-409.
(C.R.S. § 44-3-301) (applicable only for new retail liquor store licenses) N/A

The Deputy City Clerk confirmed that the premises   ☐ is not   ☐ is    located within 500 feet of
a retail liquor store, determined by a radius measurement that begins at the principal doorway
of the premises for which the application is made and ends at the principal doorway of the other
retail licensed premises.

 Needs and desires petition.

The Deputy City Clerk received the petition that was circulated to demonstrate the needs and
desires of the neighborhood from the Applicant on 02/15/2022. The petition shows that the
License application is    ☒ supported    ☐ opposed    by a majority of the neighborhood.

 Background checks.

The Applicants completed a background check through the Colorado Fingerprinting and
Leadville Police Department. Adverse comments or events    ☐ were    ☒ were not reported.

 Business is in good standing (if existing).

Applicant    ☒ is   ☐ is not  in good standing according to a review of the Colorado Secretary of
State online business database and the attached certificate of good standing.

 The premises has been inspected.

The on-site premises inspection was completed on July 25, 2022.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Before entering a decision, the Authority shall consider the following:

1. The facts and evidence adduced as a result of its investigation and findings, as well as any other
relevant facts;

2. The reasonable requirements of the neighborhood;
3. The desires of the adult residents and business owners of the neighborhood;
4. The availability of other nearby licensed establishments; and



5. Any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of the applicant for the conduct of the
business proposed, i.e. anything that would show the applicant is not qualified or fit for a liquor
license.

Although the Local Licensing Authority has some reasonable discretion in acting on an application, it 
is not unlimited. The Authority must not act arbitrarily or capriciously; it is subject to standards, limits; 
and judicial review by the District Court. Therefore, if a denial is to be considered, it must be for good 
cause, and based on the specific legal criteria. The review of the application by staff serves as the 
Authority's investigation of the application. 

Based upon its review of the documentation provided, and subject to any evidence ascertained at 
tonight's public hearing and unless no needs and desires petition is received by the hearing date, staff 
recommends:  

☐ Approval of the application

☒ Approval of the application with conditions

☐ Denial of the application

VII. MOTIONS:

Based on the testimony and evidence presented at the hearing, the Authority may approve, deny or
approve with conditions the application.  Suggested motions follow:

To approve the application with conditions, the motion may be stated as follows, or it may follow the
motion language in the Mayor’s hearing script.

“I MOVE TO APPROVE A NEW BEER AND WINE (CITY) LICENSE APPLICATION FOR ZERO DAY
COFFEE BASED ON THE FACTS AND EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE PUBLIC HEARING,
FINDINGS SET FORTH IN THE DEPUTY CITY CLERK’S COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM FOR
THIS APPLICATION, AND ANY FINDINGS OF THE AUTHORITY MADE AT THE PUBLIC HEARING
ON THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

(1) THAT THE APPLICANT OBTAIN A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FROM THE CITY PRIOR TO
SERVING BEER AND WINE ON THE LICENSED PREMISES; AND

(2) THAT THE LIQUOR LICENSE CONDITIONALLY APPROVED BY THE CITY FOR THE APPLICANT 
NOT BE EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT GRANTED
BY THE CITY TO THE APPLICANT THAT ALLOWS ALCOHOL TO BE SERVED ON THE
LICENSED PREMISES.”

[OR] 

To deny a license because the applicant or the business fails to meet a mandatory requirement of the 
state laws such as location within proximity of a school, the motion is fairly simple and must only require 
a statement or finding concerning the defect. 

“I MOVE TO DENY THE NEW BEER AND WINE (CITY) LICENSE APPLICATION FOR ZERO DAY 
COFFEE BASED ON A FINDING THAT: 



[STATE THE BASIS FOR THE DENIAL AND SPECIFICALLY REFER TO THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED 
WHICH SUPPORTS YOUR FINDING].” 

[OR] 

To deny a license request based on the needs or desires of the neighborhood or other subjective 
reasons, the Authority is advised to close the public hearing and then move to postpone the decision 
until the next regular City Council meeting to permit the City Attorney to draft findings for denial. The 
suggested motion would be: 

"I MOVE TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING AND POSTPONE THE DECISION ON THE LIQUOR 
LICENSE FOR ZERO DAY COFFEE UNTIL SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THIS SAME 
MEETING ROOM. THIS MOTION IS REQUESTED TO PERMIT THE CITY STAFF TO PREPARE 
RECOMMENDED FINDINGS FOR DENIAL TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE AUTHORITY PRIOR TO 
RENDERING A DECISION. AT THIS TIME, I AM NOT MOVING FOR DENIAL, BUT REQUEST THAT 
THE AUTHORITY CONSIDER THE PREPARED FINDINGS WHICH MAY SUPPORT SUCH A MOTION 
AT THE SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 MEETING.” 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS:

Application and supporting documentation.





Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov>

City Council Hearing on 9/6/22- IMPORTANT
1 message

Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov> Thu, Aug 25, 2022 at 2:10 PM
To: Avery & Anthony ZeroDay Coffee <zerodayleadville@gmail.com>, Chapin LaChance <planningdirector@leadville-co.gov>
Bcc: Christiana McCormick <christiana@mcm-legal.com>

Good afternoon.  I have been processing your application for a liquor license (beer and wine).  As I was processing your
information, I noticed these items:

1. Lease.  You must provide the city with a le�er from the current landlord (Regentropf, LLC) for the Zero Day Coffee
property sta�ng that the landlord intends to renew the current lease or enter into a new lease with you for the
property. This is because the current lease ends sooner than a year from the public hearing date/applica�on date. You
should provide that le�er to the city ASAP but no later than 8/31/2022 by 4 pm. If the le�er is not provided to the
city by the deadline, then the le�er should be a condi�on of approval.

2. Zoning. Unfortunately, you will need to get a Condi�onal Use Permit (CUP) to serve alcohol at Zero Day Coffee
because it is in the Transi�onal Commercial zoning district. Retail sales (<1500 SF) are a use by right, but the
bar/lounge use requires a CUP. The bar/lounge use is the only alcohol-related use in the city’s table of uses in Ch.
17.48 of the municipal code, so the retail use and the bar/lounge use is what the city relies on to say whether alcohol
sales are permi�ed in a zoning district or not for purposes of licensing.  You will be required to get a CUP as a
condi�on of approval for the liquor license if the liquor license is approved, but the city can s�ll proceed with the
hearing on the license.

I have completed and a�ached the City Council Communica�on Form (CCF) with the informa�on I have now, no�ng
the lease and zoning issues. 

This is a tenta�ve dra� based on the current informa�on I have to show you my current findings and inform you of
the need for a le�er from the landlord regarding renewing the lease and obtaining a CUP for the alcohol sales in the
TC district. 

 I am providing the link to the applica�on form for the CUP to help you get started.

CUP Application page

A�er you get the le�er from the landlord about the lease, I will update the CCF with that informa�on and provide the
updated CCF to you so you can see my updated findings.

This email will serve to complete the City's obliga�on under state law to inform the applicant of the city staff’s
findings about your applica�on no less than 5 days before the public hearing. 

If you have any questions about the CUP process, I have included our Planning Director, Chapin LaChance, to answer
any questions you may have.

If you have any questions about the liquor licensing process, please contact me.
--  

https://cityofleadville.colorado.gov/city-departments/planning-zoning/conditional-use-permit


Mayda Silver

Deputy City Clerk

Office: 719-486-0349 

800 Harrison Ave. 

Leadville, CO 80461

CCF Template for Zero Day Coffee New Liquor License.docx 
99K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7e3f770a9d&view=att&th=182d6a1a19260b8e&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_l79hb8700&safe=1&zw










X
X



































August 26th, 2022 

ZeroDay Coffee, LLC 

122 E 7th St 

Leadville, CO 80461 

Lenhardt Stevens 

Regentropf, LLC 

PO Box 29153 

Portland, OR 97296 

971.712.5936 

lenhardt@wolkencap.com 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

This letter expresses that I, Lenhardt Stevens, the landlord of 122 E 7th St, Leadville, CO 80461, 

intend to renew the current lease with Zeroday Coffee, LLC at the time of the current lease’s 

expiration on October 31st, 2022.   

 

Please contact me at your convenience with any questions or clarification on the current or future 

lease. 

 

Best wishes, 

Lenhardt Stevens 

Member of Regentropf, LLC 































































































AGENDA ITEM # 8D 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2022 

SUBJECT:   Application of PBVille, LLC dba Floyd’s Fine Cannabis for a Retail Marijuana Store 
renewal license at 1101 Poplar Street, Leadville, CO 80461 

PRESENTED BY: 

_____ORDINANCE 
__ _RESOLUTION 
__X__MOTION 
___ _INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:
Before the Leadville Marijuana Licensing Authority for consideration and decision is the annual renewal 
application for a Retail Marijuana Store license (the “License”) submitted PBVille, LLC dba Floyd’s Fine 
Cannabis (the “Applicant”) for the premises located at 1101 Poplar Street, Leadville, CO 80461.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The annual local license of the retail recreational license for PBVille, LLC dba Floyd’s Fine Cannabis at 
1101 Poplar Street expired on 8/31/2022. 

The Marijuana Licensing Authority should review the attached renewal application and determine 
if the license should be renewed.
The licensee has been in compliance with the City of Leadville Municipal codes regarding the retail 
recreational requirements. Appropriate forms and renewal application fees were filed on 8/18/2022. 
Since there is no change in ownership, premises, or operation at this time they are not required to submit 
new fingerprints.
Admin staff has received no complaints or comments from the public regarding odor or lighting issues. 
Fire Marshal Steve Boyle conducted an annual fire inspection this year and found no issues.
Deputy Clerk Mayda Silver reached out to Police Chief Hal Edwards and Police Administrative Office 
Manager Shannon Vitale. Both Chief Edwards & Shannon Vitale reported that there were no issues. 
Criteria for approval of marijuana renewal applications:

1. The renewal license fee, and late filing fee if applicable, shall accompany the

application. Such fee is nonrefundable.

2. In the event there has been a change to any of the plans identified in the license



application, including but not limited to the operating plan or security plan, the renewal plans. 

3. The renewal application shall include verification that the retail marijuana establishment has a
valid state license issued by the state licensing authority and that such license is in good standing.

4. A licensee whose license has expired for not more than ninety (90) days may file an expired
license renewal application, upon the applicant's payment of a late filing fee established pursuant to
Section 5.48.080. A licensee who files such an application and pays the late filing fee may continue to
operate until both the state and the city have taken final action to approve or deny the late renewal
application. If more than ninety (90) days have elapsed since the expiration of a permanent annual
license, the licensee must file a new license application.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: N/A

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approving the annual renewal for PBVille, LLC dba Floyd’s Fine Cannabis at 1101 Poplar Street.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

Approval, Denial, or a Continuation of Marijuana license hearing.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

Based on the testimony and evidence presented at the hearing, the Authority may approve, deny or
approve with conditions the application.  Suggested motions follow:

To approve the application, the motion may be stated as follows, or it may follow the motion language
in the Mayor’s hearing script.

“I MOVE TO APPROVE THE RETAIL MARIJUANA STORE LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR
PBVILLE, LLC DBA FLOYD’S FINE CANNABIS BASED ON THE FACTS AND EVIDENCE PRESENTED 
AT THIS HEARING, FINDINGS SET FORTH IN THE DEPUTY CITY CLERK’S COUNCIL
COMMUNICATION FORM FOR THIS APPLICATION, AND ANY FINDINGS OF THE AUTHORITY
MADE AT THE HEARING.”

[OR]

To deny a license because the applicant or the business fails to meet a mandatory requirement of the
state laws such as location within proximity of a school, the motion is fairly simple and must only require 
a statement or finding concerning the defect.

“I MOVE TO DENY THE RETAIL MARIJUANA STORE LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR
PBVILLE, LLC DBA FLOYD’S FINE CANNABIS BASED ON A FINDING THAT:

[STATE THE BASIS FOR THE DENIAL AND SPECIFICALLY REFER TO THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED
WHICH SUPPORTS YOUR FINDING].”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

Renewal application materials, receipt of renewal application fee, certificate of good standing with the
State of Colorado, lease agreements, and operational site plans as required renewal documents and form
required in Leadville Municipal Code.









Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov>

Floyd's Marijuana Renewal 
3 messages

Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov> Thu, Aug 18, 2022 at 4:14 PM
To: Hal Edwards <hedwards@leadville-co.gov>, ** Leadville City Police Admin <svitale@leadville-co.gov>, Dan Dailey
<ddailey@leadvillefire.org>, Steve Boyle <firemarshal@leadvillefire.org>

Good morning.  Floyd's has submitted a Retail Recreational Marijuana Establishment License Renewal Application for
retail.  Would you please give me any information regarding complaints, inspections, or other pertinent information for the
Staff Report I will give at the next City Council Meeting?

I appreciate your help and any information you can provide.

--  

 

Mayda Silver

Deputy City Clerk

Office: 719-486-0349  

800 Harrison Ave. 

Leadville, CO 80461

 

Hal Edwards <hedwards@leadville-co.gov> Thu, Aug 18, 2022 at 4:40 PM
To: Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov>

Mayda,
I am unaware of any complaints concerning Floyd’s of Leadville.
Thanks,
Hal Edwards 

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 18, 2022, at 4:16 PM, Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov> wrote: 

[Quoted text hidden]

Shannon Vitale <svitale@leadville-co.gov> Fri, Aug 19, 2022 at 10:02 AM
To: Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov>

I have not gotten any reports on Floyds

Shannon Vitale
Police Administrative Office Manager
Leadville Police Department 
800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, CO 80461
svitale@leadville-co.gov

mailto:cityclerk@leadville-co.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/800+Harrison+Avenue,+Leadville,+CO+80461?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:svitale@leadville-co.gov


(719) 486-1365
(719) 486-1040 FAX

[Quoted text hidden]



Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov>

Floyd's MJ Renewal 
3 messages

Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov> Fri, Aug 26, 2022 at 10:26 AM
To: Steve Boyle <firemarshal@leadvillefire.org>

Hi, Steve.  Would you please let me know when the annual fire inspection for Floyd's happened?  I need it for my City
Council Staff Form.

Thank you! 

--  

Mayda Silver

Deputy City Clerk

Office: 719-486-0349  

800 Harrison Ave. 

Leadville, CO 80461

Sender and receiver should be mindful that all my incoming and outgoing emails may be subject to the Colorado Open
Records Act, § 24-72-200.1, et seq.

 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or
taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

Steve Boyle <firemarshal@leadvillefire.org> Mon, Aug 29, 2022 at 1:21 PM
To: Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov>

If it's for 1101 Poplar St. the date of inspection was 3/2/2022
Boyle
[Quoted text hidden]

Mayda Silver Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@leadville-co.gov> Tue, Aug 30, 2022 at 9:07 AM
To: Steve Boyle <firemarshal@leadvillefire.org>

Thank you so much!  
[Quoted text hidden]





OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

OF THE STATE OF COLORADO 

CERTIFICATE OF FACT OF GOOD STANDING 

I, Jena Griswold  , as the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado, hereby certify that, according to the

records of this office, 

is a 

formed or registered on   under the law of Colorado, has complied with all applicable 

requirements of this office, and is in good standing with this office.  This entity has been assigned entity 

identification number   . 

This certificate reflects facts established or disclosed by documents delivered to this office on paper through 

 that have been posted, and by documents delivered to this office electronically through 

 @   . 

I have affixed hereto the Great Seal of the State of Colorado and duly generated, executed, and issued this 

official certificate at Denver, Colorado on   @    in accordance with applicable law. 

This certificate is assigned Confirmation Number  . 

*********************************************End of Certificate******************************************* 
Notice: A certificate issued electronically from the Colorado Secretary of State’s Web site is fully and immediately valid and effective. 

However, as an option, the issuance and validity of a certificate obtained electronically may be established by visiting the Validate a 
Certificate page of the Secretary of State’s Web site, http://www.sos.state.co.us/biz/CertificateSearchCriteria.do entering the certificate’s 
confirmation number displayed on the certificate, and following the instructions displayed. Confirming the issuance of a certificate is merely 

optional and is not necessary to the valid and effective issuance of a certificate. For more information, visit our Web site, http://

www.sos.state.co.us/ click “Businesses, trademarks, trade names” and select “Frequently Asked Questions.” 

PBVille LLC

Limited Liability Company

20171784760

08/24/2022
08/26/2022 10:46:14

08/26/2022 10:46:14
14268985

10/23/2017













Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA ITEM # 9.A 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 1.20 of the Leadville 
Municipal Code Concerning Maximum Penalties for Municipal Code Violations, 
Imprisonment for Nonpayment of Fines, and Payment of Municipal Court Fines with 
Insufficient Funds Checks (First Reading) 

PRESENTED BY: Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 

     X     ORDINANCE 
RESOLUTION 
MOTION 
INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before City Council for consideration is Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2022, (the “Ordinance”), which
amends Sections 1.20.010, 1.20.030, and 1.20.040 of Chapter 1.20 of the Leadville Municipal Code
(“Code”). The amendments in the Ordinance update the Code for consistency with current state law
governing jail time for municipal code violations and for nonpayment of municipal court fines.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Chapter 1.20 of the Code sets forth the general penalties for violations of the Code and includes
several out-of-date sections that are not consistent with current state law. The City’s municipal
judge has ensured that the municipal court’s practices are consistent with current state law, and
this Ordinance brings the outdated Code sections in line with current state law as well.

There are three sections of Chapter 1.20 that the Ordinance would amend, if adopted:

• Section 1.20.010 sets the maximum monetary and jail time penalties for violations of the
Code. The current maximum penalty for jail time under this section is one (1) year. Under
Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”) § 13-10-113(1)(a), however, the maximum jail
sentence for a municipal code violation is three hundred sixty-four (364) days. State law
changed from one year to 364 days in 2019, and the purpose was to eliminate the risk of
deportation of foreign nationals who are convicted of lower-level state and municipal
crimes. Federal immigration laws state that foreign nationals who are lawfully in the

Cityclerk
Highlight



Page 2 of 3 
 

United States are subject to removal if convicted of a state or local crime that carries the 
potential for a one-year jail sentence. The Ordinance changes the maximum jail sentence 
under the Code from one (1) year to three hundred sixty-four (364) days.  

• Section 1.20.030 establishes when a person may be jailed for nonpayment of a court fine. 
This section currently states that a person who has been convicted of a municipal code 
violation and fails to pay municipal court fines is subject to imprisonment, but the 
municipal judge must make a finding that the person had the ability to pay before 
sentencing the person to jail. This section must be updated to comply with C.R.S. § 18-1.3-
702, which sets out a procedure courts must follow when imposing fines to ensure that 
defendants are not jailed for the inability to pay a court fine or fee. Under C.R.S. § 18-1.3-
702, courts cannot sentence a defendant to jail for failing to pay a fine unless the court 
makes specific findings, after the defendant has received notice and a hearing on the 
matter, about the defendant’s ability to pay, hardship to the defendant or the defendant’s 
dependents, and whether the defendant made a good-faith effort to comply with the court 
order to pay the fine(s). The Ordinance amends the Code to ensure that it complies with 
state law by explicitly requiring the procedure in and referencing C.R.S. § 18-1.3-702. 

• Section 1.20.040 currently requires the municipal court to immediately issue a bench 
warrant (an arrest warrant issued directly by a judge, usually when someone does not 
follow the rules of the court) if a person uses a check to pay a court fine and the check 
bounces because there are insufficient funds in the person's bank account to pay the fine. 
Because C.R.S. § 18-1.3-702 requires a specific procedure before a defendant can be jailed 
for nonpayment of a court fine as described in the paragraph above, the Ordinance 
amends this section of the Code to impose a fee for payment with insufficient funds checks 
and removes the requirement for the municipal court to jail the defendant. C.R.S. § 13-21-
109 allows a fee of $20.00 to be added to the amount due when a person uses an 
insufficient funds check to make a payment, and the fee for bounced checks in the 
Ordinance is $20.00. 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 

See Background section above. 

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2022 on first reading. 

VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:  
Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Ordinance on first reading. 
2. Adopt the Ordinance on first reading with amendments. 
3. Table the Ordinance for further discussion and consideration. 

 
  



Page 3 of 3 
 

VII. PROPOSED MOTION: 

“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2022, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 1.20 of the Leadville 
Municipal Code Concerning Maximum Penalties for Municipal Code Violations, Imprisonment for 
Nonpayment of Fines, and Payment of Municipal Court Fines with Insufficient Funds Checks on first 
reading. I further move to schedule second reading of this Ordinance for City Council’s meeting on 
October 4, 2022.” 

 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2022  

 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 9 

SERIES OF 2022 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1.20 OF THE LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE CONCERNING MAXIMUM PENALTIES FOR MUNICIPAL CODE 

VIOLATIONS, IMPRISONMENT FOR NONPAYMENT OF FINES, AND PAYMENT 
OF MUNICIPAL COURT FINES WITH INSUFFICIENT FUNDS CHECKS 

WHEREAS, the City of Leadville (“City”) previously adopted general penalty provisions, 
codified in Chapter 1.20 of the Leadville Municipal Code (“Code”), including provisions 
concerning maximum jail sentences, imprisonment for nonpayment of fines, and payment of court 
fines with insufficient funds checks at Sections 1.20.010, 1.20.030, and 1.20.040, respectively; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to update Sections 1.20.010, 1.20.030, and 1.20.040 to ensure 
consistency with current state laws; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is in the best interests 
of the public health, safety and welfare.   

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO:  

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein 
by reference and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

 
Section 2. Section 1.20.010 Amended.  Section 1.20.010 of the Leadville Municipal 

Code, titled “Designated,” is hereby amended as follows with strikethrough text showing deletions 
and bold, underlined text showing additions: 

 
1.20.010 - Designated.  

 
A. No person shall violate any provisions of the ordinances of the city or of this code. 

Except in cases where a different punishment is prescribed by any ordinance of the 
city or this code, any person who violates any of the provisions of the ordinances 
of the city or of this code shall be punished by a fine of not more than two thousand 
six hundred fifty dollars ($2,650.00), or by incarceration not to exceed one 
yearthree hundred sixty-four (364) days, or by both such fine and incarceration; 
provided, however, that no person under the age of eighteen (18) years shall be 
punished by incarceration. 
 

B. Each such person shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day during 
any portion of which any violation of any provision of the ordinances of the city or 
of this code is committed, continued or permitted by any such persons, and he or 
she shall be punished accordingly. 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 9 

Series of 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 

Section 3. Section 1.20.030 Amended.  Section 1.20.030 of the Leadville Municipal 
Code, titled “Imprisonment for nonpayment of fine—Exception,” is hereby amended as follows 
with strikethrough text showing deletions and bold, underlined text showing additions: 

 
1.20.030 - Imprisonment for nonpayment of fine—Exception.  
 
Failure or refusal to pay a fine or penalty imposed by the municipal court of the city shall 
result in confinement until such time as such fine or penalty is paid. However, no person 
shall be imprisoned for failure to pay a fine imposed by the municipal court unless and 
until such court finds and determines that the defendant had the ability to pay the fine at 
the time that such payment or payments should have been made.Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the municipal court shall not issue an arrest warrant or incarcerate a 
defendant related to the defendant’s failure to pay a monetary amount unless and 
until the court has followed the procedural protections and made the required 
findings as set forth in section 18-1.3-702 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. 
 
Section 4. Section 1.20.040 Amended.  Section 1.20.040 of the Leadville Municipal 

Code, titled “Insufficient fund check—Tendered as payment of fine,” is hereby amended as 
follows with strikethrough text showing deletions and bold, underlined text showing additions: 

 
1.20.040 - Insufficient fund check—Tendered as payment of fine.  
 
A twenty dollar ($20.00) fee shall be assessed against any person who issues a check 
returned for insufficient funds in any payment of any municipal court fees and such 
fee shall be in addition to any other penalty or interest provided by law. It is unlawful 
for any person to tender to the court an insufficient fund check or draft in payment of a fine 
or costs and an attempt to pay any fine or costs imposed by the municipal court with an 
insufficient fund check or draft shall result in the immediate issuance of a bench warrant 
for the arrest of the person signing such check or draft. 
 
Section 5. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 

ordinance or enacted hereby be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment 
shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being 
that the various sections and provisions are severable. 

 
Section 6. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and 
this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done 
or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of 
this ordinance. 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 9 

Series of 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on 
first reading this 6th day of September, 2022. 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 

___________________________________ 
     Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Leadville, Colorado, on the ______ day of ______________________, 2022. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 
with any amendments, this _______ day of ___________________, 2022. 

 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on 
this ___________ day of _______________, 2022. 

 
 
 



Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA ITEM #9.B 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022: An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapters 
15.04, 15.08, 15.12, and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by 
Reference the 2018 International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential 
Code, the 2018 International Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing 
Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, the 2018 International Existing Building 
Code, the 2020 National Electrical Code, the 2018 International Energy Conservation 
Code, and the 2018 International Fire Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; 
and Providing Penalties for Violations Thereof  (Second Reading and Public Hearing) 

PRESENTED BY:  Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 

__X__ORDINANCE 
_____RESOLUTION 
_____MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before City Council on first reading is Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022 (“Ordinance”), which will
adopt, by reference the following codes, with amendments:

(a) The 2018 International Building Code;

(b) The 2018 International Residential Code;

(c) The 2018 International Mechanical Code;

(d) The 2018 International Plumbing Code;

(e) The 2018 International Fuel Gas Code;

(f) The 2018 International Existing Building Code;

(g) The 2020 National Electrical Code;

(h) The 2018 International Energy Conservation Code; and

(i) The 2018 International Fire Code.

Cityclerk
Highlight



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

In 2017, the City adopted the following building and fire codes: 

(a) The 2012 International Building Code; 

(b) The 2012 International Residential Code; 

(c) The 2012 International Mechanical Code; 

(d) The 2012 International Plumbing Code; 

(e) The 2012 International Fuel Gas Code; 

(f) The 2012 International Existing Building Code;  

(g)  The 2006 International Energy Conservation Code; and 

(h) The 2012 International Fire Code. 

All building, mechanical, and plumbing permits for construction within the City are applied for at 
the Lake County Building and Land Use Department. Additionally, Lake County then conducts or 
oversees all inspections for those permits.  

Lake County recently adopted the same building and fire codes as are being adopted in Leadville’s 
Ordinance. As a result, Lake County requested that the City adopt these codes so that the City is 
using the same codes as Lake County, ensuring efficiency in approving permits and conducting 
inspections. 

The major changes in the 2018 Codes (compared to the 2012 versions) are included as an 
attachment to this council communication form. 

The Ordinance also repeals the City’s building code board of appeals chapter (15.16) and replaces 
it with language stating that appeals of interpretations or decisions concerning the building code 
will be heard and decided on by the Lake County Board of Review. 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

N/A 

V. LEGAL ISSUES:   
 

Because the international codes and the National Electrical Code are adopted by reference, stat law 
requires a public hearing on this Ordinance prior to its adoption on second and final reading. In 
addition, state law requires that notice of the public hearing on this ordinance be published twice in 
the newspaper prior to the hearing. Notice of the hearing on this Ordinance was published in the 
Herald Democrat on August 11, 2022 and August 18, 2022.  
 
C.R.S. § 12-115-107 requires the City to adopt electrical standards that are at least as stringent as 
the version of the National Electrical Code most recently adopted by the State Electrical Board, 
which is currently the 2020 National Electrical Code. 
 
C.R.S. § 31-15-602 requires municipalities to adopt an energy conservation code when it updates its 
building codes, and the adopted energy conservation code must be one of the three most recent 



Page 3 of 3 

editions of the international energy conservation code. The three most recent energy conservation 
codes are the 2015, 2018, and 2021 editions. The City is adopting the 2018 edition. 

VI. RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that City Council adopt Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022 on second reading 
following a public hearing on the Ordinance.

VII. PROPOSED MOTION:
City Council Recommended Motion:
“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022, An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting 
Chapters 15.04, 15.08, 15.12, and 15.16 of the City of Leadville Municipal Code to Adopt by 
Reference the 2018 International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 
2018 International Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International 
Fuel Gas Code, the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2020 National Electrical 
Code, the 2018 International Energy Conservation Code, and the 2018 International Fire 
Code; Making Specific Amendments Thereto; and Providing Penalties for Violations Thereof 
on second reading.”

VIII. ATTACHMENTS:
Ordinance No. 7, Series of 2022
Redline of Ordinance No. 7 (showing changes since first reading)
Summary of Changes in 2018 International Codes



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 7 

SERIES OF 2022 

 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REENACTING CHAPTERS 15.04, 15.08, 
15.12, AND 15.16 OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT BY 
REFERENCE THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL EXISTING 
BUILDING CODE, THE 2020 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE, AND THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE; MAKING SPECIFIC AMENDMENTS THERETO; 
AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 
authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens of Leadville; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-16-201 et seq., the City may adopt any code by 
reference provided that the municipality provides proper notice and holds a public hearing prior to 
such adoption by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted by reference the following codes: the 2012 
International Building Code, the 2012 International Residential Code, the 2012 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2012 International Plumbing Code, the 2012 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2012 International Existing Building Code, the 2006 International Energy Conservation Code, 
and the 2012 International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, periodically it is necessary for the City to update those building and fire codes 
which are adopted by reference in order to remain technically current; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 12-115-107, the City is required to adopt the most 
recently adopted version of the National Electrical Code, which is currently the 2020 National 
Electrical Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt by reference the following codes: the 2018 
International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2018 International Energy Conservation Code, 
the 2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City held a public hearing on September 6, 2022, with proper notice 
provided, to consider adoption of such codes as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, copies of all codes adopted herein, will be available for inspection at the 
office of the Deputy City Clerk located at 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461; and 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds this ordinance and adoption of these codes by 
reference to be necessary in furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein by reference 
and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

Section 2. Chapter 15.04 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.04 entitled, 
“Technical Building Codes” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.04 

TECHNICAL BUILDING CODES 

Sec. 15.04.010. Codes Adopted. 

(a) The International Building Code (IBC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Building Code as if fully set out in this section with the additions, deletions, 
insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.020 of this code. 

(b) The International Residential Code (IRC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Residential Building Code (“IRC”) as if fully set out in this section with the 
additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.030 of this 
code. 

(c) The International Mechanical Code (IMC), 20128 Edition as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Mechanical Code as if fully set out in this section with the additions, deletions, 
insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.040 of this code. 

(d) The International Plumbing Code (IPC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, and as amended by the State of Colorado Plumbing Board 
and/or its successors, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Building Plumbing Code as if fully set out in this section with the additions, 
deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.050 of this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 3 

(e) The International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Building Fuel Gas Code as if fully set out in this section with the additions, 
deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.060 of this code. 

(f) The International Existing Building Code (IEBC), 2018 Edition, as published by 
the International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Existing Building Code as if fully set out in this section with the additions, 
deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.070 of this code. 

(g) The National Electrical Code (NEC), published by the National Fire Protection 
Association, One Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02269, the specific edition as 
promulgated, adopted, and amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board 
and/or its successors, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Electrical Code as if fully set out in this section. 

Sec. 15.04.020. Amendment to 2018 International Building Code. 

The 2018 IBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the City of Leadville, 
hereinafter referred to as “the IBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.2 entitled, “Permits” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.2. Permits. 

This Code shall apply to all permits applied for after the effective date of the 
Ordinance adopting by reference the 2018 IBC. 

(3) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.3 entitled, “Preemption” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.3. Preemption. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 4 

Whenever State law or State regulation imposes higher standards than are required 
by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher standard shall 
govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than the standards 
imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any governmental body, the 
standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IBC Section 101.4.3 (Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.3. Plumbing. 

The provisions of the International Plumbing Code shall apply to the installation, 
alteration, repair, and replacement of plumbing systems, including equipment, 
appliances, fixtures, fittings, appurtenances, and where connected to a water or 
sewer system and all aspects of a medical gas systems. 

(5) IBC Section 101.4.4 (Property Maintenance) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IBC Section 101.4 (Referenced Codes) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Section 101.4.8 entitled “Electrical” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.8. Electrical. 

The provisions of the National Electrical Code, the specific addition as adopted and 
amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board, and or its successor(s), shall 
apply to the installation of electrical systems, including alterations, repairs, 
replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings, and appurtenances thereto. 

(7) IBC Section 102.6 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.6. Existing Structure. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as otherwise specifically 
provided in this code, the International Existing Building Code or the International 
Fire Code. 

(8) IBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and its corresponding 
subsections are hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(9) IBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(10) IBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 5 

(11) IBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of the following: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning Department to ensure 
compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise exempted by 
this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required 
for the building if such work would normally require permits.  Exemption from the 
permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any 
work to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this code or any 
other laws or ordinances of this jurisdiction. 

The area of an exempt building in 105.2 of this section, shall be changed to two 
hundred (200) square feet to conform to that allowed under Section Rl05.2 of the 
International Residential Code. 

The following work will not require a permit: 

1) Drywall installation under two hundred (200) square feet. 
2) Window replacement not requiring change of headers or structural 

members. 
3) Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 

feet. 
4) Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 

existing structures. 

(12) IBC Section 107.1 (General) is hereby amended with a new subsection 107.1.1 
entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications” to read as 
follows: 

 

Sec. 107.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

In accordance with Section 107.1 (General), the Building Official shall require 
plans, computations, and specifications to be prepared, designed, and stamped by 
an engineer or architect licensed in the State of Colorado when, but not limited to: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 6 

1) Foundations that are not addressed within the IBC. 

2) Roof framing or wall framing is "other than standard" construction 
not conforming to the requirements of Chapters 16 and 23. 

3) All Buildings classified in Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-
4, and S occupancies. 

4) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted 
which are severely lacking in information showing compliance with 
the code, must be designed, and resubmitted by a professional 
draftsperson.   

(13) IBC Section 107.2.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

Sec. 107.2.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be dimensioned and drawn on suitable material. 
Electronic media documents are permitted to be submitted where approved by the 
Building Official. Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate 
the location, nature, and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will 
conform to the provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, as determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall provide the name of the person who prepared 
such plans and/or specifications. 

(14) IBC Section 107.3.3 (Phased Approval) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 107.3.3. Phased Approval. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a permit for the construction of 
foundations or any other part of a building or structure before the construction 
documents for the whole building or structure have been filed complying with 
pertinent requirements of this code. The holder of such permit for the foundation or 
other parts of a building or structure shall proceed at the holder’s own risk with the 
building operation and without assurance that a permit for the entire structure will 
be granted. 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 7 

the time the first permit was issued, if the remaining permits are issued within one 
year of the adoption of the new code. 

(15) IBC Section 108.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.3. Temporary Power. 

The Building Official is authorized to give permission to temporarily supply and 
use power in part of an electric installation before such installation has been fully 
completed and the final certificate of completion has been issued. The part covered 
by the temporary certificate shall comply with the requirements specified for 
temporary lighting, heat or power in the National Electrical Code or its successor 
as may be adopted by the State of Colorado Electrical Board. 

(16) IBC Section 109.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby repealed in its entirety and 
replaced to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix A. 

(17) IBC Section 109.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be no less than twice the normal permit 
fee for the work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections. 

(18) IBC Section 109.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official is authorized to establish a refund policy. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than eighty percent 
(80%) of the permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in 
accordance with this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing 
within one hundred eighty (180) days of the original fee payment. If a plan review 
was charged and appropriate plan review performed, no portion of this part of fee 
is refundable. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 8 

(19) IBC Section 110.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.1. General. 

Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain visible and able 
to be accessed for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an 
inspection shall not be constructed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions 
of this code or of other ordinances of the City. Inspections presuming to give 
authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this code or other ordinances of the 
city shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of the owner or the owner’s authorized 
agent to cause the work to remain visible and able to be accessed for inspection 
purposes. Neither the Building Official nor the city shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix D. 

(20) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.3. Required Inspections. 

The Building Official, upon notification, shall make the inspections set forth in 
Sections 110.3.1 through 110.3.12. 

(21) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended with the addition of a 
new subsection 110.3.12. entitled, “Reinspection” to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.3.12. Reinspection. 

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected and required work that has been requested by the Building Official is not 
complete or requires an additional inspection. 

(22) IBC Section 111.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 111.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. The temporary certificate of occupancy 
is valid for sixty (60) days, with one (1) renewal of sixty (60) days permitted at the 
discretion of the Building Official. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 9 

(23) IBC Section 113 (Board of Appeals), and its subsections, are amended by replacing 
“Board of Appeals” with the “Board of Review.” 

(24) IBC Section 502.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 502.1. Address Identification. 

New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address identification. 
Each character shall be not less than five (5) inches in height and not less than one 
half inch (1/2 inch) in width. 

(25) IBC Section 901.5 (Acceptance Tests) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new subsection 901.5.1 entitled “Special Inspector” to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.5.1. Special Inspector. 

All fire protection systems required by this chapter shall be inspected and approved 
by a special inspector. The inspector shall be an employee of the fire department 
having jurisdiction or another qualified individual with prior approval of the 
Building Official. Inspections and approvals shall be documented and submitted as 
per Chapter 17 of this code. 

(26) IBC Section 1301.1.1 (Criteria) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1301.1.1. Criteria. 

Buildings shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

(27) IBC Section 1505.1 (General), Table 105.1 (Minimum Roof Covering 
Classification for Types of Construction) is hereby amended by the deletion of 
superscript “a.” 

(28) IBC Section 1608 (Snow Loads) shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1608. Snow Loads. 

Snow load calculations shall be based on values provided for in Appendix E. 

(29) IBC Chapter 27 (Electrical) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(30) IBC Section 2901.1 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 10 

Sec. 2901.1. Scope. 

The provisions of this chapter and the International Plumbing Code shall govern 
the design, construction, erection, and installation of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems used in buildings and structures covered by this 
code. Toilet and bathing rooms shall be constructed in accordance with Section 
1209. The International Fire Code, the International Property Maintenance Code 
and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the use and maintenance of 
plumbing components, appliance, equipment, and systems. The International 
Existing Building Code and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the 
alteration, repair, relocation, replacement, and addition of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems. 

Sec. 15.04.030. Amendment to 2018 International Residential Code. 

The 2018 IRC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IRC Section R101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.1. Title. 

These provisions shall be known as the Residential Code for One and Two-Family 
Dwellings of the City of Leadville, and shall be cited as such and will be referred 
to herein as “the IRC” and “this code.” 

(2) IRC Section R101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.2. Scope. 

The provisions of this code shall be apply to the construction, alteration, movement, 
enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, removal 
and demolition of detached one and two-family dwellings and townhouses not more 
than three (3) stories above grade plan in height with a separate means of egress 
and their accessory structures not more than three (3) stories above grade plane in 
height. 

Exemptions:  

1. Existing building permits prior to the effective date of this code, along with 
all approved extensions, shall remain in effect and shall be subject to the 
International Residential Code, 2012 edition. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 11 

2. Existing buildings undergoing repair, alterations or additions, and change 
of occupancy shall be permitted to comply with the International 
Residential Code, 2012 Edition, if the work was originally permitted under 
this code within one year of the adoption of the 2018 code. 

(3) IRC Section R101.2.2 (Other Laws) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R101.2.2. Other Laws. 

The provision of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, 
state, or federal law. Whenever a State law or regulation imposes higher standards 
than are required by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher 
standard shall govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than 
the standards imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any 
governmental body, the standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IRC Section R102.7 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R102.7. Existing Structures. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as is specifically covered in 
this code, or the International Fire Code, or as is deemed necessary by the Building 
Official for the general safety and welfare of the occupants and the public.  

(5) IRC Section R103 (Department of Building Safety) is hereby amended to change 
the title to Department of Building. 

(6) IRC Section R104.8 (Liability) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R104.8. Liability. 

The Building Official, member of the board of appeals or employee charged with 
the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction in good faith and 
without malice in the discharge of the duties required by this code or other pertinent 
law or ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered civilly or criminally liable 
personally and is hereby relieved from personal liability for any damage accruing 
to persons or property as a result of any act or by reason of an act or omission in 
the discharge of official duties. 

The issuance of a permit based on plans, specifications and other data shall not 
prevent the Building Official from thereafter requiring the correction of errors on 
said plans, specifications, and other data, or from preventing building operations 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 12 

being carried on thereunder, when in violation of this code, or any other Ordinance, 
or from collecting additional fees as appropriate. Nothing in this code is intended 
to authorize any person or agency with development review authority, other than 
the Building Official, to deny the issuance of a building permit hereunder. 

The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all of the 
provisions of this code; however, a guarantee that all building(s) and all structures 
have been constructed in accordance with all of the provisions of this code is neither 
intended nor implied. 

(7) IRC Section R105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby as follows with 
deletions shown in strikethrough text and additions shown in underlined text: 

Sec. R105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Building: 

* * * 

2. Fences not over 7 feet (2134 mm) high. Fences six (6) feet or less in 
height. 

* * * 

11. Drywall installation in buildings under two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

12. Window replacement whereby installing code compliant windows 
that do not require a change of headers or structural members. 

13. Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

14. Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 
existing structures. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning and Zoning Department 
to ensure compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 13 

exempted by this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may 
be required for the building if such work would normally require permits. 

(8) IRC Section R106.1.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is amended as 
follows: 

Sec. R106.1.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be drawn upon suitable material. Electronic media 
documents are permitted to be submitted where approved to the Building Official. 
Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature, 
and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the 
provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, as 
determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall give the name of the person who prepared such 
plans and specifications. 

(9) IRC Section R106.3.2 (Previous Approvals) is hereby amended to add a new 
paragraph as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.2. Previous Approvals. 

*     *     * 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the immediately preceding permit was issued, if the remaining permits are 
issued within one year of the adoption of the new code. 

(10) IRC Section R106.3 (Examination of Documents) is hereby amended with the 
addition of a new subsection R106.3.4 entitled “Responsibility for Preparation of 
Plans and Specifications” to read as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.4. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications to be 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed in the State of 
Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations that are not addressed within the International Residential 
Code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 14 

2) Wall or roof framing is "other than standard" construction not conforming 
to the requirements of Chapters 6 and 8, 

3) Foundations are located in designated dipping bedrock areas and per 
Sections R403.1.8; 

4) Metal buildings and structures are constructed; or 
5) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted which are 

severely lacking in information showing compliance with the code, must be 
designed and resubmitted by a professional draftsperson. 

(11) IRC Section R107.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended by the replacement of 
reference to the “NFPA 70” with “the National Electrical Code as may be revised 
by the State of Colorado Electrical Board.” 

(12) IRC Section R108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. R108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

Permit fees shall be as determined by Appendix A. 

(13) IRC Section R108.5 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.5. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance with 
this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing within 180 days of 
the original fee payment. If a plan review fee was charged and appropriate plan 
review performed, no portion of this part of the fee is subject to refund. 

(14) IRC Section R108.6 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.6. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be twice the normal permit fee for the 
work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections necessary. 

(15) IRC Section R109 (Inspections) and all of its subsections are hereby repealed in its 
entirety and replaced as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 15 

R109.1. General  

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix D. 

R109.2 Reinspection.   

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected, and required work that has been requested by the Building Official, is 
not complete and requires an additional inspection. 

R109.3 Sanitation.   

At the time of construction start-up, approved sanitary facilities are required at all 
construction jobs.  The number of toilets shall be adequate for the number of 
construction workers, but no less than the number deemed necessary by the 
Building Official, or as called for in the adopted plumbing code. If a construction 
site becomes inactive for a period of time, the portable toilet may be removed 
during this period of inactivity. Temporary toilets or use of a neighboring facility 
may be used if approved by the Building Official. 

R109.4 Dumpsters.   

Dumpsters or equivalent containers of adequate size to handle trash and unwanted 
materials from the permitted project shall be provided. 

(16) IRC Section R110.4 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R110.4 Temporary occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit provided the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

1. One bathroom with lavatory, water closet, tub or shower, and 
flooring has been completed. 

2. A food preparation area, with sink, hot and cold water, and flooring 
has been completed. 

3. Electrical system is complete for areas that are to be finished, or 
blanked off in unfinished areas. 

4. Egress windows where required by this code are installed. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 16 

5. A heating system is operational as required by Section R303.9, 
Required Heating. 

6. The exterior is complete and watertight with siding, trim, flashing 
and a roof. 

7. Handrails and guardrails are in place. 

8.  All life-safety systems as determined necessary by the Building 
Official are in place. 

(17) IRC Section R112 (Board of Appeals), and all subsections thereof, is hereby 
amended with the replacement of “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.”  

(18) IRC Section R202 (Definitions) is hereby amended with the addition of the 
following definition of “bedroom” to appear in alphabetical order with the existing 
definitions: 

Sec. R202. Definitions. 

* * * 

BEDROOM. A room, which is designed as a sleeping room, in Group R 
occupancies or a room, or area that can be used as a sleeping room and contains a 
closet. 

* * * 

(19) IRC Section R301.2 (Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria) is hereby amended 
with the repeal and replacement of Table R301.2 to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 17 

(20) IRC Section R301.2.3 (Snow Loads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R301.2.3. Snow Loads. 

Snow load values shall be determined by the data in Appendix E. 

(21) IRC Section R301.5 (Live Load), Table R301.5, is hereby amended by the deletion 
of the data in rows “Balconies (exterior) and decks” and “Fire Escapes”, the 
addition of a footnote (i) in such rows, and the addition of a footnote (i) to read as 
follows: 

(j) The minimum uniformly distributed live loads for exterior balconies, decks 
and fire escapes shall be as required for roof snow loads with pitches 
between 0 and 3:12 at the elevation listed in Appendix E, when such 
structures are exposed to snow loading. Otherwise, a live load of 60 psf shall 
be used.  For decks subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the 
design load shall be determined from the formula in Section 7.9, ASCE 7-
02, published by the American Society of Civil Engineers. 

(22) IRC Section R302.5.1 (Opening Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.5.1. Opening Protection. 

Openings from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping purposes 
shall not be permitted. Other openings between the garage and residence shall be 
equipped with a solid wood door not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) in thickness or 
solid or honeycomb-core steel doors not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) thick, 
equipped with a self-closing or automatic-closing device. 

(23) IRC Section R302.7 (Under-Stair Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.7. Under-Stair Protection. 

Enclosed space under stairs that is accessed by a door or access panel shall have 
walls, under-stair surface and any soffits protected on the enclosed side with 5/8-
inch Type X gypsum board. 

(24) IRC Section R303.1(Habitable Rooms) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Exception # 4 to read as follows: 

Sec. R303.1. Habitable Rooms. 

* * * 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 18 

4. Where a room is designed specifically for a home theater, the 
provisions of this section need not be required provided the conditions of 
Exceptions 1. and 2. above are met.  A separate means of egress is not 
required for these rooms, regardless of whether they are located in a 
basement or elsewhere, unless the seating capacity exceeds ten (10) persons. 

(25) IRC Section 303.7 (Interior Stairway Illumination) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. R303.7. Interior Stairway Illumination. 

Interior stairways shall be provided with an artificial light source to illuminate the 
landings and treads. The light source shall be capable of illuminating treads and 
landings of not less than one (1) footcandle (11 lux) as measured at the center of 
treads and landings. There shall be a wall switch at each floor level to control the 
light switch where the stairway has six or more risers, as required by the current 
NEC. 

Exception: A switch is not required where remote, central, or automatic control of 
lighting is provided. 

(26) IRC Section R309.5 (Fire Sprinklers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R309.5. Fire Sprinklers. 

Private garages may be protected by fire sprinklers where the garage wall has been 
designed based on Table R302.1(2). Note a. Sprinklers in garages shall be 
connected to an automatic sprinklers system that complies with Section P2094. 
Garage sprinklers shall be residential sprinklers or quick-response sprinklers, 
designed to provide a density of 0.05 gpm/ft. Garage doors shall not be considered 
obstructions with respect to sprinkler placement. If such sprinklers are installed, 
they must meet the standards of this code. 

(27) IRC Section R311.7.5.1 (Risers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.1. Risers. 

The maximum riser height shall be eight (8) inches. The riser height shall be 
measured vertically between leading edges of the adjacent treads. The greatest riser 
height within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). Risers shall be vertical or sloped from the underside of the nosing of the 
tread above at any angle not more than thirty (30) degrees (0.51 rad) from the 
vertical. At open risers, openings located more than thirty (30) inches (762 mm), as 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 19 

measured vertically, to the floor or grade below shall not permit the passage of 4-
inch diameter (102 mm) sphere. Exterior open risers are permitted provided the 
opening between treads does not permit the passage of a 6-inch diameter sphere. 

Exceptions: 

1. The openings between adjacent treads is not limited on spiral stairways. 

2. The riser height of spiral stairways shall be in accordance with Section 
R311.7.10.1. 

(28) IRC Section R311.7.5.2 (Treads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.2. Treads. 

The minimum tread depth shall be nine (9) inches. The tread depth shall be 
measured horizontally between the vertical planes of the foremost projection of 
adjacent treads and at a right angle to the tread’s leading edge. The greatest tread 
depth within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). 

(29) IRC Section R312.1.3 (Opening Limitations), Exception 1 is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Sec. R312.1.3. Opening Limitations. 

* * * 

Exceptions: 

1. Required guards on open sides of exterior stairways, raised floor areas, 
balconies, and porches shall have immediate rails or ornamental closures, 
which do not allow passage of a sphere of six (6) inches or more in diameter. 

(30) IRC Section R313.1 (Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.1. Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in townhomes. If such sprinkler 
systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 20 

(31) IRC Section R313.2 (One-and two-family dwellings automatic sprinkler systems) 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.2. One – and Two- Family Dwellings Automatic Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in one- or two-family dwellings. If 
such sprinkler systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 

(32) IRC Section 315.2.2 (Alterations, repairs and additions) is amended to delete 
exception 2 in its entirety. 

(33) IRC Section R319.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R319.1. Address Identification. 

All new buildings shall have address characters identifying the property address, 
displayed and plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the 
property.   Address characters shall be affixed to the side of the building facing the 
street on which the property is addressed or affixed to a sign or post located adjacent 
to the street on which the property is addressed.  Address numbers shall be of a 
color and/or material that contrast with the background on which they are mounted. 

Address characters affixed to the building or to a sign or post shall be at least 5 
inches in height.  For buildings located more than 150 feet from the shoulder or 
curb of the street, there shall be, address characters affixed to a sign or post. This 
sign or post shall be located 25 feet or less from the shoulder or curb of the street 
and shall have address characters at least five inches in height. 

The Building Official may approve alternate building address signage. 

(34) IRC Section R404.1.3 (Concrete Foundation Walls) is hereby amended with the 
addition of the following paragraph: 

Sec. R404.1.3. Concrete Foundation Walls. 

* * * 

Minimum reinforcing for concrete foundation walls that are not specified by a 
Professional Engineer or not designed according to the tables listed in this section 
shall have grade 40, #4 bars on 24-inch centers both horizontally and vertically. 

(35) IRC Section R905.2.7 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 21 

Sec. R905.2.7. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(36) IRC Section R905.3.3 (Underlayment) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.3.3. Underlayment. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(37) IRC Section R905.4.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.4.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(38) IRC Section R905.5.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.5.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 22 

extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(39) IRC Section 905.6.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.6.3.1 Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(40) IRC Section R905.7.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.7.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(41) IRC Section R905.8.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. R905..3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(42) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), Table 
N1002.1.2, Row 7 and 8 is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 23 

 
(43) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), Table 

N1002.1.2, is hereby amended with the addition of a new footnote (j) to read as 
follows: 
 
(j) A maximum U-factor of 0.32 shall apply in climate Zones 3 through 8 to 
vertical fenestration products installed in buildings located either: 

1.   Above 4,000 feet in elevation, or 
2.   In windborne debris regions where protection of openings is 

required by Section R301.2.1.2 

(44) IRC Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) (Testing) is amended to add the following 
sentence to the initial paragraph:  

Mitigation of testing results are specified in the Lake County Building Department 
blower door testing policy. 

(45) IRC Section M1307.5 (Electrical Appliances) is hereby amended with a new title, 
“Appliances”. M1307.5 (Appliances) is further amended with the addition of two 
new subsections to read as follows: 

Sec. M1307.5.1 Electrical appliances. 

Electrical appliances shall be installed in accordance with Chapters 14, 15, 19, 20, 
and 34 through 43 of this code. 

Sec. M1307.5.2 LPG appliances.   

LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, upon 
approval of the Building Official. 

(46) Chapter 14 (Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances) is hereby amended 
with the addition of a new section M1416 entitled, “Unvented Room Heaters” to 
read as follows: 

 

CLIMATE 
ZONE 

FENESTRATION 
U-FACTOR 

SKYLIGHT 
U-FACTOR 

GLAZED 
FENESTRATION 

SHGC 

CEILING 
R-VALUE 

WOOD 
FRAME 

WALL R-
VALUE 

MASS 
WALL R-
VALUE 

FLOOR 
R- 
VALUE 

BASEMENT 
WALL 
R-VALUE 

SLAB 
R-VALUE 
& DEPTH 

7 and 8 0.30 [j] 0.55 NR 49 20 + 5[h] or 
13 + 10 

19/21 38[g] 15/19 10, 4 ft 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 24 

Sec. M1416. Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwellings and 
townhouses. 

(47) IRC Section 1502.4.4 (Dryer Exhaust Duct Power Ventilators) is hereby amended 
with the addition of a new subsection 1502.4.4.1 entitled, “Specified Length” to 
read as follows: 

Sec. 1502.4.4.1. Specified Length. 

The code official shall be provided with a copy of installation instructions for the 
make and model of dryer. 

(48) IRC Section G2406.2 (303.3) (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by deletion 
of Exceptions 3 and 4 and by the addition of a new Exception 7 to read as follows: 

Sec. G206.2 (303.3). Prohibited Locations. 

7. LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, 
upon approval of the Building Official. 

(49)  IRC Section G2417.4.1 (406.4.1) (Test Pressure) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. G2417.4.1 (406.4.1). Test Pressure. 

The test pressure to be used shall not be less than one and one half time the proposed 
maximum working pressure but not less than 15 psig, irrespective of design 
pressure.  Where the test pressure exceeds 125 psig, the test pressure shall not 
exceed a value that produces a hoop stress in the piping greater than fifty percent 
(50%) of the specified minimum yield strength of the pipe. 

(50) IRC Section G2445 (General) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. G2445  General. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwelling units and 
townhouses. 

(51) IRC Section P2503.5.1 (Rough Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 25 

Sec. P2503.5.1. Rough Plumbing. 

DWV systems shall be tested on completion of the rough piping installation by 
water or by air, without evidence of leakage. Either test shall be applied to the 
drainage system in its entirety or in sections after rough-in piping has been installed, 
as follows: 

1. Water Test. Each section shall be filled with water to a point not less than 
five (5) feet (1524 mm) above the highest fitting connection in that section, 
or to the highest point in the competed system. Water shall be held in the 
section under test for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. The system shall 
prove leak free by visual inspection. 

2. Air test. The portion under test shall be maintained at a gauge pressure of 
five (5) pounds per square inch (psi) (34 kPa) or ten (10) inches of mercury 
column (34 kPa). This pressure shall be held without introduction of 
additional air for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. 

(52) IRC Section P2603.5.1 (Sewer Depth) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. P2603.5.1. Sewer Depth. 

Building sewers that connect to private sewer disposal systems shall be installed 
deep enough to protect from physical damage and the slope must be adequate to 
eliminate the possibilities of freezing. 

(53) IRC Section E3401 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection E3401.5 entitled, “Meter Protection” to read as follows: 

Sec. E3401.5. Meter Protection. 

The Building Official may require a utility-owned electric meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(54) IRC Section E3703 (Required Branch Circuits) is hereby amended with the addition 
of a new subsection E3703.5 entitled, “Electric Vehicle Charging Branch Circuit” 
to read as follows: 

Sec. E3703.5. Electric Vehicle Charging Branch Circuit. 

All single-family homes shall be made EV-ready for charging by preinstalling 
conduit or conductors during construction of the house.  Designate enough space 
and capacity on the main electrical panel or a garage subpanel for at least 40 amp, 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 26 

240V dedicated branch circuit.  Install conduit or conductors linking the electrical 
panel to the future location of the EV charger, near where cars will be parked in the 
garage or driveway. The Building Official may grant an exception in unique 
situations if a significant hardship is determined in acquiring the level of service 
necessary to meet this requirement. 

Sec. 15.04.040. Amendment to 2018 International Mechanical Code. 

The 2018 IMC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IMC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Mechanical Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IMC” or as “this code.” 

(2) IMC Section 106.5.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IMC Section 106.5.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 27 

(4) IMC Section 109 (Means of Appeal) and all of its subsections are amended by 
replacing the phrase “Board of Appeal” to “Board of Review.” 

(5) IMC Section 301.2 (Energy Utilization) is amended to read:  

Sec. 301.2  Energy Utilization.  

Heating, ventilating and air-conditioning systems of all structures shall be 
designated and installed for efficient utilization of energy in accordance with the 
International Energy Conservation Code, 2018 edition. 

(6) IMC Section 1204.2 (Required Thickness) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1204.2. Required Thickness. 

Hydronic piping shall be insulated to the thickness required by the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

Sec. 15.04.050. Amendment to 2018 International Plumbing Code. 

The 2018 IPC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Plumbing Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IPC” or “this code.” 

(2) IPC Section 106.6.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IPC Section 312.1 (Required Tests) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 312.1. Required Tests. 

The permit holder shall make the appliable tests prescribed in Sections 312.2 
through 312.10 to determine compliance with the provisions of this code. The 
permit holder shall give reasonable advance notice to the code official when the 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 28 

plumbing work is ready for tests. The equipment, material, power and labor 
necessary for the inspection and test shall be furnished by the permit holder and he 
or she shall be responsible for determining that the work will withstand the test 
pressure prescribed in the following tests. Plumbing system piping shall be tested 
with either water or by air. 

(4) IPC Section 312.3 (Drainage and Vent Air Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.3. Drainage and Vent Air Test. 

An air test shall be made by forcing air into the system until there is a uniform 
gauge pressure of 5 psi (34.6 kPA) or sufficient to balance a 10-inch (254 mm) 
column of mercury. This pressure shall be held for a test period of note less than 15 
minutes. Any adjustments to the test pressure required because of changes in 
ambient temperatures or the seating of gaskets shall be made prior to the beginning 
of the test periods. 

(5) IPC Section 312.4 (Drainage and Vent Final Test) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IPC Section 312.5 (Water Supply System Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.5. Water Supply System Test. 

Upon completion of a section of or the entire water supply system, the system, or 
portion completed, shall be tested and proved tight under a water pressure not less 
than the working pressure of the system or by an air test of not less than 50 psi (344 
kPA). This pressure shall be held for not less than 15 minutes. The water utilized 
for tests shall be obtained from a potable source of supply. The required tests shall 
be performed in accordance with this section and Section 107. 

(7) IPC Section 903.1 (Roof Extension) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 903.1. Roof Extension. 

Open vent pipes that extend through a roof shall be terminated not less than 18 
inches above the roof, or six inches above the anticipated snow accumulation, 
except that where a roof is to be used for any purpose other than weather protection, 
the vent extensions shall terminate not less than 7 feet (2134 mm) above the roof. 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 29 

Sec. 15.04.060. Amendment to 2018 International Fuel Gas Code. 

The 2018 IFGC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IFGC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Fuel Gas Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IFGC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFGC Section 102 (Applicability) is hereby amended with a new subsection 102.12 
entitled, “Utility-Owned Gas Meters” to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.12. Utility-Owned Gas Meters. 

The Building Official may require that a utility-owned gas meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(3) IFGC Section 103 (Department of Inspection) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IFGC Section 104.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 104.1. General. 

The Leadville Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce the 
provisions of this code. 

(5) IFGC Section 106.6.2 (Fee schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be provided for as in Appendix B. 

(6) IFGC Section 106.6.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 30 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(7) IFGC Section 109 (Means of Appeal), and all subsections thereto, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with Board of Review.” 

(8) IFGC Section 201.3 (Terms Defined in Other Codes) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 201.3. Terms Defined in Other Codes. 

Where terms are not defined in this code and are defined in the National Electrical 
Code, International Building Code, International Fire Code, International 
Mechanical Code, or International Plumbing Code, such terms shall have meanings 
ascribed to them as in those codes. 

(9) IFGC Section 303.3 (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by deleting 
Exceptions 3 and 4. 

Sec. 15.04.070. Amendment to 2018 International Existing Building Code. 

The 2018 IEBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IEBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Existing Building Code of City of 
Leadville, Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IEBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IEBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and all of its subsections are 
hereby deleted. 

(3) IEBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 31 

(4) IEBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(5) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of new paragraph to read as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for the proposed work does not 
preclude any required approval from the City to insure compliance with zoning, 
use, and property setbacks.  Unless otherwise exempted by this Code, separate 
plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required for the building if 
such work would normally require permits.  Exemption from the permit 
requirements of this Code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any work 
to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this Code or any other 
laws, ordinances or resolutions of this jurisdiction. 

(6) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended further by 
adding to the Building section for projects that do not require a work permit to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

Building. 

* * * 

7. Door and door frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
8. Window replacement whereby replacing with code compliant windows and 

window frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
9. Insulation installation less than 200 square feet in existing structures. 
10. Removal and replacement of exterior siding materials less than 200 square 

feet. 

(7) IEBC Section 106.1 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection 106.1.1 entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and 
Specifications” to read as follows: 

 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 32 

Sec. 106.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed to practice in 
the State of Colorado when, but not limited to the following structure designs: 

1. Foundations are constructed on caissons or any other method other than 
spread footings. 

2. Roof framing or wall framing is other than conventional light-frame 
construction in accordance with AP&PA Wood Frame Construction 
Manual (WFCM). 

3. Buildings in which confirmation is required of beam sizes and spans, 
loading, or any structural element affecting the integrity of the building 
unless otherwise demonstrated to the Building Official’s satisfaction. 

4. Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted by a 
professional draftsperson. 

(8) IEBC Section 108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

On buildings, gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees provided for in Appendices A and B. 

(9) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to an investigation fee as established by Section 108.4.1. 

(10) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby further 
amended with the addition of a new subsection 108.4.1. entitled, “Investigation 
Fee” to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4.1. Investigation Fee. 

An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be collected whether or not 
a permit is then or subsequently issued.  The investigation fee shall be equal to the 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 33 

amount of the permit fee required by this code and per the Schedule of Fees as set 
forth in the Appendices to this Chapter 15.04 of the Municipal Code.  The minimum 
investigation fee shall be the same as the minimum fee set forth in the Schedule of 
Fees as provided for in Appendices A and B.  The payment of such investigation 
fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of this 
code nor from any penalty prescribed by law. 

(11) IEBC Section 108.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of any fee paid hereunder which 
was erroneously paid or collected if an audit of the project has been performed and 
the audit shows that the fees were paid incorrectly.  If an owner or owner's 
representative feels that a fee is erroneously paid or collected, an audit may be 
required by the Building Official.  The audit shall be performed by an auditor 
selected by the City.  The project owner or owner's representative shall pay the cost 
of the audit. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance 
with this code. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for which a plan review fee 
has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan reviewing is done. 

The Building Official shall not authorize refunding of any fee paid except on 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the 
date of fee payment. 

(12) IEBC Section 109.6 (Approval Required) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
109.6.1 entitled, “Inspection Record Card” to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.6.1. Inspection Record Card. 

An inspection record card shall be issued to the holder of a building permit or an 
agent of the permit holder to allow the Building Official to readily make entries 
thereon regarding the inspection approval of work.  The building permit holder shall 
keep this inspection record card available to the Building Official on the project site 
until final building inspection approval has been granted by the Building Official. 

(13) IEBC Section 110.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 34 

Sec. 110.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. 

(14) IEBC Section 112 (Board of Appeals) and its accompanying subsections, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.” 

(15) IEBC Section 112.1 (General) is hereby amended to reads as follows: 

Sec. 112.1. General. 

Appeals from the decision of the Building Official shall be filed with the Board of 
Review by filing a written appeal within sixty (60) days after the date of the 
Building Official’s decision. 

(16) IEBC Section 1301.3.2 (Compliance with Other Codes) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 1301.3.2. Compliance with Other Codes. 

Buildings that are evaluated in accordance with this section shall comply with the 
International Fire Code. 

(17) IEBC Section 1401.2 (Conformance) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1401.2. Conformance. 

The building shall be safe for human occupancy as determined by the International 
Fire Code. Any repair, alteration, or change of occupancy undertaken within the 
moved structure shall comply with the requirements of this code applicable to the 
work being performed. Any field-fabricated elements shall comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Code or the International Residential 
Code as applicable.  

(18) IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding American Society of 
Mechanical Engineers (“ASME”) referenced standards is amended to read as 
follows: 

 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 35 

ASME 

Standard 
reference 
number Title 

Referenced 
in code 

section number 
ASME/A17.1 
2019/CSA B44-07 

Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators – with A17.1a/CSA B44a-
08 Addenda 

 

410.8.2, 705.1.2, 902.1.2  

 

A17.3—2005 as 
implemented in 7 
CCR1101 – 8, 
Section 2-6-2 

 

Safety Code for Existing Elevators 
and Escalators 

 

902.1.2 

 

A18.1--2017 

 

Safety Standard for Platform Lifts 
and Stairway Lifts 410.8.3, 705.1.3 

(19) IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding International Code Council, 
Inc., is amended with the deletion of any reference to the International Property 
Management Code. 

Sec. 15.04.080. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the Codes adopted in this chapter.  In addition to 
other sanctions set forth in the adopted Codes, a person or entity who violates the provisions 
of any such Code shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in section 1.20.010 of this 
code.  Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall immediately 
cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property, or to 
the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state the conditions 
under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 
shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any person who 
shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop work order, 
except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 
condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 36 

Sec. 15.04.090. Appendices. 

Appendix A 

BUILDING PERMIT FEE CALCULATION 

Cost per square foot figures taken from the ICC’s  publication, Building 
Valuation Data & will be updated annually 

Type of Space Area per square foot Cost per square 
foot 

Value 

Living (Wood 
Frame) 

    X   $150.87   

Living (IRC 
Modular) 

    X   $75.44   

Unfinished 
Basement 

    X   $23.20   

Garage / 
Storage 

    X   $60.43   

Deck / Porch / 
Carport 

    X   $60.43   

Remodel 
(Materials) 

    X   2 (for labor)   

          
Total Value   

  

__________ + (_______________ X ________________)      =   _____________________ 

Initial Fee         cost per additional    # of additional      BASE PERMIT FEE 

______________+    0.65   x ___________________     =  _____________________ 

Base Permit Fee       PLAN REVIEW FEE 

             

     TOTAL FEE   _________________ 

         Driveway    _ _______________ 

             GRAND TOTAL _________________ 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 37 

Other Fees: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

1   
2 Reinspection fee $50.00/Hr. 
3 Consultation fee $$50Hr. 
4 Additional plan review required by changes, additions or 

revisions 
$62.50 base fee 

+ $62.50 per 
half hour of 

review 
5 Outside consultant for plan review and/or inspections Cost + 20% 
6 Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) $150.00 for 90 

days 
7 Solar Permit – Residential $150.00 
8 Solar Permit - Commercial $300.00 
9 Appeals $50.00 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 38 

APPENDIX B 

Schedule of Permit Fees for Work Done Under: 

a) International Fuel Gas Code 

b) International Mechanical Code 

c) International Plumbing Code 

d) Roofing Permit 

 
 Table 1-A Building Permit Fees 

Total Valuation Fees Based on  2018 IRC Appendix L 

$1.00 to $500.00 $24.00  

$501.00 to 
$2,000.00 

$24.00 for the first $500.00 plus $3.00 for each additional 
$100.00 or fraction of, to and including the $2,000.00 

$2,001.00 to 
$40,000.00 

$69.00 for the first $2,000.00 plus $11.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$40,000.00 

$40,001.00 to 
$100,00.00 

$487.00 for the first $40,000.00 plus $9.10 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$100,000.00 

$100,001.00 to 
$500,000.00 

$1,027.00 for the first $100,000.00 plus $7.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$500,000.00 

$500,001.00 to 
$1,000,000.00 

$3,827.00 for the first $500,000.00 plus $5.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$1,000,000.00 

$1,000,001.00 to 
$5,000,000.00 

$6,327.00 for the first $1,000,000.00 plus $3.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$5,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 and 
up 

$18,327.00 for the first $5,000,000.00 plus $1.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 39 

  Valuation of Work          Permit Fee  

 

Base Permit Fee................................................................$50.00 

More than $2,000, but not more than $50,000 ..............$16.00 for each $1,000 valuation 
or fraction thereof 

More than $50,000, but not more than $500,000...........$250.00 plus $13.00 for each 
$1,000 valuation or fraction thereof  

More than $500,000.........................................................$1,500 plus $11.00 for 
each $1,000 valuation or fraction thereof 

These are the fees in effect as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance. The fee 
schedule may be updated annually. 

APPENDIX C 

Reserved 

APPENDIX D 

Schedule of Inspections for work done under either the International Building Code or the 
International Residential Code 

General. Construction of work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain accessible and exposed 
for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be 
construed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions of this Code or of other 
ordinances or the jurisdiction. Inspections presuming to give authority to violate or cancel 
the provisions of this Code or of other ordinances shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of 
the permit applicant to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for inspection 
purposes.  Neither the Building Official nor the jurisdiction shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspection Record Card.  Work requiring a building permit shall not be commenced until 
the permit holder or his agent shall have posted an inspection card in a conspicuous place 
on the premises and in a position as to allow the Building Official to make the required 
entries conveniently thereon regarding inspection of the work. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 40 

Required Inspections.  The Building Official, upon 24-hour notification, shall make the 
inspections set forth below as well as other inspections as needed. 

Concrete Slab or Under-Floor Inspection.   To be made after in-slab or under-floor 
reinforcing steel and building service equipment, conduit, piping accessories and other 
ancillary equipment items are in place, but before any concrete is placed or floor sheathing 
installed, including the subfloor. 

Damp proofing Inspection.  A damp proofing inspection may be required prior to back-
fill unless otherwise approved by the Building Official. Damp proofing may be required 
by Section R406. A perimeter drain inspection may be made at this time if such drain is 
required by this code. 

Final Inspection. The final inspection shall be made after all work required by the building 
permit is completed. 

Fire Resistant Penetrations.   Protection of joints and penetrations in fire-resistant-rated 
assemblies shall not be concealed from view until inspected and approved. 

Footing Inspections.  To be made after trenches are excavated, forms erected and 
reinforcing steel, if any, is placed and before footings are poured.  A survey of the lot(s) 
may be required at this time to verify that the structure is located in accordance with, and 
the elevation matches, the approved plans. 

Foundation Wall Inspections.   Shall be made after the footings or piers have been poured.  
The foundation walls shall be formed and reinforcing steel and void material in place per 
accepted plan. 

Air/Water Resistive Barrier Inspection. Shall be made after the air/water barrier has 
been properly installed, fastened, and taped. 

Frame Inspection.   Framing inspections shall be made after the roof deck or sheathing, 
all framing, fire blocking is complete, and bracing is in place and pipes, chimneys and vents 
to be concealed are complete and the rough electrical, plumbing, heating, wire, pipe and 
duct inspections are approved. 

Insulation Inspection.  Shall be made after all insulation and vapor barriers are in place, 
and before any wall covering material is installed. 

Lath or Gypsum Board Inspection.   Shall be made after lathing and gypsum board, 
interior and exterior, is in place, but before any plastering is applied or before gypsum 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 41 

board joints and fasteners are taped and finished. 

Roofing Inspection, Final.  Shall be conducted after the roof has been completed.  

Roofing Inspection, Mid-Roof.  Shall be made after the underlayment has been installed. 

Utility Inspection. Prior to back-fill, and unless otherwise approved by the Building 
Official, underground gas, water, sewer and electric lines must be inspected from the utility 
tap to the structure. 

 

APPENDIX E 

Snow Load Tables 

City of Leadville Snow Load Requirements (Based on Elevation) 

(This table for reference only showing a relationship between pitch and degrees) 

 

Pitch  0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

Degrees  0 14..0 18.4 22.6 26.6  30.3 33.7 36.9 39.8 42.5 45 47.3 49.4 51.3 53.l 

Reduced Design Snow Load Based on Roof Pitch in Pounds per Square Foot 

Elevation Snow 

 

0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

9000 65 65 65 65 60 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9300 70 70 70 70 65 60 55 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9500 75 75 75 75 70 65 60 55 50 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 
9700 80 80 80 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 
9900 85 85 85 85 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10100 90 90 90 90 85 80 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10300 95 95 95 95 90 85 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 
10500 100 100 100 100 95 85 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 
10600 105 105 105 105 100 90 85 75 70 65 55 50 45 45 40 40 

10800 110 110 110 110 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 55 so 45 40 40 

11000 115 115 115 115 110 100 90 80 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 40 
11200 120 120 120 120 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 40 
11300 125 125 125 125 120 110 100 90 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 

11500 130 130 130 130 125 110 100 90 85 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 

11700 135 135 135 135 125 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 55 50 45 40 
11800 140 140 140 140 130 120 110 100 90 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 
12000 145 145 145 145 135 125 115 100 90 85 75 65 60 55 45 40 

 

Table based on the formula Rs = S/40 – ½ where 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 42 

Rs = Snow load reduction in psf per degree of slope over 20 degrees.  

S  =  Design Snow Load in pounds per square foot (psf) 

Minimum Snow Load is 40 psf 

For lower roofs subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the design load shall be 
determined from the formula in ASCE 7-16, Section 7.9, published by the American Society of 
Civil Engineers. 

 

APPENDIX F 

CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

1. Contractor registration shall be defined as the registration of construction 
contractors which means a person, firm, or corporation that, in the pursuit of an 
independent business, offers to undertake, undertakes, or submits a bid to construct, alter, 
repair, add to, subtract from, improve, move, wreck, or demolish, for another, a building, 
or other structure, project, development, or improvement attached to real estate, including 
carpentry, electrical, plumbing, and roofing work, solar installation, elevator and boiler 
installation, window and door installation, and many other types of work. In order to do 
work similar to that described in the preceding paragraph, upon the construction 
contractor's property, the contractor employs members of more than one trade on a single 
job or under a single building permit issued through the City of Leadville, except as 
otherwise provided.  For the purpose of this definition, subcontractor has the same meaning 
as contractor. 
 
2. It shall be unlawful for any Contractor to perform work within the City of Leadville 
without first having registered with Lake County. Any Contractor who fails to register 
annually prior to conducting any construction work during that calendar year shall be 
subject to a fine of $50.00. 
 
3. Applicants shall submit a written application with the information as required on 
the Contractor Registration application form located in Appendix F of this ordinance to 
the Building Official. 
 
4. Each application shall include a non-refundable fee as identified on the Contractor 
Registration application form located in Appendix F. 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 43 

Contractor Registration Form 

The Lake County Building Department requires all contractors that perform work within the 
County to be registered with the Lake County Building Department.  All contractors will be put 
on a list that will be available to the public.  All registrations will expire at the end of each 
calendar year, and will be required to be renewed by January 31st of each year or before any 
work is performed. All contractors will be required to carry a minimum of one (1) million dollar 
($1,000,000) liability insurance coverage. 

* PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL CONTRACTORS WILL BE REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE PROOF OF PASSING APPROPRIATE ICC CONTRACTOR 
TESTING OR A  LICENSE FROM A JURISDICTION THAT REQUIRES 
APPROPRIATE TESTING, AND A COPY OF THEIR CURRENT INSURANCE 
CERTIFICATE TO KEEP ON FILE WITH THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT. * 

Application for Contractor’s Registration 

*ALL BLANKS MUST BE FILLED IN AND ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE 
REQUIRED * 

Date: ____________________  

 

Insurance Provider: ____________________________ 

      

Owner’s Name: ______________________________    

 

Contractor’s Phone Number: ______________________   

   

Company Name: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email/Website: 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 44 

Contractor’s Mailing Address: 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:  

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please check the following box(es) to indicate which contractor license(s) you are registering 
for: 

 

� Excavators= $50.00 
� Drywall Contractors= $50.00 
� General Contractors Residential C= $50.00 
� General Contractors Commercial B=$50.00  
� Mechanical Contractor= $50.00 
� Roofing Contractor= $50.00  
� Plumbing Contractor= $50.00 
� Insulation Contractor= $50.00  
� Fire Sprinkler Installers= $50.00 
� Solar Installer= $50.00 
� Water Well Const. & Pump Installer 

 

Please make checks payable to the Lake County Treasurer 

Contractor’s Registration Number: ____________________ (Office Use Only) 

 
 
General contractors doing work on residential buildings shall provide proof of testing to the 
*ICC National Standard Residential Building Contractor  “C” test. 

General contractors doing work on commercial buildings shall provide proof of testing to 
the *ICC National Standard  General Building Contractor “B” test. 

*If you hold a license from another jurisdiction or institution, the Code Official shall determine   
exception eligibility from the ICC requirement.   



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 45 

 
 
 

Section 3. Chapter 15.08 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.08 entitled, “Fire 
Code” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.08 

FIRE CODE 

Sec. 15.08.010. Adoption of the 2018 International Fire Code. 
The International Fire Code (IFC), 2018 Edition as published by the International Code 
Council, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW, 6th Floor, Washington, DC 20001, including 
Appendices A, B, C, D, and F, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville Fire 
Code as if fully set out in this chapter with the additions, deletions, insertions and changes 
as set forth in this chapter. No building shall be hereafter constructed, erected, enlarged, 
altered, or moved into the city unless the same shall, as to design, construction, quality of 
materials and workmanship, conform with the IFC, as adopted and as amended. The 
purpose of the IFC is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or limb, health, 
property and public welfare from the hazards of fire explosion, and dangerous conditions 
arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous materials and devices, and from 
conditions hazardous to life or property in the use or occupancy of buildings or premises 
and provisions to assist emergency response personnel.  

Sec. 15.08.020. Amendments, Deletions, and Modifications. 

Additions, deletions, amendments, and changes to the International Fire Code (IFC), 2018 
Edition, are hereby adopted as follows: 

(1) IFC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title.  

These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of City of Leadville, Colorado, 
hereinafter referred to as the “IFC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFC Section 901.4.3 (Fire Areas) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.4.3. Fire Areas. 

Where buildings, or portions thereof, constructed under the International Building 
Code, are divided into fire areas so as not to exceed the limits established for 
requiring a fire protection system in accordance with this chapter, such fire areas 
shall be separated by fire walls constructed in accordance with the International 
Building Code or horizontal assemblies constructed in accordance with the 
International Building Code, or both, having a fire-resistance rating of not less than 
that determined in accordance with the International Building Code.    

(3) IFC Section 907.2.1. (Groups A) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 46 

 
 
 

Sec. 907.2.1. Group A. 

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group A 
occupancies having an occupant load of 49 or more and /or more than 5,000 square 
feet.  Group A occupancies not separated from one another in accordance with 
Section 707.3.9 of the International Building Code shall be considered as a single 
occupancy for the purposes of applying this section.  Portions of Group E 
occupancies occupied for assembly purposes shall be provided with a fire alarm 
system as required for the Group E occupancy. 

(4) IFC Section 907.2.1.1 (System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupant 
load of 1,000 or more) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1.1. System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupancy load 
of 49 or more. 

Activation of the fire alarm in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 49 or 
more shall initiate a signal using an emergency voice/alarm communications 
system in accordance with Section 907.5.2.2. 

Exception: Where approved, the prerecorded announcement is allowed to be 
manually deactivated for a period of time, not to exceed 3 minutes, for the sole 
purpose of allowing a live voice announcement from an approved, constantly 
attended location. 

(5) IFC Section 907.2.2 (Group B) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.2 Group B.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group B 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. The combined Group B occupant load of all floors is 49 or more 
and/or more than 5,000 square feet. 

2. The Group B occupant load is more than 49 persons above or below 
the lowest level of exit discharge. 

3. The fire area contains an ambulatory care facility. 

(6) IFC Section 907.2.4 (Group F) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.4 Group F.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system that activates the occupant 
notification system in accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group F 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exist: 

1. The Group F occupancy is one or more stories in height; and 
2. The Group F occupancy has a combined occupant load of 49 or 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 47 

 
 
 

more above or below the lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group F occupancy is more than 5,000 square feet. 
 

(7) IFC Section 907.2.5 (Group H) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.5  Group H. 

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system in accordance with Section 907.2 
shall be installed in all Group H occupancies and in occupancies used for the 
manufacture of organic coatings. An automatic smoke detection system shall be 
installed for highly toxic gases, organic peroxides and oxidizers in accordance with 
Chapters 60, 62 and 63, respectively. 

(8) IFC Section 907.2.7 (Group M) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.7 Group M.   

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed through-out in Group 
M occupancies in accordance with Section 907.5 where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

1. The combined Group M occupant load of all floors is 49 or more persons. 
2. The Group M occupant load is more than 20 persons above or below the 

lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group M total square footage is 5,000 square feet or more. 

Sec. 15.08.030. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the International Fire Code (IFC) adopted in this 
chapter.  In addition to other sanctions set forth in the IFC, a person or entity who violates 
the provisions of the IFC shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in section 1.20.010 of 
this code.  The provisions of the IFC and this chapter shall be enforced by the Building 
Official. Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary 
to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall 
immediately cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the 
property, or to the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state 
the conditions under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the 
code official shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any 
person who shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop 
work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

Section 4. Chapter 15.12 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.12 titled, “Energy 
Conservation Code” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 48 

 
 
 

CHAPTER 15.12 

ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE 

Sec. 15.12.010. Adoption of the 2018 International Energy Conservation Code. 

The International Energy Conservation Code (IECC), 2018 Edition, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Energy Conservation Code as if fully set out in this 
section. The purpose of the IECC is to regulate the design and construction of buildings for 
the effective use of energy. The IECC is not intended to abridge safety, health or 
environmental requirements contained in other applicable codes or ordinances. 

Sec. 15.12.020. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, improve, 
remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure, or 
cause or permit the same to be done in violation of the International Energy Conservation 
Code (IECC). In addition to other sanctions set forth in the IECC and this code, a person 
who violates the IECC shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in section 1.20.010 of 
this code. The provisions of the IECC and this chapter shall be enforced by the Building 
Official. Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary 
to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall 
immediately cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the 
property, or to the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state 
the conditions under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the 
code official shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any 
person who shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop 
work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

Section 5. Chapter 15.16 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.16 titled, “Building 
Codes Board of Appeals” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.16 

BUILDING CODES APPEALS 

Sec. 15.16.010. Appeals.  

All appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official relative to the 
application and interpretation of any of the city's building and technical codes adopted pursuant to 
this title shall be heard by the Lake County Board of Review.  

 

Section 6. Remaining Provisions.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all other 
provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 49 

 
 
 

Section 7. Codification Amendments.  The codifier of Leadville’s Municipal Code is 
hereby authorized to make such numerical, technical and formatting changes as may be necessary 
to incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance within the Leadville Municipal Code. 

Section 8. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 
Ordinance be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various 
sections and provisions are severable. 

Section 9. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and 
this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done 
or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of 
this Ordinance. 

Section 10. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares 
that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it 
is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary 
for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  
The City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper 
legislative object sought to be attained. 

Section 11. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after 
publication following final passage. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on 

first reading this 19th day July, 2022. 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
______________________________________ 

     Greg Labbe, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Leadville, Colorado, on the 21st day of July, 2022. 
 

 
  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 50 

 
 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 

with any amendments, this 6th day of September, 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper 
of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ 
day of _______________, 2022. 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 7 

SERIES OF 2022 

 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REENACTING CHAPTERS 15.04, 15.08, 
15.12, AND 15.16 OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT BY 
REFERENCE THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL EXISTING 
BUILDING CODE, THE 2020 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE, AND THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE; MAKING SPECIFIC AMENDMENTS THERETO; 
AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the 
authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce 
regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens of Leadville; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-16-201 et seq., the City may adopt any code by 
reference provided that the municipality provides proper notice and holds a public hearing prior to 
such adoption by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted by reference the following codes: the 2012 
International Building Code, the 2012 International Residential Code, the 2012 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2012 International Plumbing Code, the 2012 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2012 International Existing Building Code, the 2006 International Energy Conservation Code, 
and the 2012 International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, periodically it is necessary for the City to update those building and fire codes 
which are adopted by reference in order to remain technically current; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 12-115-107, the City is required to adopt the most 
recently adopted version of the National Electrical Code, which is currently the 2020 National 
Electrical Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt by reference the following codes: the 2018 
International Building Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 
Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, 
the 2018 International Existing Building Code, the 2018 International Energy Conservation Code, 
the 2020 National Electrical Code, and the 2018 International Fire Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City held a public hearing on September 6August 2, 2022, with proper 
notice provided, to consider adoption of such codes as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, copies of all codes adopted herein, will be available for inspection at the 
office of the Deputy City Clerk located at 800 Harrison Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461; and 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds this ordinance and adoption of these codes by 
reference to be necessary in furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF 
LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals contained above are incorporated herein by reference 
and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council. 

Section 2. Chapter 15.04 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.04 entitled, 
“Technical Building Codes” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.04 

TECHNICAL BUILDING CODES 

Sec. 15.04.010. Codes Adopted. 

(a) The International Building Code (IBC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 35 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Code as if fully set out in this section 
with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.020 of this code. 

(b) The International Residential Code (IRC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 44 inclusive and Appendix Chapters E, 
F and G, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville Residential 
Building Code (“IRC”) as if fully set out in this section with the additions, 
deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in section 15.04.030 of this code. 

(c) The International Mechanical Code (IMC), 20128 Edition as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 15 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Mechanical Code as if fully set out in this section 
with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.040 of this code. 

(d) The International Plumbing Code (IPC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, and as amended by the State of Colorado Plumbing Board 
and/or its successors, Chapters 1 through 14 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 3 

reference as the City of Leadville Building Plumbing Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.050 of this code. 

(e) The International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC), 2018 Edition, as published by the 
International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 8 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Building Fuel Gas Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.060 of this code. 

(f) The International Existing Building Code (IEBC), 2018 Edition, as published by 
the International Code Council, Inc., 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW 6th Floor, 
Washington DC 20001, Chapters 1 through 3516 inclusive, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Existing Building Code as if fully set out in this 
section with the additions, deletions, insertions, and changes as set forth in Section 
15.04.070 of this code. 

(g) The National Electrical Code (NEC), published by the National Fire Protection 
Association, One Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02269, the specific edition as 
promulgated, adopted, and amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board 
and/or its successors, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville 
Electrical Code as if fully set out in this section. 

Sec. 15.04.020. Amendment to 2018 International Building Code. 

The 2018 IBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the City of Leadville, 
hereinafter referred to as “the IBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.2 entitled, “Permits” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.2. Permits. 

This Code shall apply to all permits applied for after the effective date of the 
Ordinance adopting by reference the 2018 IBC. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 4 

(3) IBC Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection 
101.2.3 entitled, “Preemption” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.2.3. Preemption. 

Whenever State law or State regulation imposes higher standards than are required 
by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher standard shall 
govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than the standards 
imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any governmental body, the 
standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IBC Section 101.4.3 (Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.3. Plumbing. 

The provisions of the International Plumbing Code shall apply to the installation, 
alteration, repair, and replacement of plumbing systems, including equipment, 
appliances, fixtures, fittings, appurtenances, and where connected to a water or 
sewer system and all aspects of a medical gas systems. 

(5) IBC Section 101.4.4 (Property Maintenance) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IBC Section 101.4.5 (Fire Prevention) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(7)(6) IBC Section 101.4 (Referenced Codes) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Section 101.4.8 entitled “Electrical” to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.4.8. Electrical. 

The provisions of the National Electrical Code, the specific addition as adopted and 
amended by the State of Colorado Electrical Board, and or its successor(s), shall 
apply to the installation of electrical systems, including alterations, repairs, 
replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings, and appurtenances thereto. 

(8)(7) IBC Section 102.6 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.6. Existing Structure. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as otherwise specifically 
provided in this code, the International Existing Building Code or the International 
Fire Code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 5 

(9)(8) IBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and its corresponding 
subsections are hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(10)(9) IBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(11)(10) IBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its 
entirety. 

(12)(11) IBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of the following: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning and Zoning Department 
to ensure compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise 
exempted by this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may 
be required for the building if such work would normally require permits.  
Exemption from the permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant 
authorization for any work to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions 
of this code or any other laws or oOrdinances of this jurisdiction. 

The area of an exempt building in 105.2 of this section, shall be changed to two 
hundred (200) square feet to conform to that allowed under Section Rl05.2 of the 
International Residential Code. 

The following work will not require a permit: 

1) Drywall installation under two hundred (200) square feet. 
2) Window replacement not requiring change of headers or structural 

members. 
3) Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 

feet. 
4) Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 

existing structures. 

(13)(12) IBC Section 107.1 (General) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
107.1.1 entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications” to 
read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 6 

 

Sec. 107.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

In accordance with Section 107.1 (General), the Building Official shall require 
plans, computations, and specifications to be prepared, designed, and stamped by 
an engineer or architect licensed in the State of Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations are constructed on caissons or any other method other 
than spread footingsthat are not addressed within the IBC. 

2) Roof framing or wall framing is "other than standard" construction 
not conforming to the requirements of Chapters 16 and 23. 

3) All Buildings classified in Groups A, B, E, F, H, I, M, R-1, R-2, R-
4, and S occupancies. 

4) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted 
which are severely lacking in information showing compliance with 
the code, must be designed, and resubmitted by a professional 
draftsperson.   

(14)(13) IBC Section 107.2.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 107.2.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be dimensioned and drawn on suitable material. 
Electronic media documents are permitted to be submitted where approved by the 
Building Official. Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate 
the location, nature, and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will 
conform to the provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, as determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall provide the name of the person who prepared 
such plans and/or specifications. 

(15)(14) IBC Section 107.3.3 (Phased Approval) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 107.3.3. Phased Approval. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 7 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a permit for the construction of 
foundations or any other part of a building or structure before the construction 
documents for the whole building or structure have been filed complying with 
pertinent requirements of this code. The holder of such permit for the foundation or 
other parts of a building or structure shall proceed at the holder’s own risk with the 
building operation and without assurance that a permit for the entire structure will 
be granted. 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the first permit was issued, if the remaining permits are issued within one 
year of the adoption of the new code. 

(16)(15) IBC Section 108.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 108.3. Temporary Power. 

The Building Official is authorized to give permission to temporarily supply and 
use power in part of an electric installation before such installation has been fully 
completed and the final certificate of completion has been issued. The part covered 
by the temporary certificate shall comply with the requirements specified for 
temporary lighting, heat or power in the National Electrical Code or its successor 
as may be adopted by the State of Colorado Electrical Board. 

(17)(16) IBC Section 109.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and replaced to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix A. 

(18)(17) IBC Section 109.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be no less than twice the normal permit 
fee for the work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 8 

(19)(18) IBC Section 109.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 109.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official is authorized to establish a refund policy. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than eighty percent 
(80%) of the permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in 
accordance with this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing 
within one hundred eighty (180) days of the original fee payment. If a plan review 
was charged and appropriate plan review performed, no portion of this part of fee 
is refundable. 

(20)(19) IBC Section 110.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 110.1. General. 

Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain visible and able 
to be accessed for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an 
inspection shall not be constructed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions 
of this code or of other ordinances of the City. Inspections presuming to give 
authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this code or other ordinances of the 
city shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of the owner or the owner’s authorized 
agent to cause the work to remain visible and able to be accessed for inspection 
purposes. Neither the Building Official nor the city shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix D. 

(21)(20) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 110.3. Required Inspections. 

The Building Official, upon notification, shall make the inspections set forth in 
Sections 110.3.1 through 110.3.12. 

(22)(21) IBC Section 110.3 (Required Inspections) shall be amended with the 
addition of a new subsection 110.3.12. entitled, “Reinspection” to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 9 

Sec. 110.3.12. Reinspection. 

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected and required work that has been requested by the Building Official is not 
complete or requires an additional inspection. 

(23)(22) IBC Section 111.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 111.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. The temporary certificate of occupancy 
is valid for ninety (90) dayssixty (60) days, with one (1) renewal of sixty (60) days 
permitted, at the discretion of the Building Official. 

(24)(23) IBC Section 113 (Board of Appeals), and its subsections, are amended by 
replacing “Board of Appeals” with the “Board of Review.” 

(25)(24) IBC Section 502.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 502.1. Address Identification. 

New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address identification. 
Each character shall be not less than five (5) inches in height and not less than one 
half inch (1/2 inch) in width. 

(26)(25) IBC Section 901.5 (Acceptance Tests) is hereby amended with the addition 
of a new subsection 901.5.1 entitled “Special Inspector” to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.5.1. Special Inspector. 

All fire protection systems required by this chapter shall be inspected and approved 
by a special inspector. The inspector shall be an employee of the fire department 
having jurisdiction or another qualified individual with prior approval of the 
Building Official. Inspections and approvals shall be documented and submitted as 
per Chapter 17 of this code. 

(27)(26) IBC Section 1301.1.1 (Criteria) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1301.1.1. Criteria. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 10 

Buildings shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

(28)(27) IBC Section 1505.1 (General), Table 105.1 (Minimum Roof Covering 
Classification for Types of Construction) is hereby amended by the deletion of 
superscript “a.” 

(29)(28) IBC Section 1608 (Snow Loads) shall be amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1608. Snow Loads. 

Snow load calculations shall be based on values provided for in Appendix E. 

(30)(29) IBC Chapter 27 (Electrical) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(31)(30) IBC Section 2901.1 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 2901.1. Scope. 

The provisions of this chapter and the International Plumbing Code shall govern 
the design, construction, erection, and installation of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems used in buildings and structures covered by this 
code. Toilet and bathing rooms shall be constructed in accordance with Section 
1209. The International Fire Code, the International Property Maintenance Code 
and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the use and maintenance of 
plumbing components, appliance, equipment, and systems. The International 
Existing Building Code and the International Plumbing Code shall govern the 
alteration, repair, relocation, replacement, and addition of plumbing components, 
appliances, equipment, and systems. 

Sec. 15.04.030. Amendment to 2018 International Residential Code. 

The 2018 IRC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IRC Section R101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.1. Title. 

These provisions shall be known as the Residential Code for One and Two-Family 
Dwellings of the City of Leadville, and shall be cited as such and will be referred 
to herein as “the IRC” and “this code.” 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 11 

(2) IRC Section R101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

R101.2. Scope. 

The provisions of this code shall be apply to the construction, alteration, movement, 
enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, removal 
and demolition of detached one and two-family dwellings and townhouses not more 
than three (3) stories above grade plan in height with a separate means of egress 
and their accessory structures not more than three (3) stories above grade plane in 
height. 

ExceptionExemptions:  

1. Existing building permits prior to the effective date of this code, along with 
all approved extensions, shall remain in effect and shall be subject to the 
International Residential Code, 2012 edition. 

1.2.Existing buildings undergoing repair, alterations or additions, and change 
of occupancy shall be permitted to comply with the International 
Residential Code, 2012 Edition, if the work was originally permitted under 
this code within one year of the adoption of the 2018 code. 

(3) IRC Section R101.2.2 (Other Laws) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R101.2.2. Other Laws. 

The provision of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, 
state, or federal law. Whenever a State law or regulation imposes higher standards 
than are required by this code, the State law or State regulation providing the higher 
standard shall govern.  When the standards imposed by this code are higher than 
the standards imposed by any other law, regulation, or ordinance of any 
governmental body, the standards of this code shall apply. 

(4) IRC Section R102.7 (Existing Structures) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R102.7. Existing Structures. 

The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this code 
shall be permitted to continue without change, except as is specifically covered in 
this code, or the International Fire Code, or as is deemed necessary by the Building 
Official for the general safety and welfare of the occupants and the public.  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 12 

(5) IRC Section R103 (Department of Building Safety) is hereby deleted in its 
entirety.amended to change the title to Department of Building. 

(6) IRC Section R104.8 (Liability) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 

Sec. R104.8. Liability. 

The Building Official, member of the board of appeals or employee charged with 
the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction in good faith and 
without malice in the discharge of the duties required by this code or other pertinent 
law or ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered civilly or criminally liable 
personally and is hereby relieved from personal liability for any damage accruing 
to persons or property as a result of any act or by reason of an act or omission in 
the discharge of official duties. 

The issuance of a permit based on plans, specifications and other data shall not 
prevent the Building Official from thereafter requiring the correction of errors on 
said plans, specifications, and other data, or from preventing building operations 
being carried on thereunder, when in violation of this code, or any other Ordinance, 
or from collecting additional fees as appropriate. Nothing in this code is intended 
to authorize any person or agency with development review authority, other than 
the Building Official, to deny the issuance of a building permit hereunder. 

The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all of the 
provisions of this code; however, a guarantee that all building(s) and all structures 
have been constructed in accordance with all of the provisions of this code is neither 
intended nor implied. 

(7) IRC Section R105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby as follows with 
deletions shown in strikethrough text and additions shown in underlined text: 

Sec. R105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Building: 

* * * 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 13 

2. Fences not over 7 feet (2134 mm) high. Fences six (6) feet or less in 
height. 

* * * 

11. Drywall installation in buildings under two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

12. Window replacement whereby installing code compliantce 
windows that do not require a change of headers or structural 
members. 

13. Replacement of exterior siding less than two hundred (200) square 
feet. 

14. Insulation installation less than two hundred (200) square feet in 
existing structures. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for construction of the building 
does not preclude any required approval from the Planning and Zoning Department 
to ensure compliance with zoning, use, and building setbacks. Unless otherwise 
exempted by this code, separate plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may 
be required for the building if such work would normally require permits. 

(8) IRC Section R106.1.1 (Information on Construction Documents) is amended as 
follows: 

Sec. R106.1.1. Information on Construction Documents. 

Construction documents shall be drawn upon suitable material. Electronic media 
documents are permitted to be submitted where approved to the Building Official. 
Construction documents shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the location, nature, 
and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will conform to the 
provisions of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, as 
determined by the Building Official. 

Each sheet of each set of plans shall give the name of the person who prepared such 
plans and specifications. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 14 

(9) IRC Section R106.3.23 (Phased Previous Approvals) is hereby amended to read 
add a new paragraph as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.23. Phased Previous Approvals. 

*     *     * 

When a permit has been issued for part of a building or structure and the City adopts 
a new building code, new permits may be issued for the remaining portion of the 
building or structure under the provisions and requirements of the code in effect at 
the time the immediately preceding permit was issued, if the remaining permits are 
issued within one year of the adoption of the new code. 

(10) IRC Section R106.3 (Examination of Documents) is hereby amended with the 
addition of a new subsection R106.3.4 entitled “Responsibility for Preparation of 
Plans and Specifications” to read as follows: 

Sec. R106.3.4. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications to be 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed in the State of 
Colorado when, but not limited to: 

1) Foundations that are not addressed within the International Residential 
Code. 

2) Wall or roof framing is "other than standard" construction not conforming 
to the requirements of Chapters 6 and 8, 

3) Foundations are located in designated dipping bedrock areas and per 
Sections R403.1.8; 

4) Metal buildings and structures are constructed; or 
5) Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted which are 

severely lacking in information showing compliance with the code, must be 
designed and resubmitted by a professional draftsperson. 

(11) IRC Section R107.3 (Temporary Power) is hereby amended by the replacement of 
reference to the “NFPA 70” with “the National Electrical Code as may be revised 
by the State of Colorado Electrical Board.” 

(12) IRC Section R108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. R108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 15 

Permit fees shall be as determined by Appendix A. 

(13) IRC Section R108.5 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.5. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance with 
this code. The original applicant must make a request in writing within 180 days of 
the original fee payment. If a plan review fee was charged and appropriate plan 
review performed, no portion of this part of the fee is subject to refund. 

(14) IRC Section R108.6 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R108.6. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to punitive charges. The charge shall be twice the normal permit fee for the 
work being done plus an hourly charge for any additional inspections necessary. 

(15) IRC Section R109 (Inspections) and all of its subsections are hereby repealed in its 
entirety and replaced as follows: 

R109.1. General  

Inspections shall be as provided for in Appendix AD. 

R109.2 Reinspection.   

The Building Official may impose a reinspection fee if code violations are not 
corrected, and required work that has been requested by the Building Official, is 
not complete and requires an additional inspection. 

R109.3 Sanitation.   

At the time of construction start-up, approved sanitary facilities are required at all 
construction jobs.  The number of toilets shall be adequate for the number of 
construction workers, but no less than the number deemed necessary by the 
Building Official, or as called for in the adopted plumbing code. If a construction 
site becomes inactive for a period of time, the portable toilet may be removed 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 16 

during this period of inactivity. Temporary toilets or use of a neighboring facility 
may be used if approved by the Building Official. 

R109.4 Dumpsters.   

Dumpsters or equivalent containers of adequate size to handle trash and unwanted 
materials from the permitted project shall be provided. 

(16) IRC Section R110.4 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby repealed and 
reenactedamended to read as follows: 

R110.4 Temporary occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit provided the 
following conditions are satisfied: 

1. One bathroom with lavatory, water closet, tub or shower, and 
flooring has been completed. 

2. A food preparation area, with sink, hot and cold water, and flooring 
has been completed. 

3. Electrical system is complete for areas that are to be finished, or 
blanked off in unfinished areas. 

4. Egress windows where required by this code are installed. 

5. A heating system is operational as required by Section R303.9, 
Required Heating. 

6. The exterior is complete and watertight with siding, trim, flashing 
and a roof. 

7. Handrails and guardrails are in place. 

8.  All life-safety systems as determined necessary by the Building 
Official are in place. 

(17) IRC Section R112 (Board of Appeals), and all subsections thereof, is hereby 
amended with the replacement of “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.”  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 17 

(18) IRC Section R202 (Definitions) is hereby amended with the addition of the 
following definition of “bedroom” to appear in alphabetical order with the existing 
definitions: 

Sec. R202. Definitions. 

* * * 

BEDROOM. A room, which is designed as a sleeping room, in Group R 
occupancies or a room, or area that can be used as a sleeping room and contains a 
closet. 

* * * 

(19) IRC Section R301.2 (Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria) is hereby amended 
with the repeal and replacement of Table R301.2 to read as follows: 

 

(20) IRC Section R301.2.3 (Snow Loads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R301.2.3. Snow Loads. 

Snow load values shall be determined by the data in Appendix E. 

(21) IRC Section R301.5 (Live Load), Table R301.5, is hereby amended by the deletion 
of the data in rows “Balconies (exterior) and decks” and “Fire Escapes”, the 
addition of a footnote (ij) in such rows, and the addition of a footnote (ij) to read as 
follows: 

(j) The minimum uniformly distributed live loads for exterior balconies, decks 
and fire escapes shall be as required for roof snow loads with pitches 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 18 

between 0 and 3:12 at the elevation listed in Appendix E, when such 
structures are exposed to snow loading. Otherwise, a live load of 60 psf shall 
be used.  For decks subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the 
design load shall be determined from the formula in Section 7.9, ASCE 7-
02, published by the American Society of Civil Engineers. 

(22) IRC Section R302.5.1 (Opening Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.5.1. Opening Protection. 

Openings from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping purposes 
shall not be permitted. Other openings between the garage and residence shall be 
equipped with a solid wood door not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) in thickness or 
solid or honeycomb-core steel doors not less than 1 3/8 inches (35 mm) thick, 
equipped with a . Doors shall be self-latching and equipped with self-closing or 
automatic-closing devices. 

(23) IRC Section R302.7 (Under-Stair Protection) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R302.7. Under-Stair Protection. 

Enclosed space under stairs that is accessed by a door or access panel shall have 
walls, under-stair surface and any soffits protected on the enclosed side with 5/8-
inch Type X gypsum board. 

(24) IRC Section R303.1(Habitable Rooms) is hereby amended with the addition of a 
new Exception # 4 to read as follows: 

Sec. R303.1. Habitable Rooms. 

* * * 

4. Where a room is designed specifically for a home theater, the 
provisions of this section need not be required provided the conditions of 
Exceptions 1. and 2. above are met.  A separate means of egress is not 
required for these rooms, regardless of whether they are located in a 
basement or elsewhere, unless the seating capacity exceeds ten (10) persons. 

(25) IRC Section 303.4 (Mechanical Ventilation) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(26)(25) IRC Section 303.7 (Interior Stairway Illumination) is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 19 

Sec. R303.7. Interior Stairway Illumination. 

Interior stairways shall be provided with an artificial light source to illuminate the 
landings and treads. The light source shall be capable of illuminating treads and 
landings of not less than one (1) footcandle (11 lux) as measured at the center of 
treads and landings. There shall be a wall switch at each floor level to control the 
light switch where the stairway has six or more risers, as required by the current 
NEC. 

Exception: A switch is not required where remote, central, or automatic control of 
lighting is provided. 

(27)(26) IRC Section R309.5 (Fire Sprinklers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R309.5. Fire Sprinklers. 

Private garages may be protected by fire sprinklers where the garage wall has been 
designed based on Table R302.1(2). Note a. Sprinklers in garages shall be 
connected to an automatic sprinklers system that complies with Section P2094. 
Garage sprinklers shall be residential sprinklers or quick-response sprinklers, 
designed to provide a density of 0.05 gpm/ft. Garage doors shall not be considered 
obstructions with respect to sprinkler placement. If such sprinklers are installed, 
they must meet the standards of this code. 

(28)(27) IRC Section R311.7.5.1 (Risers) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.1. Risers. 

The maximum riser height shall be eight (8) inches. The riser height shall be 
measured vertically between leading edges of the adjacent treads. The greatest riser 
height within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). Risers shall be vertical or sloped from the underside of the nosing of the 
tread above at any angle not more than thirty (30) degrees (0.51 rad) from the 
vertical. At open risers, openings located more than thirty (30) inches (762 mm), as 
measured vertically, to the floor or grade below shall not permit the passage of 4-
inch diameter (102 mm) sphere. Exterior open risers are permitted provided the 
opening between treads does not permit the passage of a 6-inch diameter sphere. 

Exceptions: 

1. The openings between adjacent treads is not limited on spiral stairways. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 20 

2. The riser height of spiral stairways shall be in accordance with Section 
R311.7.10.1. 

(29)(28) IRC Section R311.7.5.2 (Treads) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R311.7.5.2. Treads. 

The minimum tread depth shall be nine (9) inches. The tread depth shall be 
measured horizontally between the vertical planes of the foremost projection of 
adjacent treads and at a right angle to the tread’s leading edge. The greatest tread 
depth within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch 
(9.5 mm). 

(30)(29) IRC Section R312.1.3 (Opening Limitations), Exception 1 is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R312.1.3. Opening Limitations. 

* * * 

Exceptions: 

1. Required guards on open sides of exterior stairways, raised floor areas, 
balconies, and porches shall have immediate rails or ornamental closures, 
which do not allow passage of a sphere of six (6) inches or more in diameter. 

(31)(30) IRC Section R313.1 (Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems) is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.1. Townhouse Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in townhomes. If such sprinkler 
systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 

(32)(31) IRC Section R313.2 (One-and two-family dwellings automatic sprinkler 
systems) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R313.2. One – and Two- Family Dwellings Automatic Sprinkler Systems. 

An automatic sprinkler system may be installed in one- or two-family dwellings. If 
such sprinkler systems are installed, they must meet the standards of this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 21 

(32) IRC Section 315.2.2 (Alterations, repairs and additions) is amended to delete 
exception 2 in its entirety. 

(33) IRC Section R319.1 (Address Identification) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R319.1. Address Identification. 

All new buildings shall have address characters identifying the property address, 
displayed and plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the 
property.   Address characters shall be affixed to the side of the building facing the 
street on which the property is addressed or affixed to a sign or post located adjacent 
to the street on which the property is addressed.  Address numbers shall be of a 
color and/or material that contrast with the background on which they are mounted. 

Address characters affixed to the building or to a sign or post shall be at least 5 
inches in height.  For buildings located more than 150 feet from the shoulder or 
curb of the street, there shall be, address characters affixed to a sign or post. This 
sign or post shall be located 25 feet or less from the shoulder or curb of the street 
and shall have address characters at least five inches in height. 

The Building Official may approve alternate building address signage. 

(34) IRC Section R404.1.32 (Design of MasonryConcrete Foundation Walls) is hereby 
amended with the addition of the following paragraph: 

Sec. R404.1.23. Design of MasonryConcrete Foundation Walls. 

* * * 

Minimum reinforcing for concrete foundation walls that are not specified by a 
Professional Engineer or not designed according to the tables listed in this section 
shall have grade 40, #4 bars on 24-inch centers both horizontally and vertically. 

(35) IRC Section R905.2.7 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.2.7. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 22 

extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(36) IRC Section R905.3.3 (Underlayment) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.3.3. Underlayment. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(37) IRC Section R905.4.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.4.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(38) IRC Section R905.5.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.5.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(39) IRC Section 905.6.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 23 

Sec. R905.6.3.1 Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(39)(40) IRC Section R905.7.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.7.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(40)(41) IRC Section R905.8.3.1 (Ice Barrier) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. R905.7.3.1. Ice Barrier. 

Roofing material underlayment: In lieu of normal underlayment, an ice barrier that 
consists of at least two layers of underlayment cemented together or a self-adhering 
polymer modified bitumen sheet, shall extend from the edge of the eave to a point 
at least seventy-two (72) inches inside the interior wall line of the building.  All 
valleys shall have at least one (1) thirty-six (36) inch-wide layer applied and shall 
extend eighteen (18) inches from centerline each way. This shall be in addition to 
any other valley flashing requirements specified in this chapter. 

(41)(42) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), 
Table N1002.1.2, Row 7 and 8 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

CLIMATE 
ZONE 

FENESTRATION 
U-FACTOR 

SKYLIGHT 
U-FACTOR 

GLAZED 
FENESTRATION 

SHGC 

CEILING 
R-VALUE 

WOOD 
FRAME 

WALL R-
VALUE 

MASS 
WALL R-
VALUE 

FLOOR 
R- 
VALUE 

BASEMENT 
WALL 
R-VALUE 

SLAB 
R-VALUE 
& DEPTH 

7 and 8 0.30 [j] 0.55 NR 49 20 + 5[h] or 
13 + 10 

19/21 38[g] 15/19 10, 4 ft 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 24 

(42)(43) IRC Section N1102.1.2 (R402.1.2) (Insulation and Fenestration Criteria), 
Table N1002.1.2, is hereby amended with the addition of a new footnote (j) to 
read as follows: 
 
(j) A maximum U-factor of 0.32 shall apply in climate Zones 3 through 8 to 
vertical fenestration products installed in buildings located either: 

1.   Above 4,000 feet in elevation, or 
2.   In windborne debris regions where protection of openings is 

required by Section R301.2.1.2 

(44) IRC Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) (Testing) is amended to add the following 
sentence to the initial paragraph:  

Mitigation of testing results are specified in the Lake County Building Department 
blower door testing policy. 

(43)(45) IRC Section M1307.5 (Electrical Appliances) is hereby amended with a 
new title, “Appliances” and amended with the deletion of the sentence. M1307.5 
(Appliances) is further amended with the addition of two new subsections to read 
as follows: 

Sec. M1307.5.1 Electrical appliances. 

 Electrical appliances shall be installed in accordance with Chapters 14, 15, 19, 20, 
and 34 through 43 of this code. 

 

Sec. M1307.5.2 LPG appliances.   

LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, upon 
approval of the Building Official. 

(44)(46) Chapter 14 (Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances) is hereby 
amended with the addition of a new section M1416 entitled, “Unvented Room 
Heaters” to read as follows: 

Sec. M1416. Heating and Cooling Equipment and Appliances. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwellings and 
townhouses. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 25 

(45)(47) IRC Section 1502.4.4 (Dryer Exhaust Duct Power Ventilators) is hereby 
amended with the addition of a new subsection 1502.4.4.1 entitled, “Duct Specified 
Length” to read as follows: 

Sec. 1502.4.4.1. Duct Specified Length. 

The code official shall be provided with a copy of installation instructions for the 
make and model of dryer. 

(46)(48) IRC Section G2406.2 (303.3) (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by 
deletion of Exceptions 3 &and 4 and by the addition of a new Exception 7 to read 
as follows: 

Sec. G206.2 (303.3). Prohibited Locations. 

7. LPG appliances shall be permitted to be installed with proper ventilation, 
upon approval of the Building Official. 

(47)(49)  IRC Section G2417.4.1 (406.4.1) (Test Pressure) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. G2417.4.1 (406.4.1). Test Pressure. 

The test pressure to be used shall not be Jess less than one and one half time the 
proposed maximum working pressure but not less than 15 psig, irrespective of 
design pressure.  Where the test pressure exceeds 125 psig, the test pressure shall 
not exceed a value that produces a hoop stress in the piping greater than fifty percent 
(50%) of the specified minimum yield strength of the pipe. 

(50) IRC Section G2445 (General) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. G2445  General. 

Unvented room heaters are prohibited in one- and two-family dwelling units and 
townhouses. 

(48)(51) IRC Section P2503.5.1 (Rough Plumbing) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. P2503.5.1. Rough Plumbing. 

DWV systems shall be tested on completion of the rough piping installation by 
water, or, for piping systems, by air, without evidence of leakage. Either test shall 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 26 

be applied to the drainage system in its entirety or in sections after rough-in piping 
has been installed, as follows: 

1. Water Test. Each section shall be filled with water to a point not less than 
five (5) feet (1524 mm) above the highest fitting connection in that section, 
or to the highest point in the competed system. Water shall be held in the 
section under test for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. The system shall 
prove leak free by visual inspection. 

2. Air test. The portion under test shall be maintained at a gauge pressure of 
five (5) pounds per square inch (psi) (34 kPa) or ten (10) inches of mercury 
column (34 kPa). This pressure shall be held without introduction of 
additional air for a period of fifteen (15) minutes. 

(49)(52) IRC Section P2603.5.1 (Sewer Depth) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. P2603.5.1. Sewer Depth. 

Building sewers that connect to private sewer disposal systems shall be installed 
deep enough to protect from physical damage and the slope must be adequate to 
eliminate the possibilities of freezing. 

(50)(53) IRC Section E3401 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection E3401.5 entitled, “Meter Protection” to read as follows: 

Sec. E3401.5. Meter Protection. 

The Building Official may require a utility-owned electric meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(51)(54) IRC Section E3703 (Required Branch Circuits) is hereby amended with the 
addition of a new subsection E3703.5 entitled, “Electric Vehicle Charging Branch 
Circuit” to read as follows: 

Sec. E3703.5. Electric Vehicle Charging Branch Circuit. 

All single-family homes shall be made EV-ready for charging by preinstalling 
conduit or conductors during construction of the house.  Designate enough space 
and capacity on the main electrical panel or a garage subpanel for at least 40 amp, 
240V dedicated branch circuit.  Install conduit or conductors linking the electrical 
panel to the future location of the EV charger, near where cars will be parked in the 
garage or driveway. The Building Official may grant an exception in unique 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 27 

situations if a significant hardship is determined in acquiring the level of service 
necessary to meet this requirement. 

Sec. 15.04.040. Amendment to 2018 International Mechanical Code. 

The 2018 IMC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IMC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Mechanical Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IMC” or as “this code.” 

(2) IMC Section 106.5.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IMC Section 106.5.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.5.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(4) IMC Section 109 (Means of Appeal) and all of its subsections are amended by 
replacing the phrase “Board of Appeal” to “Board of Review.” 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 28 

(5) IMC Section 301.2 (Energy Utilization) is amended to read:  

Sec. 301.2  Energy Utilization.  

Heating, ventilating and air-conditioning systems of all structures shall be 
designated and installed for efficient utilization of energy in accordance with the 
International Energy Conservation Code, 2018 edition. 

(5)(6) IMC Section 1204.2 (Required Thickness) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1204.2. Required Thickness. 

Hydronic piping shall be insulated to the thickness required by the 2018 
International Energy Conservation Code. 

Sec. 15.04.050. Amendment to 2018 International Plumbing Code. 

The 2018 IPC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Plumbing Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IPC” or “this code.” 

(2) IPC Section 106.6.2 (Fee Schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be as provided for in Appendix B. 

(3) IPC Section 312.1 (Required Tests) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 312.1. Required Tests. 

The permit holder shall make the appliable tests prescribed in Sections 312.2 
through 312.10 to determine compliance with the provisions of this code. The 
permit holder shall give reasonable advance notice to the code official when the 
plumbing work is ready for tests. The equipment, material, power and labor 
necessary for the inspection and test shall be furnished by the permit holder and he 
or she shall be responsible for determining that the work will withstand the test 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 29 

pressure prescribed in the following tests. Plumbing system piping shall be tested 
with either water or by air. 

(4) IPC Section 312.3 (Drainage and Vent Air Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.3. Drainage and Vent Air Test. 

An air test shall be made by forcing air into the system until there is a uniform 
gauge pressure of 5 psi (34.6 kPA) or sufficient to balance a 10-inch (254 mm) 
column of mercury. This pressure shall be held for a test period of note less than 15 
minutes. Any adjustments to the test pressure required because of changes in 
ambient temperatures or the seating of gaskets shall be made prior to the beginning 
of the test periods. 

(5) IPC Section 312.4 (Drainage and Vent Final Test) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(6) IPC Section 312.5 (Water Supply System Test) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 312.5. Water Supply System Test. 

Upon completion of a section of or the entire water supply system, the system, or 
portion completed, shall be tested and proved tight under a water pressure not less 
than the working pressure of the system or, by an air test of not less than 50 psi 
(344 kPA). This pressure shall be held for not less than 15 minutes. The water 
utilized for tests shall be obtained from a potable source of supply. The required 
tests shall be performed in accordance with this section and Section 107. 

(7) IPC Section 903.1 (Roof Extension) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 903.1. Roof Extension. 

Open vent pipes that extend through a roof shall be terminated not less than 18 
inches above the roof, or six inches above the anticipated snow accumulation, 
except that where a roof is to be used for any purpose other than weather protection, 
the vent extensions shall terminate not less than 7 feet (2134 mm) above the roof. 

Sec. 15.04.060. Amendment to 2018 International Fuel Gas Code. 

The 2018 IFGC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 30 

(1) IFGC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Fuel Gas Code of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, hereinafter referred to as the “IFGC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFGCS Section 102 (Applicability) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
102.12 entitled, “Utility-Owned Gas Meters” to read as follows: 

Sec. 102.12. Utility-Owned Gas Meters. 

The Building Official may require that a utility-owned gas meter have protection 
from falling ice and snow. 

(3) IFGC Section 103 (Department of Inspection) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IFGC Section 104.1 (General) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 104.1. General. 

The Leadville Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce the 
provisions of this code. 

(5) IFGSC Section 106.6.2 (Fee schedule) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.2. Fee Schedule. 

Fees shall be provided for as in Appendix B. 

(6) IFGSC Section 106.6.3 (Fee Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 106.6.3. Fee Refunds. 

The code official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 

1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder that was paid erroneously paid 
or collected. 

2. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the permit fee paid where work has 
not been done under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 31 

3. Not more than eighty percent (80%) of the plan review fee paid where an 
application for a permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has been expended. 

The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except upon 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the date of the fee payment. 

(7) IFGCS Section 109 (Means of Appeal), and all subsections thereto, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with Board of Review.” 

(8) IFGC Section 201.3 (Terms Defined in Other Codes) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 201.3. Terms Defined in Other Codes. 

Where terms are not defined in this code and are defined in the National Electrical 
Code, International Building Code, International Fire Code, International 
Mechanical Code, or International Plumbing Code, such terms shall have meanings 
ascribed to them as in those codes. 

(9) IFGCS Section 303.3 (Prohibited Locations) is hereby amended by deleting 
Exceptions 3 and& 4. 

Sec. 15.04.070. Amendment to 2018 International Existing Building Code. 

The 2018 IEBC adopted in Section 15.04.010 is hereby amended with the following 
additions, deletions, and/or changes: 

(1) IEBC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title. 

These regulations shall be known as the Existing Building Code of City of 
Leadville, Colorado hereinafter referred to as the “IEBC” or “this Code.” 

(2) IEBC Section 103 (Department of Building Safety) and all of its subsections are 
hereby deleted. 

(3) IEBC Section 105.1.1 (Annual Permit) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

(4) IEBC Section 105.1.2 (Annual Permit Records) is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 32 

(5) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended with the 
addition of new paragraph to read as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

* * * 

Work exempted from requiring a building permit for the proposed work does not 
preclude any required approval from the City to insure compliance with zoning, 
use, and property setbacks.  Unless otherwise exempted by this Code, separate 
plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits may be required for the building if 
such work would normally require permits.  Exemption from the permit 
requirements of this Code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any work 
to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this Code or any other 
laws, ordinances or resolutions of this jurisdiction. 

(6) IEBC Section 105.2 (Work Exempt from Permit) is hereby amended further by 
adding to the Building section for projects that do not require a work permit to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 105.2. Work Exempt from Permit. 

Building. 

* * * 

7. Door and door frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
8. Window replacement whereby replacing with code compliant windows and 

window frame replacement unless involving other structural changes. 
9. Remodeling, interior or exterior, not involving any structural change, not 

altering existing fire-resistance rated construction assemblies, and not 
altering point of use plumbing or existing fuel-gas piping, mechanical, or 
electrical systems. 

10.9. Insulation installation less than 200 square feet in existing 
structures. 

11.10. Removal and replacement of exterior siding materials less than 200 
square feet. 

(7) IEBC Section 106.1 (General) is hereby amended with the addition of a new 
subsection 106.1.1 entitled, “Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and 
Specifications” to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 33 

Sec. 106.1.1. Responsibility for Preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

The Building Official shall require plans, computations, and specifications 
prepared, designed, and stamped by an engineer or architect licensed to practice in 
the State of Colorado when, but not limited to the following structure designs: 

1. Foundations are constructed on caissons or any other method other than 
spread footings. 

2. Roof framing or wall framing is other than conventional light-frame 
construction in accordance with AP&PA Wood Frame Construction 
Manual (WFCM). 

3. Buildings in which confirmation is required of beam sizes and spans, 
loading, or any structural element affecting the integrity of the building 
unless otherwise demonstrated to the Building Official’s satisfaction. 

4. Plans that, in the judgment of the Building Official, are submitted by a 
professional draftsperson. 

(8) IEBC Section 108.2 (Schedule of Permit Fees) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 108.2. Schedule of Permit Fees. 

On buildings, gas, mechanical, and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a 
permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees provided for in Appendices A and B. 

(9) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4. Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance. 

Any person who commences any work on a building, structure, electrical, gas, 
mechanical or plumbing system before obtaining the necessary permits shall be 
subject to an investigation fee as established by Section 108.4.1. 

(10) IEBC Section 108.4 (Work Commencing Before Permit Issuance) is hereby further 
amended with the addition of a new subsection 108.4.1. entitled, “Investigation 
Fee” to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.4.1. Investigation Fee. 

An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be collected whether or not 
a permit is then or subsequently issued.  The investigation fee shall be equal to the 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 34 

amount of the permit fee required by this code and per the Schedule of Fees as set 
forth in the Appendices to this Chapter 15.04 of the Municipal Code.  The minimum 
investigation fee shall be the same as the minimum fee set forth in the Schedule of 
Fees as provided for in Appendices A and B.  The payment of such investigation 
fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of this 
code nor from any penalty prescribed by law. 

(11) IEBC Section 108.6 (Refunds) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 108.6. Refunds. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of any fee paid hereunder which 
was erroneously paid or collected if an audit of the project has been performed and 
the audit shows that the fees were paid incorrectly.  If an owner or owner's 
representative feels that a fee is erroneously paid or collected, an audit may be 
required by the Building Official.  The audit shall be performed by an auditor 
selected by the City.  The project owner or owner's representative shall pay the cost 
of the audit. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit issued in accordance 
with this code. 

The Building Official may authorize refunding of not more than 80 percent of the 
plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for which a plan review fee 
has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan reviewing is done. 

The Building Official shall not authorize refunding of any fee paid except on 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the 
date of fee payment. 

(12) IEBC Section 109.6 (Approval Required) is hereby amended with a new subsection 
109.6.1 entitled, “Inspection Record Card” to read as follows: 

Sec. 109.6.1. Inspection Record Card. 

An inspection record card shall be issued to the holder of a building permit or an 
agent of the permit holder to allow the Building Official to readily make entries 
thereon regarding the inspection approval of work.  The building permit holder shall 
keep this inspection record card available to the Building Official on the project site 
until final building inspection approval has been granted by the Building Official. 

(13) IEBC Section 110.3 (Temporary Occupancy) is hereby amended to read as follows: 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 35 

 

Sec. 110.3. Temporary Occupancy. 

The Building Official is authorized to issue a temporary certificate of occupancy 
before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, provided that such 
portion or portions shall be occupied safely. 

(14)  IEBC Section 112 (Board of Appeals) and its accompanying subsections, is hereby 
amended by replacing the phrase “Board of Appeals” with “Board of Review.” 

(15) IEBC Section 112.1 (General) is hereby amended to reads as follows: 

Sec. 112.1. General. 

Appeals from the decision of the Building Official shall be filed with the Board of 
Review by filing a written appeal within sixty (60) days after the date of the 
Building Official’s decision. 

(16) IEBC Section 1301.3.2 (Compliance with Other Codes) is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 1301.3.2. Compliance with Other Codes. 

Buildings that are evaluated in accordance with this section shall comply with the 
International Fire Code. 

(17) IEBC Section 1401.2 (Conformance) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 1401.2. Conformance. 

The building shall be safe for human occupancy as determined by the International 
Fire Code. Any repair, alteration, or change of occupancy undertaken within the 
moved structure shall comply with the requirements of this code applicable to the 
work being performed. Any field-fabricated elements shall comply with the 
requirements of the International Building Code or the International Residential 
Code as applicable.  

(18) IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding American Society of 
Mechanical Engineers (“ASME”) referenced standards is amended to read as 
follows: 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 36 

 

ASME 

Standard 
reference 
number Title 

Referenced 
in code 

section number 
ASME/A17.1 
2019/CSA B44-07 

Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators – with A17.1a/CSA B44a-
08 Addenda 

 

410.8.2, 705.1.2, 902.1.2  

 

A17.3—2005 as 
implemented in 7 
CCR1101 – 8, 
Section 2-6-2 

 

Safety Code for Existing Elevators 
and Escalators 

 

902.1.2 

 

A18.1--2017 

 

Safety Standard for Platform Lifts 
and Stairway Lifts 410.8.3, 705.1.3 

(19)  IEBC Chapter 16 (Referenced Standards) regarding International Code Council, 
Inc., is amended with the deletion of any reference to the International Property 
Management Code. 

Sec. 15.04.080. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the Codes adopted in this Chapter.  In addition to 
other sanctions set forth in the adopted Codes, a person or entity who violates the provisions 
of any such Code shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in Section 1.20.010 of this 
Code.  Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall immediately 
cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property, or to 
the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state the conditions 
under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the code official 
shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any person who 
shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop work order, 
except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe 
condition, shall be in violation of this code. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 37 

 

Sec. 15.04.090. Appendices. 

 

Appendix A 

BUILDING PERMIT FEE CALCULATION 

Cost per square foot figures taken from the ICC’s  publication, Building 
Valuation Data & will be updated annually 

Type of Space Area per square foot Cost per square 
foot 

Value 

Living (Wood 
Frame) 

    X   $150.87   

Living (IRC 
Modular) 

    X   $75.44   

Unfinished 
Basement 

    X   $23.20   

Garage / 
Storage 

    X   $60.43   

Deck / Porch / 
Carport 

    X   $60.43   

Remodel 
(Materials) 

    X   2 (for labor)   

          
Total Value   

  

__________ + (_______________ X ________________)      =   _____________________ 

Initial Fee         cost per additional    # of additional      BASE PERMIT FEE 

______________+    0.65   x ___________________     =  _____________________ 

Base Permit Fee       PLAN REVIEW FEE 

             

     TOTAL FEE   _________________ 

         Driveway    _ _______________ 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 38 

             GRAND TOTAL _________________ 

Other Fees: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

1   
2 Reinspection fee $50.00/Hr. 
3 Consultation fee $$50Hr. 
4 Additional plan review required by changes, additions or 

revisions 
$62.50 base fee 

+ $62.50 per 
half hour of 

review 
5 Outside consultant for plan review and/or inspections Cost + 20% 
6 Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) $150.00 for 90 

days 
7 Solar Permit – Residential $150.00 
8 Solar Permit - Commercial $300.00 
9 Appeals $50.00 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 39 

APPENDIX B 

Schedule of Permit Fees for Work Done Under: 

a) International Fuel Gas Code 

b) International Mechanical Code 

c) International Plumbing Code 

d) Roofing Permit 

 
 Table 1-A Building Permit Fees 

Total Valuation Fees Based on  2018 IRC Appendix L 

$1.00 to $500.00 $24.00  

$501.00 to 
$2,000.00 

$24.00 for the first $500.00 plus $3.00 for each additional 
$100.00 or fraction of, to and including the $2,000.00 

$2,001.00 to 
$40,000.00 

$69.00 for the first $2,000.00 plus $11.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$40,000.00 

$40,001.00 to 
$100,00.00 

$487.00 for the first $40,000.00 plus $9.10 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$100,000.00 

$100,001.00 to 
$500,000.00 

$1,027.00 for the first $100,000.00 plus $7.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$500,000.00 

$500,001.00 to 
$1,000,000.00 

$3,827.00 for the first $500,000.00 plus $5.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$1,000,000.00 

$1,000,001.00 to 
$5,000,000.00 

$6,327.00 for the first $1,000,000.00 plus $3.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction of, to and including the 
$5,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 and 
up 

$18,327.00 for the first $5,000,000.00 plus $1.00 for each 
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 40 

  Valuation of Work          Permit Fee  

 

Base Permit Fee................................................................$50.00 

More than $2,000, but not more than $50,000 ..............$16.00 for each $1,000 valuation 
or fraction thereof 

More than $50,000, but not more than $500,000...........$250.00 plus $13.00 for each 
$1,000 valuation or fraction thereof  

More than $500,000.........................................................$1,500 plus $11.00 for 
each $1,000 valuation or fraction thereof 

These are the fees in effect as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance. The fee 
schedule may be updated annually. 

APPENDIX C 

Reserved 

APPENDIX D 

Schedule of Inspections for work done under either the International Building Code or the 
International Residential Code 

General. Construction of work for which a permit is required shall be subject to inspection 
by the Building Official and such construction or work shall remain accessible and exposed 
for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of an inspection shall not be 
construed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions of this Code or of other 
ordinances or the jurisdiction. Inspections presuming to give authority to violate or cancel 
the provisions of this Code or of other ordinances shall not be valid. It shall be the duty of 
the permit applicant to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for inspection 
purposes.  Neither the Building Official nor the jurisdiction shall be liable for expense 
entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow inspection. 

Inspection Record Card.  Work requiring a building permit shall not be commenced until 
the permit holder or his agent shall have posted an inspection card in a conspicuous place 
on the premises and in a position as to allow the Building Official to make the required 
entries conveniently thereon regarding inspection of the work. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 41 

Required Inspections.  The Building Official, upon 24-hour notification, shall make the 
inspections set forth below as well as other inspections as needed. 

Concrete Slab or Under-Floor Inspection.   To be made after in-slab or under-floor 
reinforcing steel and building service equipment, conduit, piping accessories and other 
ancillary equipment items are in place, but before any concrete is placed or floor sheathing 
installed, including the subfloor. 

Damp proofing Inspection.  A damp proofing inspection may be required prior to back-
fill unless otherwise approved by the Building Official. Damp proofing may be required 
by Section R406. A perimeter drain inspection may be made at this time if such drain is 
required by this code. 

Final Inspection. The final inspection shall be made after all work required by the building 
permit is completed. 

Fire Resistant Penetrations.   Protection of joints and penetrations in fire-resistant-rated 
assemblies shall not be concealed from view until inspected and approved. 

Footing Inspections.  To be made after trenches are excavated, forms erected and 
reinforcing steel, if any, is placed and before footings are poured.  A survey of the lot(s) 
may be required at this time to verify that the structure is located in accordance with, and 
the elevation matches, the approved plans. 

Foundation Wall Inspections.   Shall be made after the footings or piers have been poured.  
The foundation walls shall be formed and reinforcing steel and void material in place per 
accepted plan. 

Air/Water Resistive Barrier Inspection. Shall be made after the air/water barrier has 
been properly installed, fastened, and taped. 

Frame Inspection.   Framing inspections shall be made after the roof deck or sheathing, 
all framing, fire blocking is complete, and bracing is in place and pipes, chimneys and vents 
to be concealed are complete and the rough electrical, plumbing, heating, wire, pipe and 
duct inspections are approved. 

Insulation Inspection.  Shall be made after all insulation and vapor barriers are in place, 
and before any wall covering material is installed. 

Lath or Gypsum Board Inspection.   Shall be made after lathing and gypsum board, 
interior and exterior, is in place, but before any plastering is applied or before gypsum 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 42 

board joints and fasteners are taped and finished. 

Roofing Inspection, Final.  Shall be conducted after the roof has been completed.  

Roofing Inspection, Mid-Roof.  Shall be made after the underlayment has been installed. 

Utility Inspection. Prior to back-fill, and unless otherwise approved by the Building 
Official, underground gas, water, sewer and electric lines must be inspected from the utility 
tap to the structure. 

 

APPENDIX E 

Snow Load Tables 

City of Leadville Snow Load Requirements (Based on Elevation) 

(This table for reference only showing a relationship between pitch and degrees) 

 

Pitch  0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

Degrees  0 14..0 18.4 22.6 26.6  30.3 33.7 36.9 39.8 42.5 45 47.3 49.4 51.3 53.l 

Reduced Design Snow Load Based on Roof Pitch in Pounds per Square Foot 

Elevation Snow 

 

0 3:12 4:12 5:12 6:12 7:12 8:12 9:12 10:12 11:12 12:12 13:12 14:12 15:12 16:12 

9000 65 65 65 65 60 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9300 70 70 70 70 65 60 55 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 40 
9500 75 75 75 75 70 65 60 55 50 50 45 40 40 40 40 40 
9700 80 80 80 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 45 40 40 40 40 
9900 85 85 85 85 80 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10100 90 90 90 90 85 80 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 40 
10300 95 95 95 95 90 85 75 70 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 
10500 100 100 100 100 95 85 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 40 40 
10600 105 105 105 105 100 90 85 75 70 65 55 50 45 45 40 40 

10800 110 110 110 110 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 55 so 45 40 40 

11000 115 115 115 115 110 100 90 80 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 40 
11200 120 120 120 120 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 40 
11300 125 125 125 125 120 110 100 90 80 75 65 60 55 50 45 40 

11500 130 130 130 130 125 110 100 90 85 75 70 60 55 50 45 40 

11700 135 135 135 135 125 115 105 95 85 80 70 65 55 50 45 40 
11800 140 140 140 140 130 120 110 100 90 80 70 65 60 50 45 40 
12000 145 145 145 145 135 125 115 100 90 85 75 65 60 55 45 40 

 

Table based on the formula Rs = S/40 – ½ where 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 43 

Rs = Snow load reduction in psf per degree of slope over 20 degrees.  

S  =  Design Snow Load in pounds per square foot (psf) 

Minimum Snow Load is 40 psf 

For lower roofs subject to sliding snow from sloped roofs above, the design load shall be 
determined from the formula in ASCE 7-16, Section 7.9, published by the American Society of 
Civil Engineers. 

 

 

 

  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 44 

APPENDIX F 

CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 

1. Contractor registration shall be defined as the registration of construction 
contractors which means a person, firm, or corporation that, in the pursuit of an 
independent business, offers to undertake, undertakes, or submits a bid to construct, alter, 
repair, add to, subtract from, improve, move, wreck, or demolish, for another, a building, 
or other structure, project, development, or improvement attached to real estate, including 
carpentry, electrical, plumbing, and roofing work, solar installation, elevator and boiler 
installation, window and door installation, and many other types of work. In order to do 
work similar to that described in the preceding paragraph, upon the construction 
contractor's property, the contractor employs members of more than one trade on a single 
job or under a single building permit issued through the City of Leadville, except as 
otherwise provided.  For the purpose of this definition, subcontractor has the same meaning 
as contractor. 
 
2. It shall be unlawful for any Contractor to perform work within the City of Leadville 
without first having registered with the CityLake County. Any Contractor who fails to 
register annually prior to conducting any construction work during that calendar year shall 
be subject to a fine of $50.00. 
 
3. Applicants shall submit a written application with the information as required on 
the Contractor Registration application form located in Appendix F of this ordinance to 
the Building Official. 
 
4. Each application shall include a non-refundable fee as identified on the Contractor 
Registration application form located in Appendix F. 

 

Contractor Registration Form 

The Lake County Building Department requires all contractors that perform work within the 
County to be registered with the Lake County Building Department.  All contractors will be put 
on a list that will be available to the public.  All registrations will expire at the end of each 
calendar year, and will be required to be renewed by January 31st of each year or before any 
work is performed. All contractors will be required to carry a minimum of one (1) million dollar 
($1,000,000) liability insurance coverage. 

* PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL CONTRACTORS WILL BE REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE PROOF OF PASSING APPROPRIATE ICC CONTRACTOR 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 45 

TESTING OR A  LICENSE FROM A JURISDICTION THAT REQUIRES 
APPROPRIATE TESTING, AND A COPY OF THEIR CURRENT INSURANCE 
CERTIFICATE TO KEEP ON FILE WITH THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT. * 

Application for Contractor’s Registration 

*ALL BLANKS MUST BE FILLED IN AND ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE 
REQUIRED * 

Date: ____________________  

 

Insurance Provider: ____________________________ 

      

Owner’s Name: ______________________________    

 

Contractor’s Phone Number: ______________________   

   

Company Name: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Email/Website: 
______________________________________________________________________________
_ 

 

Contractor’s Mailing Address: 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Signature:  

______________________________________________________________________ 

 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 46 

Please check the following box(es) to indicate which contractor license(s) you are registering 
for: 

 

� Excavators= $50.00 
� Drywall Contractors= $50.00 
� General Contractors Residential C= $50.00 
� General Contractors Commercial B=$50.00  
� Mechanical Contractor= $50.00 
� Roofing Contractor= $50.00  
� Plumbing Contractor= $50.00 
� Insulation Contractor= $50.00  
� Fire Sprinkler Installers= $50.00 
� Solar Installer= $50.00 
� Water Well Const. & Pump Installer 

 

Please make checks payable to the Lake County Treasurer 

Contractor’s Registration Number: ____________________ (Office Use Only) 

 
 
General contractors doing work on residential buildings shall provide proof of testing to the 
*ICC National Standard Residential Building Contractor  “C” test. 

General contractors doing work on commercial buildings shall provide proof of testing to 
the *ICC National Standard  General Building Contractor “B” test. 

*If you hold a license from another jurisdiction or institution, the Code Official shall determine   
exception eligibility from the ICC requirement.   

Section 3. Chapter 15.08 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.08 entitled, “Fire 
Code” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.08 

FIRE CODE 

Sec. 15.08.010. Adoption of the 2018 International Fire Code. 
The International Fire Code (IFC), 2018 Edition as published by the International Code 
Council, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW, 6th Floor, Washington, DC 20001, including 
Appendices A, B, C, D, and F, is hereby adopted by reference as the City of Leadville Fire 
Code as if fully set out in this chapter with the additions, deletions, insertions and changes 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 47 

 
 
 

as set forth in this chapter. No building shall be hereafter constructed, erected, enlarged, 
altered, or moved into the city unless the same shall, as to design, construction, quality of 
materials and workmanship, conform with the IFC, as adopted and as amended. The 
purpose of the IFC is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or limb, health, 
property and public welfare from the hazards of fire explosion, and dangerous conditions 
arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous materials and devices, and from 
conditions hazardous to life or property in the use or occupancy of buildings or premises 
and provisions to assist emergency response personnel. Pursuant to title 31, article 16, part 
2, C.R.S., for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions hazardous to life 
and property from fire and explosion, certain code known as the International Fire Code 
(hereafter "International Code" or "International Fire Code" or "the code") promulgated by 
the International Code Council, 4051 West Flossmoor Road, County Club Hills, IL 60478-
5795, including appendices chapters A, B, C, D, and F, being particularly the 2018 Edition 
thereof and whole thereof, save and except such portions as are hereinafter deleted, 
modified, or amended by sections of this ordinance. Said code, of not less than one copy, 
certified to be a true copy, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk of the City of 
Leadville, and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of nine a.m. 
and four p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted. The code as finally adopted 
shall be available for inspection and sale to the public at cost through the Leadville/Lake 
County Fire Rescue (herein also referred to as the fire department), the Office of Lake 
County Community Services, and the office of the City Clerk of Leadville. After the date 
on which this chapter takes effect, the provisions thereof shall be controlling within the 
City of Leadville, Colorado. 

Sec. 15.08.020. Amendments, Deletions, and Modifications. 

Additions, deletions, amendments, and changes to the International Fire Code (IFC), 2018 
Edition, are hereby adopted as follows: 

(1) IFC Section 101.1 (Title) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 101.1. Title.  

These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of City of Leadville, Colorado, 
hereinafter referred to as the “IFC” or “this code.” 

(2) IFC Section 901.4.3 (Fire Areas) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 901.4.3. Fire Areas. 
 

Where buildings, or portions thereof, constructed under the International Building 
Code, are divided into fire areas so as not to exceed the limits established for 
requiring a fire protection system in accordance with this chapter, such fire areas 
shall be separated by fire walls constructed in accordance with the International 
Building Code or horizontal assemblies constructed in accordance with the 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 48 

 
 
 

International Building Code, or both, having a fire-resistance rating of not less than 
that determined in accordance with the International Building Code.    

(3) IFC Section 907.2.1. (Groups A) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1. Group A. 

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group A 
occupancies having an occupant load of 49 or more and /or more than 5,000 square 
feet.  Group A occupancies not separated from one another in accordance with 
Section 707.3.9 of the International Building Code shall be considered as a single 
occupancy for the purposes of applying this section.  Portions of Group E 
occupancies occupied for assembly purposes shall be provided with a fire alarm 
system as required for the Group E occupancy. 

(4) IFC Section 907.2.1.1 (System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupant 
load of 1,000 or more) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.1.1. System Initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupancy load 
of 491,000 or more. 

Activation of the fire alarm in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 1,000 
or more shall initiate a signal using an emergency voice/alarm communications 
system in accordance with Section 907.5.2.2. 

Activation of the fire alarm in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 49 or 
more shall initiate a signal using an emergency voice/alarm communications 
system in accordance with Section 907.5.2.2. 

Exception: Where approved, the prerecorded announcement is allowed to be 
manually deactivated for a period of time, not to exceed 3 minutes, for the sole 
purpose of allowing a live voice announcement from an approved, constantly 
attended location. 

(5) IFC Section 907.2.2 (Group B) is amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 907.2.2 Group B.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system shall be installed in Group B 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. The combined Group B occupant load of all floors is 49 or more 
and/or more than 5,000 square feet. 

2. The Group B occupant load is more than 49 persons above or below 
the lowest level of exit discharge. 

3. The fire area contains an ambulatory care facility. 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 49 

 
 
 

(6) IFC Section 907.2.4 (Group F) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.4 Group F.   

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system that activates the occupant 
notification system in accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group F 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exist: 

1. The Group F occupancy is one or more stories in height; and 
2. The Group F occupancy has a combined occupant load of 49 or 

more above or below the lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group F occupancy is more than 5,000 square feet. 
 

(7) IFC Section 907.2.5 (Group H) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.5  Group H. 

A manual and an automatic fire alarm system in accordance with Section 907.2 
shall be installed in all Group H occupancies and in occupancies used for the 
manufacture of organic coatings. An automatic smoke detection system shall be 
installed for highly toxic gases, organic peroxides and oxidizers in accordance with 
Chapters 60, 62 and 63, respectively. 

(8) IFC Section 907.2.7 (Group M) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

907.2.7 Group M.   

A manual and automatic fire alarm system shall be installed through-out in Group 
M occupancies in accordance with Section 907.5 where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

 

1. The combined Group M occupant load of all floors is 49 or more persons. 
2. The Group M occupant load is more than 20 persons above or below the 

lowest level of exit discharge. 
3. The Group M total square footage is 5,000 square feet or more. 

Sec. 15.08.030. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause to permit the 
same to be done in violation of any of the International Fire Code (IFC)s adopted in this 
Chapter.  In addition to other sanctions set forth in the adopted CodesIFC, a person or entity 
who violates the provisions of any such  Codethe IFC shall be subject to the penalties as 
set forth in Ssection 1.20.010 of this cCode. The provisions of the IFC and this chapter 
shall be enforced by the Building Official. Further, upon notice from the Building Official 
that work is being done contrary to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe 
manner, such work shall immediately cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 50 

 
 
 

given to the owner of the property, or to the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. 
The notice shall state the conditions under which work is authorized to resume. Where an 
emergency exists, the code official shall not be required to give a written notice prior to 
stopping the work. Any person who shall continue any work on the system after having 
been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform 
to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

Section 4. Chapter 15.12 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.12 titled, “Energy 
Conservation Code” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.12 

ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE 

Sec. 15.12.010. Adoption of the 2018 International Energy Conservation Code. 

The International Energy Conservation Code (IECC), 2018 Edition, is hereby adopted by 
reference as the City of Leadville Energy Conservation Code as if fully set out in this 
section. The purpose of the IECC is to regulate the design and construction of buildings for 
the effective use of energy. The IECC is not intended to abridge safety, health or 
environmental requirements contained in other applicable codes or ordinances. 

Sec. 15.12.020. Violations and Penalties. 

It shall be a unlawful for any person to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or 
structure, or cause or permit the same to be done in violation of the International Energy 
Conservation Code (IECC). In addition to other sanctions set forth in the IECC and this 
code, a person who violates the IECC shall be subject to the penalties as set forth in section 
1.20.010 of this code. The provisions of the IECC and this chapter shall be enforced by the 
Building Official. Further, upon notice from the Building Official that work is being done 
contrary to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, such work shall 
immediately cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the 
property, or to the owner’s agent, or to the person doing the work. The notice shall state 
the conditions under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency exists, the 
code official shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. Any 
person who shall continue any work on the system after having been served with a stop 
work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be in violation of this code. 

Section 4.Section 5. Chapter 15.16 Repealed and Replaced. Chapter 15.16 titled, 
“Building Codes Board of Appeals” is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows: 

CHAPTER 15.16 

BUILDING CODES APPEALS 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 51 

 
 
 

 

 

Sec. 15.16.010. Appeals.  

All appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official relative to the 
application and interpretation of any of the city's building and technical codes adopted pursuant to 
this title shall be heard by the Lake County Board of Review.  

 

Section 5.Section 6. Remaining Provisions.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all 
other provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 6.Section 7. Codification Amendments.  The codifier of Leadville’s Municipal 
Code is hereby authorized to make such numerical, technical and formatting changes as may be 
necessary to incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance within the Leadville Municipal Code. 

Section 7.Section 8. Severability.  Should any one or more sections or provisions of this 
Ordinance be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, 
impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various 
sections and provisions are severable. 

Section 8.Section 9. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict 
or inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and 
this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done 
or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of 
this Ordinance. 

Section 9.Section 10. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and 
declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, 
that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is 
necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience 
and welfare.  The City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to 
the proper legislative object sought to be attained. 

Section 10.Section 11. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty 
(30) days after publication following final passage. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on 

first reading this 19th day July, 2022. 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 52 

 
 
 

______________________________________ 
     Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Leadville, Colorado, on the  21st____ day of July________________, 2022. 
 

 
  



City of Leadville 
Ordinance No. 7 

Series of 2022  
                                                                                                                  Page 53 

 
 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, 

with any amendments, this 6th_____ day of September_______________, 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper 
of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this ________ 
day of _______________, 2022. 



Summary of Major Changes in 2018 International Codes 
(from https://www.iccsafe.org/about/periodicals-and-newsroom/key-changes-in-the-2018-i-codes/) 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Code Changes 

2018 
International 
Building 
Code 

• Accessory storage spaces of any size are now permitted to be classified as part 
of the occupancy to which they are accessory. 

• New code sections have been introduced addressing medical gas systems and 
higher education laboratories. 

• Use of fire walls to create separate buildings is now limited to only the 
determination of permissible types of construction based on allowable 
building area and height. 

• Where an elevator hoistway door opens into a fire-resistance-rated corridor, 
the opening must be protected in a manner to address smoke intrusion into 
the hoistway. 

• The occupant load factor for business uses has been revised to one occupant 
per 150 square feet. 

• Live loads on decks and balconies increase the deck live load to one and one-
half times the live load of the area served. 

• The minimum lateral load that fire walls are required to resist is five pounds 
per square foot. 

• Wind speed maps updated, including maps for the state of Hawaii. 
Terminology describing wind speeds has changed again with ultimate design 
wind speeds now called basic design wind speeds. 

• Site soil coefficients now correspond to the newest generation of ground 
motion attenuation equations (seismic values). 

• Five-foot tall wood trusses requiring permanent bracing must have a periodic 
special inspection to verify that the required bracing has been installed. 

• New alternative fastener schedule for construction of mechanically laminated 
decking is added giving equivalent power-driven fasteners for the 20-penny 
nail. 

• Solid sawn lumber header and girder spans for the exterior bearing walls 
reduce span lengths to allow #2 Southern Pine design values. 

The 2018 
International 
Residential 
Code 

• An updated seismic map reflects the most conservative Seismic Design 
Category (SDC) based on any soil type and a new map reflects less 
conservative SDCs when Site Class A, B or D is applicable. 

• The townhouse separation provisions now include options for using two 
separate fire-resistant-rated walls or a common wall. 

• An emergency escape and rescue opening is no longer required in basement 
sleeping rooms where the dwelling has an automatic fire sprinkler system 
and the basement has a second means of egress or an emergency escape 
opening. 

• The exemption for interconnection of smoke alarms in existing areas has 
been deleted. 

• New girder/header tables have been revised to incorporate the use of #2 
Southern Pine in lieu of #1 Southern Pine. 



Page 2 of 4 
 

• New tables address alternative wood stud heights and the required number 
of full height studs in high wind areas. 

The 2018 
International 
Fire Code 

• New provisions address hazards related to outdoor pallet storage, higher 
education laboratories, mobile food trucks and plant processing and 
extraction activities. 

• Mass Notification Requirements for college and university buildings have 
been added to the code. 

• Sprinkler protection is now required in existing Group A-2 occupancies 
having an occupant load of 300 or more where alcoholic beverages are 
consumed. 

• A new chapter has been added to address issues related to Energy Systems. 
• Integrated testing requirements for fire protection and life safety systems 

have been added for high rise buildings and smoke control systems. 
• The requirements for gas detection systems have been revised throughout 

the code to be more reflective of industry practice. 
• Required sprinkler protection of Group E occupancies has been expanded 

through the introduction of a new thresholds related to fire areas. 
• Manual fire alarm systems in Group A occupancies are now required not only 

when the occupant load is 300 or more but also where the occupant load 
exceeds 100 above or below the lowest level of exit discharge. 

• A manual fire alarm system and an automatic smoke detection system are no 
longer required in Group R-4 occupancies. 

• New provisions require illumination for the exit discharge path of travel to 
the public way or to a safe dispersal area for all occupancies. 

• Provisions have been added to address the hazards associated with outdoor 
assembly events, indoor trade shows and exhibitions. 

• The fire watch requirements for construction and demolition activities have 
been enhanced. 

• The provisions for the maintenance of fire and smoke protection features in 
Chapter 7 have been enhanced and reorganized. 

• The applicability of the decorative materials requirements in Chapter 8 have 
been clarified. 

The 2018 
International 
Plumbing 
Code 

• Updated table for the Minimum Number of Required Plumbing Fixtures 
• Single-user toilet facilities (a room having a single water closet and a single 

lavatory) are not required to be labeled for use by only a male or female 
(separated use designations). 

• Solar thermal water heating systems need to conform to the ICC 900/SRCC 
300 standard. 

• Well systems are required to comply with standard NGWA-01 where local 
requirements do not cover subject matter or are lacking in detail on others. 

The 2018 
International 

• Added coverage of pollution control units. 
• A new exception was added to recognize Type I kitchen hoods listed for 

clearances to combustibles of less than 18 inches. 
• Added coverage for a newer type of non-metallic duct, phenolic duct. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Mechanical 
Code 

• New coverage for high volume large diameter fans (HVLD), also referred to 
as high volume low speed (HVLS) fans. 

• Relaxed requirements for sealing of duct joints and seams for Snap- and 
Button-lock duct joints located within the thermal envelope. 

The 2018 
International 
Fuel Gas 
Code 

• A new Section was added to recognize arc-resistant CSST products. 
• The code now allows Schedule 10 steel pipe to be used, whereas previously, 

Schedule 40 was the lightest steel pipe material allowed. Schedule 10 steel 
pipe joints are allowed to be welded, brazed, flanged or assembled with 
press-connect fittings. Schedule 10 pipe cannot be threaded. 

• The code clarifies that appliance shutoff valves located behind movable 
appliances, such as ranges and clothes dryers, are considered to be provided 
with the required access. 

• The code now calls for the plastic vent pipe material to be labeled as 
complying with the standards for the specific pipe material as called out by 
the manufacturer. 

• The clearances between direct-vent appliance vent terminals and openings 
in the building exterior that could allow combustion products to enter the 
building have been revised. 

The 2018 
International 
Building 
Code 

• Section 410 Accessibility has been relocated to a new Section 305. Chapters 
4, 5, 6, 13 and 14 have been relocated resulting in a reorganization and new 
chapter numbering. 

• Requirements for live loads from Chapters 4 and 8 have been combined and 
placed in Chapter 3 to apply for all compliance methods. 

• Structural components damaged by snow events must be repaired assuming 
snow loads for new buildings from the IBC. 

• A new exception is added for loading of existing structural elements next to 
an addition in buildings designed using the IRC. 

• When a work area includes more than half the building in an alteration, wall 
anchors must be installed at the roof line along reinforced concrete and 
masonry walls. 

• Buildings undergoing a change of occupancy shall have live, snow, wind and 
seismic loads checked. Design loads are based on IBC-level forces. 

• When a change of occupancy occurs placing a building in a higher risk 
category, the seismic loads on the building must be evaluated using IBC-level 
forces. Access to the building must be maintained when passing through or 
near other buildings and structures. 

• Where storm shelters are required based on IBC and ICC 500 for Group E 
Occupancies, any addition to such existing occupancies where the occupant 
load of the addition is 50 or more will trigger the construction of a storm 
shelter. 

• Carbon Monoxide provisions have been added in the Prescriptive Method 
Additions, Alterations Level 2 Additions, and in Additions for I-1, I-2, I-4 and R 
Occupancies. 



Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 4
 

 

• 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Es
ca

pe
 a

nd
 R

es
cu

e 
O

pe
ni

ng
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 re
la

te
d 

to
 b

ei
ng

 
op

er
at

io
na

l h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dd
ed

 to
 P

re
sc

rip
tiv

e 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

et
ho

d 
an

d 
Al

te
ra

tio
ns

 L
ev

el
 1

. 
• 

Si
ng

le
 e

xi
t b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 sp
ac

es
 u

nd
er

 A
lte

ra
tio

n 
Le

ve
ls 

2 
an

d 
3 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

od
ifi

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
IB

C.
 

• 
Th

e 
Al

te
ra

tio
ns

 L
ev

el
 2

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

ha
t w

at
er

 fo
r a

ut
om

at
ic

 fi
re

 sp
rin

kl
er

 
sy

st
em

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

flo
or

 o
f a

lte
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r a

 fi
re

 
pu

m
p 

ha
s b

ee
n 

m
ov

ed
 to

 C
ha

pt
er

 9
 fo

r A
lte

ra
tio

ns
 L

ev
el

 3
 a

nd
 th

e 
fir

e 
pu

m
p 

cr
ite

rio
n 

w
as

 d
el

et
ed

. 
 



Page 1 of 6 

AGENDA ITEM # 9.C 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2022 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 29, Series of 2022: A Resolution Opting Out of the Paid Family and 
Medical Leave Insurance (“FAMLI”) Program  

PRESENTED BY: Christiana McCormick, City Attorney 

_____ORDINANCE 
     X     RESOLUTION 
_____MOTION 
_____INFORMATION 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 29, Series of 2022 (“Resolution”), the
approval of which would opt the City out of participation in the state-run Paid Family and Medical
Leave Insurance (“FAMLI”) Program.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

In November 2020, Colorado voters passed Proposition 118, allowing for implementation of a
state-run program for paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance. The program coverage is
effective January 1, 2024, and the payment of premiums would begin January 1, 2023. The state
gives local governments the option to opt out of the program.

FAMLI Coverage Overview

The FAMLI program is intended to ensure all employers in the state of Colorado provide twelve
(12) weeks of protected paid leave for:

• Caring for a new child (birth, foster placement, adoption, caring for child within the first
year from birth);

• An employee’s serious health condition;

• A family member’s serious health condition;

• Arrangements for a family member’s military deployment; and

• Immediate safety needs and impact of domestic violence and/or sexual assault.

Paid coverage provides benefits up to a maximum of $1,100 per week for higher earners ($91,000 

Cityclerk
Highlight



Page 2 of 6 

a year or above). The benefit is 37% to 90% of an employee’s regular income paid during leave 
taken depending on the employee’s annual base salary amount/wages. Participation in the 
FAMLI Program would require contributions from both the City and from employees beginning 
in January 1, 2023, unless the City decides to cover employees’ premiums. If the City does not 
cover employees’ premiums but participates in the Program, the City and its employees would 
each be responsible for paying .45% of an employee’s gross wages beginning in January 2023. 
FAMLI premiums are pre-tax deductions from employee paychecks.  

If a local government opts out of the Program, individual employees can opt into the FAMLI 
program. Individual employees would contribute .45% of their wage directly to the state and 
then will receive the same benefits as if the City had remained in the Program. Therefore, even 
if the City opts out, employees may still join the Program and receive Program benefits.   

Any local government that opts in, or an individual employee in cases where the local 
government has opted out, is committed to participate for three (3) years. If a local government 
opts out, they can opt in again during their budgeting process any year after that.  

The process for opting out requires a City Council vote (and passage of a resolution saying that 
the City is opting out), and the City must provide employees with an opportunity for comment. 
The process of opting out must be revisited/reviewed and voted on every eight (8) years. 

Current Paid Leave Provided by the City 

For full-time employees, the City’s personnel policy provides the following amounts of paid time 
off:  

Paid Time Off 

Years Employed Maximum Accrual 
PTO Accrued    
Per Pay Period 

>1 120 4.62 hours 
1-4 180 6.92 hours 
5-9 230 hours 8.85 hours 
10-14 260 hours 10.00 hours 
15+ 270 hours 10.38 hours 

Paid time off for full-time employees may be used for any reason, including the reasons the City 
is required to provide paid leave under the Healthy Families and Workplaces Act (“HFWA”) 
(diagnosis, treatment, or case for medical or mental health condition, preventative medical care, 
obtaining services for victims of domestic abuse or sexual assault/harassment, care for a family 
member for any of the previously listed reasons, public health emergency closure of work or 
daycare of employee’s child).  

The City’s part-time and temporary employees accrue paid sick leave at a rate of one (1) hour 
of paid leave for every thirty (30) hours worked, up to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours of 
paid sick leave per year. Part-time and temporary employees may use this paid sick leave for 
the reasons listed in the HFWA only. 

Note: FAMLI is a separate program from Colorado’s HFWA and the unpaid federal Family and 
Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) program. 



Page 3 of 6 

There is a prohibition against requiring an employee to exhaust or use any accrued sick , vacation, 
or other paid time off prior to or while receiving FAMLI benefits. (See C.R.S. § 8-13.3-510). 
However, FAMLI is only partial wage replacement and employers and employees are allowed to 
explore mutually beneficial options for making an employee whole. 

City Council Questions and Answers 

At its June 7, 2022 work session, City Council received a presentation on the FAMLI Program and 
asked a number of questions about the Program. Those questions and the answers to the 
questions are provided below: 

If the City has any employees eligible for unpaid FMLA leave, would the City be able to have 
the employee take FMLA leave concurrently with FAMLI leave? 

Yes. The Colorado FAMLI benefit has been designed to run concurrently with the federal FMLA 
unpaid benefit.  

If all local government employers opt out, how will the program be funded? 

Only local government employers have the option to opt out of the FAMLI Program. All other in 
the state are required to participate in the Program, with limited exceptions (see chart below for 
more information).  

To be released from the requirement to participate in the Program, a private employer must 
create its own, similar private program that provides all of the same rights, protections, and 
benefits as Colorado’s FAMLI paid leave program. Private programs must be pre-approved by the 
state’s FAMLI Division.  

Responsibilities Under Proposition 118 

Employer Type Employer Premium Employee Premium No Premium 

9 or fewer employees ✓

10 or more employees ✓ ✓

Participating Self-
Employed ✓

Participating Local 
Government Employee ✓

Nonparticipating local 
government ✓

Nonparticipating Self-
Employed ✓

Employer with Private 
Plan ✓

(chart from https://famli.colorado.gov/employers) 

How are premiums deducted from an employee’s paycheck? 

If an employee pays FAMLI premiums, they would pay the premiums by taking a pre-tax 
deduction from their paychecks.  



Page 4 of 6 

Can individual employees opt out of the FAMLI Program if the City decides to participate in the 
Program? 

No. If the City decides to participate in the FAMLI Program, its employees are required to 
participate. Employees may choose for themselves whether to participate only if the City opts 
out of the Program. 

How does taking leave work under the FAMLI Program? 

FAMLI leave is different from paid sick days and will require documentation of need in most cases 
before the benefit is approved by the FAMLI Division. Depending on the reason and need for 
leave, the benefit leave period may be up to 12 weeks. For people experiencing pregnancy and 
childbirth complications this may be extended an additional 4 weeks, for a total of 16 weeks.  

The FAMLI benefit can only be taken once a year across a rolling annual calendar year (i.e. 
employees are eligible for 12 weeks of paid leave for qualifying reasons, and the 12 weeks can 
be taken all at once or multiple times for shorter durations in one year). For example, if an 
employee takes paternity leave on February 11th, 2024 for the full 12 weeks, they would not be 
eligible for any other FAMLI leave period covered until February 11th, 2025. 

Can two employees (e.g. spouses who are both City employees) take FAMLI leave at the same 
time?  

There has been no rule or guidance issued yet that addresses this question. The FAMLI statute, 
the FAMLI rules, and the FAMLI Division frequently asked questions do not directly answer this 
question. The FAMLI statute simply states that “[t]he covered individual shall make a reasonable 
effort to schedule paid family and medical leave ... so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of 
the employer.” C.R.S. § 8-13.3-505(4).  

The FAMLI Division issued rules on the use of benefits on August 26, 2022, but those rules do 
not directly address this question. However, the rules state that if an employee is granted paid 
leave by the FAMLI Division, an employer is allowed to submit a good faith grievance to the 
FAMLI Division if the leave granted will unduly disrupt the employer's obligations. The FAMLI 
Division will then investigate whether the leave granted should be changed.

City Options 

1. Opt out of the FAMLI Program, pay no premiums, do not cover any portion of employee
premiums for employees who opt in, and do not facilitate payroll deductions for
employees who opt in. This option requires passage of a resolution.

2. Opt out of the FAMLI Program, pay some or all of employee premiums for employees who
opt in, and facilitate (or not) payroll deductions for employees who opt in. This option
requires passage of a resolution.

3. Opt into the FAMLI Program and pay the City portion of premiums only. This option
requires the City to facilitate payroll deductions for both the City and employee portions
of premiums. This option would not require the passage of a resolution (but Council can
still choose to pass a resolution reflecting Council’s decision, if desired).

https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/legacy/files/whdfs28l.pdf


Page 5 of 6 

4. Opt into the FAMLY Program, pay the City portion of premiums, and pay some or all of
employee premiums. This option requires the City to facilitate payroll deductions for both
the City and employee portions of premiums. This option would not require the passage
of a resolution (but Council can still choose to pass a resolution reflecting Council’s
decision, if desired).

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

The estimated cost to the City, if it decides to opt into the FAMLI Program or if it decides to opt
out but pay 100% of employees’ premiums (assuming all employees individually opt in if the City
opts out), is approximately $10,365.00 per year. This estimate is based on current employee
wages paid by the City for its current number of employees.

If the City participates in the FAMLI Program, the amount listed above is the estimated minimum
annual cost to the City. The City could choose to pay up to 100% of employee premiums in
addition to the employer share of the premiums.

If the City opts out of the FAMLI Program, the amount listed above is the estimated maximum
that the City would pay if all employees individually opt into the Program and the City pays 100%
of the employee premiums.

Regardless of whether City Council decides to opt in or opt out of the FAMLI Program, City
Council should also decide if it will pay all or a portion of its employees’ FAMLI premiums (for
those employees required to participate if City opts in or those who choose to participate if
City opts out). The proposed motion set forth below incorporates this decision into the motion
and Resolution.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

See Background section above.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 29, Series of 2022, decline to
participate in the FAMLI Program, voluntarily facilitate deductions for the FAMLI Program on behalf
of employees who elect to participate, and, if Council desires, pay all or a portion of an employee’s
premiums for any employee who decides to individually opt in to the FAMLI Program.

This approach allows employees to choose for themselves whether to participate in the Program
and, if they do, essentially provides financial assistance from the City to cover all or a portion of the
costs to participate (again, if Council desires to pay for all or a portion of employee premiums).

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

Council may take one of the following actions:

1. Adopt the Resolution.

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.

3. Table for further discussion and consideration.

4. Decide not to adopt the Resolution.



Page 6 of 6 
 

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:  

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 29, Series of 2022, A Resolution Opting Out of the Paid Family and 
Medical Leave Insurance (“FAMLI”) Program. I further move that the Resolution be amended to 
show that the City will pay ________ percent of the employees’ premiums for those employees 
who participate in the FAMLI Program.” 

IX. ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 29, Series of 2022 



 
 
 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 29 

SERIES OF 2022 
 

A RESOLUTION OPTING OUT OF THE PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE 
INSURANCE (“FAMLI”) PROGRAM 

 

WHEREAS, in November 2020, Colorado voters approved Proposition 118 creating the 
Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Program (“FAMLI” or the “FAMLI Program”); and 

WHEREAS, the FAMLI Program requires participating employers to remit to the FAMLI 
Division of the Colorado Department of Labor premiums in the form of 0.9% of all employees’ 
gross wages beginning January 1, 2023, and permits participating employers to require that 
employees pay for one-half of the premium amounts; and 

WHEREAS, the FAMLI Program allows local governments to decline to participate in 
the FAMLI Program while also allowing local government employees to individually opt into the 
FAMLI Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Leadville (the "City") already provides its employees with paid 
time off and other employee benefits; and 

WHEREAS, the City believes that employees are in the best position to individually 
determine whether they wish to opt into the FAMLI Program; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 7 CCR 1107-2 §2.6(A)(2), the City posted notice of the meeting 
at which this Resolution was considering in the same manner as any other business before Council 
and additionally provided advance written notice to all City employees regarding the City 
Council's planned consideration of this Resolution and the opportunity to submit comments; and 

WHEREAS, in addition, the City employees have been notified of: (1) their right to 
individually opt into the FAMLI Program under C.R.S. § 8-13.3-514, and (2) that more 
information for the FAMLI Program may be found at https://famli.colorado.gov/; and  

WHEREAS, prior to consideration of this Resolution, the City Council read into the record 
any written comments regarding this Resolution received prior to the meeting and accepted oral 
comments at the meeting from the City employees and other interested parties, if any; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that declining to participate in the FAMLI 
Program is in the best interest of the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Participation in FAMLI Program Declined. The City Council hereby 
declines to participate in the FAMLI Program. 

 

https://famli.colorado.gov/


City of Leadville 
  Resolution No. 29 
  Series of 2022 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 2. Payment of Employee Premiums. The City Council hereby determines 
that the City shall pay __________ percent (_____%) of each employee’s FAMLI premiums for 
all employees who individually decide to participate in the FAMLI Program. If the percent listed 
above is greater than zero, City Council directs that City staff account for this expense in the City’s 
budget for 2023 and future budgets, unless City Council directs otherwise.  

 
Section 3. Payroll Deductions. The City Council desires to support employees who 

participate in the FAMLI Program by voluntarily deducting and remitting the employee share of 
the FAMLI premium and corresponding wage data to the State’s FAMLI Division every quarter. 

 
Section 4. Instruction to Notify FAMLI Division. The City Council directs the City 

Administrator or her designee to notify the FAMLI Division of this decision. Specifically, the City 
Administrator or her designee shall provide the FAMLI Division with a certified copy of this 
Resolution. 

 
Section 5. Instruction to Notify City Employees. The City Council directs the City 

Administrator or her designee to provide individual notice of this decision to City employees 
within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of this Resolution. 

 
Section 6. Instruction to Post Notice of this Decision in the Workplace. The City 

Council directs the City Administrator or her designee to post notice of this decision in a 
conspicuous and accessible place in each establishment where employees are employed by the 
City, as required by 7 CCR 1107-2, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of this Resolution. 

 
Section 7. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining issues of this resolution. 

 
Section 8. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

approval of the City Council of the City of Leadville.  
 

ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2022 by a vote of  __ in favor, ___ against,  
__ abstaining, __ absent. 

 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
 
 

By: _______________________________  
 Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
  Deputy City Clerk 
 



S
ep

 2
02

2 
P

ub
lic

 M
ee

tin
gs

 P
la

nn
er

 28
29

30
31

1
2

3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24

25
26

27
28

29
30

1

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 R
eg

ul
ar

 

9a
m

 - 
C

ou
rt

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
C

C
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

k 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at



O
ct

 2
02

2 
P

ub
lic

 M
ee

tin
gs

 P
la

nn
er

 25
26

27
28

29
30

1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29

30
31

1
2

3
4

5

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
C

C
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

k 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 R
eg

ul
ar

 

6p
m

 - 
C

C
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

k 

9a
m

 - 
C

ou
rt

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
C

C
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

k 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at



N
ov

 2
02

2
P

ub
lic

 M
ee

tin
gs

 P
la

nn
er

 30
31

1
2

3
4

5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26

27
28

29
30

1
2

3

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg

5p
m

 - 
S

an
ita

tio
n

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

4p
m

 - 
LU

R
A

 R
eg

ul
ar

 

9a
m

 - 
C

ou
rt

6p
m

 - 
C

C
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

k 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

5:
15

pm
 - 

P
ar

kv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 

8:
30

am
 - 

To
ur

is
m

 P
an

el

11
am

 - 
B

O
C

C
 @

 5
00

 

6p
m

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 C

C
 M

tg
 @

 

4p
m

 - 
H

P
C

 - 
R

eg
ul

ar
 M

tg
 

6p
m

 - 
P

&
Z 

M
ee

tin
g 

@
 

Su
n

M
on

Tu
e

W
ed

Th
u

Fr
i

S
at


	3-09.06.2022 Agenda
	7A-08.16.2022 DRAFT Minutes
	7B1-CCF_Reso 37 Series 2022_Planning Official (9-06-22 mtg) final.v2
	7B2-Reso 37 Series 2022_Planning Official_FINAL
	8A 930 Hemlock Complete COA 9.6.22
	11A 930 Hemlock Complete COA 8.9.22
	11A Comm Form 930 Hemlock St Resubmitted COA
	930 Hemlock Complete COA 8.9.22
	930 Hemlock Complete COA 8.9.22
	930 Hemlock Infill Continued COA Staff Report
	930 Hemlock COA Application
	John Slate - Design Renderings and Elevations

	John Slate - Design Plans


	11A 930 Hemlock More Information

	8B St Patrick's Day Practice Parade Updated TUP.docx
	8B City Council Comm Form St Patrick's Day Practice Parade
	St Patricks Day Practice Parade Updated TUP Application

	8C1-CCF Template for Zero Day Coffee New Liquor License (no comments)
	8C2-Zero Day Coffee New Liquor App Packet_Redacted
	8D1-CCF Template for Floyd's MJ License (dated 2.8.2022)
	8D2 2022 Floyd's MJ Renewal App_Redacted
	9A_Ord 9 Series 2022_General Penalty (1st Rdg)
	CCF_Ord 9 Series 2022_General Penalty Amendments
	I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:
	II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
	Chapter 1.20 of the Code sets forth the general penalties for violations of the Code and includes several out-of-date sections that are not consistent with current state law. The City’s municipal judge has ensured that the municipal court’s practices ...
	There are three sections of Chapter 1.20 that the Ordinance would amend, if adopted:
	 Section 1.20.010 sets the maximum monetary and jail time penalties for violations of the Code. The current maximum penalty for jail time under this section is one (1) year. Under Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”) § 13-10-113(1)(a), however, the m...
	 Section 1.20.030 establishes when a person may be jailed for nonpayment of a court fine. This section currently states that a person who has been convicted of a municipal code violation and fails to pay municipal court fines is subject to imprisonme...
	 Section 1.20.040 currently requires the municipal court to immediately issue a bench warrant (an arrest warrant issued directly by a judge, usually when someone does not follow the rules of the court) if a person uses a check to pay a court fine and...
	III. FISCAL IMPACTS:
	IV. LEGAL ISSUES:
	See Background section above.
	V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:
	Council may take one of the following actions:
	1. Adopt the Ordinance on first reading.
	2. Adopt the Ordinance on first reading with amendments.
	3. Table the Ordinance for further discussion and consideration.
	VII. PROPOSED MOTION:
	VIII. ATTACHMENTS:

	Ord 9 Series 2022_Ch. 1.20 General Penalty Amendments_final first reading 9-6-2022

	9B_Ord 7 Series 2022_2018 Building Codes (2nd Rdg)
	CCF_Ord 7 Series 2022_Building and Fire Codes (second reading 9-6-22)
	Ord. 7 Series 2022_2018 Building and Fire Codes second reading clean.v2
	Ord 7 Series 2022 Attachment_Summary of Changes to 2018 Codes

	9C_Reso 29 Series 2022_FAMLI Program
	CCF_Reso 29 Series 2022_FAMLI Program Decision (9-6-22 mtg)
	Responsibilities Under Proposition 118

	Reso 29 Series 2022_FAMLI Program (9-6-22 mtg)

	10-Public Planner



